
Wednesday, March 20, 2024
1:30 PM

Napa Valley Transportation Authority
625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

JoAnn Busenbark Board Room

NVTA Board of Directors

All materials relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the NVTA Board of 

Directors are posted on the NVTA website at: https://nctpa.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx 

This meeting will be conducted as an in-person meeting at the location noted above.  Remote 

teleconference access is provided for the public ’s convenience and in the event a Board Member 

requests remote participation due to just cause or emergency circumstances pursuant to Government 

Code section 54953(f).  Please be advised that if a Board Member is not participating in the meeting 

remotely, remote participation for members of the public is provided for convenience only and in the 

event that the Zoom teleconference connection malfunctions for any reason, the Board of Directors 

reserves the right to conduct the meeting without remote access and take action on any agenda item.  

The public may participate telephonically or electronically via the methods below:

1) To join the meeting via Zoom video conference from your PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android: go to 

https://zoom.us/join and enter meeting ID 864 1754 4351

2) To join the Zoom meeting by phone: dial 1-669-900-6833, enter meeting ID: 864 1754 4351 If asked 

for the participant ID or code, press #.

3) Watch live on YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCrpjLcW9uRmA0EE6w-eKZyw?

app=desktop

The agenda will be posted 72 hours prior to the meeting and will be available for public inspection, on 

and after at the time of such distribution, in the office of the Secretary of the NVTA Board of Directors, 

625 Burnell Street, Napa, California 94559, Monday through Friday, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 

4:30 p.m., except for NVTA holidays. Should the office be closed or staff is working remotely due to a 

declared emergency, you may email info@nvta.ca.gov to request a copy of the agenda. 

Public records related to an agenda item that are distributed less than 72 hours before this meeting are 

Agenda - Final



available for public inspection during normal business hours at the NVTA office at 625 Burnell Street, 

Napa, CA 94559 and will be made available to the public on the NVTA website at nvta .ca.gov. 

Availability of materials related to agenda items for public inspection does not include materials which 

are exempt from public disclosure under Government Code sections 6253.5, 6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 

6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22.

Members of the public may comment on matters within the subject matter of the Board ’s jurisdiction, 

that are not on the meeting agenda during the general Public Comment item at the beginning of the 

meeting.  Comments related to a specific item on the agenda must be reserved until the time the 

agenda item is considered and the Chair invites public comment. While members of the public are 

welcome to address the Board, under the Brown Act, Board members may not deliberate or take action 

on items not on the agenda, and generally may only listen.

Members of the public may submit a public comment in writing by emailing info@nvta .ca.gov by 10:00 

a.m. on the day of the meeting with PUBLIC COMMENT as the subject line (for comments related to an 

agenda item, please include the item number). All written comments should be 350 words or less, which 

corresponds to approximately 3 minutes or less of speaking time. Public comments emailed to 

info@nvta.ca.gov after 10 a.m. the day of the meeting will be entered into the record but not read out 

loud.  If authors of the written correspondence would like to speak, they are free to do so and should

raise their hand and the Chair will call upon them at the appropriate time.

1. To comment while attending via Zoom, click the “Raise Your Hand” button (click on the “Participants” 

tab) to request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on the Agenda item.  You must unmute 

yourself when it is your turn to make your comment for up to 3 minutes.  After the allotted time, you will 

then be re-muted.  Instructions for how to “Raise Your Hand” are available at 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129-Raise-Hand-In-Webinar.

2. To comment by phone, press “*9” to request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on the 

Agenda item.  You must unmute yourself by pressing “*6” when it is your turn to make your comment, 

for up to 3 minutes.  After the allotted time, you will be re-muted.

The methods of observing, listening, or providing public comment to the meeting may be altered due to 

technical difficulties or the meeting may be cancelled, if needed.   

Note: Where times are indicated for agenda items, they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only, and may be shorter or longer as needed.

Information on obtaining the agenda in an alternate format is noted below:

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA):  This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternate 

formats to persons with a disability.  Persons requesting a disability -related modification or 

accommodation should contact Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary, at (707) 259-8633 during 

regular business hours, at least 48 hours prior to the time of the meeting.

Acceso y el Titulo VI: La NVTA puede proveer asistencia/facilitar la comunicación a las personas 

discapacitadas y los individuos con conocimiento limitado del ingl és quienes quieran dirigirse a la 

Autoridad.  Para solicitar asistencia, por favor llame al número (707) 259-8633.  Requerimos que solicite 

asistencia con tres días hábiles de anticipación para poderle proveer asistencia.

Ang Accessibility at Title VI: Ang NVTA ay nagkakaloob ng mga serbisyo/akomodasyon kung hilingin 

ang mga ito, ng mga taong may kapansanan at mga indibiduwal na may limitadong kaalaman sa wikang 

Ingles, na nais na matugunan ang mga bagay-bagay na may kinalaman sa NVTA-TA Board.  Para sa 

mga tulong sa akomodasyon o pagsasalin-wika, mangyari lang tumawag sa (707) 259-8633.  

Kakailanganin namin ng paunang abiso na tatlong araw na may pasok sa trabaho para matugunan ang 

inyong kahilingan.



March 20, 2024NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

1. Call to Order

2. Approval of Board Member Requests for Remote Participation

3. Roll Call

4. Adoption of the Agenda

5. Public Comment

6. Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's,

and Association of Bay Area Governments Update

7. Executive Director's Update

8. Caltrans' Update

Note: Where times are indicated for the agenda items, they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only and may be shorter or longer as needed.

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS

9.1
Public Hearing on the First Reading of the Napa Valley 

Transportation Authority’s (NVTA) Biennial Budget for Fiscal 

Years (FY) 2024-25 and 2025-26 (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 10-30)

 That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board: 

1. Open the public hearing for the biennial budget; and

2. Review and comment on the FY 2024-25 (FY25) NVTA annual

operating budget of $35,307,000; capital budget of $16,200,000, and Transportation
for Clean Air budget of $500,000 for a total amount of $52,007,000; and

3. Review and comment on the FY 2025-26 (FY26) NVTA annual

operating budget of $28,437,300; capital budget of $0, and Transportation for
Clean Air budget of $500,000 for a total amount of $28,937,300.

Recommendation:

2:20 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

Page 3 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/13/2024

https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2c494afc-2ee0-4442-a6b5-89e314627a3f.pdf


March 20, 2024NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

10.1 Meeting Minutes of February 21, 2024 (Laura Sanderlin) (Pages 

31-33)

Board action will approve the minutes of February 21st regular meeting.Recommendation:

2:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Draft MinutesAttachments:

10.2 Measure T 6.67% Equivalent Fund Certification (Addrell Coleman) 
(Pages 34-39)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve 

Resolution 24-03 certifying NVTA's 6.67% Equivalent Fund spending for 

Fiscal Year 2022-23. 

Recommendation:

2:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.3 Amendment to Engineering Design, Environmental & Construction 

Document Services for the Vine Trail-Calistoga to St. Helena Project 

(Grant Bailey) (Pages 40-45)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the 

Executive Director or designee to execute and make minor modifications 

to Amendment #7 to Project Work Order No. E-13 to NVTA Agreement 

No. 18-23 with RSA+ for additional bidding assistance & construction 

support scope for an amount not to exceed $7,000.

Recommendation:

2:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 4 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/13/2024

https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e27a1e84-a64d-4a75-a4a8-cb139362b806.pdf
https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=69777131-3e78-4313-b111-ba6639f8385d.pdf
https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1378d8e7-4aed-4f16-8ae7-c336b8b0876f.pdf


March 20, 2024NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

10.4 Vine Trail St. Helena to Calistoga Construction Contract Budget 

Increase (Grant Bailey) (Pages 46-51)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board:

1) Approve an additional $740,000 in construction budget for 

Construction Agreement No. 22-11 with Ghilotti Construction Company, Inc 

for construction of the Vine Trail St Helena to Calistoga Project for an 

amount not to exceed $2,056,709; and 

2) Approve Resolution No. 22-11, Revised authorizing the Executive 

Director, or designee, to issue change orders for Construction Agreement 

No. 22-11 in an amount not to exceed $2,056,709. 

Recommendation:

2:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.5 Amending Contract with Kleinfelder for Construction Services 

(Grant Bailey) (Pages 52-59)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the 

Executive Director to execute and make minor modifications to 

Amendment #2 to Agreement 21-20-CM01 for construction management 

and material testing services with Kleinfelder Construction Services, 

increasing the contract value by $262,262 for an amount not to exceed 

$1,898,826.

Recommendation:

2:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

11. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

Page 5 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/13/2024

https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a49a252f-11ec-4b93-b614-0a0fdf3302eb.pdf
https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ff3890df-1b79-44e3-b197-200d7e6eb844.pdf


March 20, 2024NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

11.1 Proposed Vine Transit Fare Increase (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 

60-84)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board of Directors 

approve the proposed Vine and VineGo fare increases. 

Recommendation:

2:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

11.2 Napa Valley Transportation Authority's (NVTA) Annual Financial 

Statement with Independent Auditor's Report for the Years 

Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and Single Audit Report of 

Uniform Guidance (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 85-184)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board:

(1) Accept and file the Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s 

Report for Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2023 and 2022 and the 

NVTA Single Audit Report of the Uniform Guidance for the Year 

Ended June 30, 2022; and 

(2) Return an allocation surplus of $3,534,631 to the Local 

Transportation Fund (LTF) Trust Fund

Recommendation:

3:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

11.3 Vine Transit Update (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 185-193)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) receive the second 

quarter Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-24 Vine Transit update.

Recommendation:

3:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 6 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/13/2024

https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=de220e01-acdf-4d1b-b4c9-34c4a4529d95.pdf
https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0953a33a-287d-4838-92f7-59fb72d6d5d6.pdf
https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=733adee1-2857-4121-981a-d53f725fe5ff.pdf


March 20, 2024NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

11.4 Federal and State Legislative Update (Kate Miller) (Pages 194-215)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the 

Federal Legislative update, State Legislative Update, and receive a 

briefing for changes on bills included on the State Bill Matrix.

Recommendation:

3:40 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

12. CLOSED SESSION

12.1  Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation: Peters 

v. Burnham, et al, Napa County Superior Court Case No.

23CV001586

Report out of Closed Session.

13. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

14. ADJOURNMENT

14.1  The next Regular Meeting is April 17th.

I hereby certify that the agenda for the above stated meeting was posted at a location freely

accessible to members of the public at the NVTA Offices, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA by

5:00 p.m. by Friday, March 15th.

____________________________________

Laura M. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary

Page 7 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/13/2024

https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=46351ad1-f484-4eac-ad88-c3444f4bc2d7.pdf


Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 01/22 

AB 32 Global Warming Solutions Act 
ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments 

ACFR Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

ADA American with Disabilities Act 

APA American Planning Association 

ATAC Active Transportation Advisory Committee 
ATP Active Transportation Program 
BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

BAB  Build America Bureau 

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

BATA Bay Area Toll Authority 

BIL Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (IIJA) 

BRT Bus Rapid Transit 

CAC Citizen Advisory Committee 
CAP Climate Action Plan  
CAPTI Climate Action Plan for Transportation 

Infrastructure  
Caltrans California Department of Transportation 

CASA Committee to House the Bay Area 

CBTP Community Based Transportation Plan 

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 

CIP Capital Investment Program 

CMA Congestion Management Agency 

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement Program 

CMP Congestion Management Program 

CalSTA California State Transportation Agency 

CTA California Transit Association 
CTP Countywide Transportation Plan  
CTC California Transportation Commission 

CY Calendar Year 

DAA Design Alternative Analyst 

DBB Design-Bid-Build 

DBE Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 

DBF Design-Build-Finance 

DBFOM Design-Build-Finance-Operate-Maintain 

DED Draft Environmental Document  

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EJ Environmental Justice 

EPC Equity Priority Communities  

ETID Electronic Transit Information Displays 

FAS Federal Aid Secondary  
FAST Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act 

FHWA Federal Highway Administration 

FTA Federal Transit Administration 

FY Fiscal Year 

GHG Greenhouse Gas 

GGRF Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund 
GTFS General Transit Feed Specification 

HBP Highway Bridge Program  

HBRR Highway Bridge Replacement and 
Rehabilitation Program  

HIP Housing Incentive Program 

HOT High Occupancy Toll 

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle 

HR3 High Risk Rural Roads  
HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program  
HTF  Highway Trust Fund  
HUTA Highway Users Tax Account 

HVIP  Hybrid & Zero-Emission Truck and Bus 
Voucher Incentive Program 

IFB Invitation for Bid 

ITIP State Interregional Transportation 
Improvement Program 

ITOC Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

IS/MND Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
JARC Job Access and Reverse Commute  
LCTOP Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 

LIFT Low-Income Flexible Transportation 

LOS Level of Service 

LS&R Local Streets & Roads 

LTF  Local Transportation Fund  

MaaS Mobility as a Service 

MAP 21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st 
Century Act 

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

MTS Metropolitan Transportation System 

ND Negative Declaration   

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NOAH Natural Occurring Affordable Housing  
NOC Notice of Completion 

NOD Notice of Determination 



Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 01/22 

NOP Notice of Preparation 

NVTA Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

NVTA-TA Napa Valley Transportation Authority-Tax 
Agency 

OBAG One Bay Area Grant  

PA&ED Project Approval Environmental Document 

P3 or PPP Public-Private Partnership 

PCC Paratransit Coordination Council 
PCI Pavement Condition Index 

PCA Priority Conservation Area 

PDA Priority Development Areas 

PID Project Initiation Document  
PIR Project Initiation Report 

PMS Pavement Management System  
Prop. 42 Statewide Initiative that requires a portion of 

gasoline sales tax revenues be designated to 
transportation purposes 

PSE Plans, Specifications and Estimates 

PSR Project Study Report 

PTA Public Transportation Account  

RACC Regional Agency Coordinating Committee 

RAISE Rebuilding American Infrastructure with 
Sustainability and Equity 

RFP Request for Proposal 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

RHNA Regional Housing Needs Allocation  
RM 2 Regional Measure 2 Bridge Toll 

RM 3 Regional Measure 3 Bridge Toll 

RMRP Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Program 

ROW (R/W) Right of Way  

RTEP Regional Transit Expansion Program 

RTIP Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program 

RTP Regional Transportation Plan 

SAFE Service Authority for Freeways and 
Expressways 

SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient 
Transportation Equity Act-A Legacy for Users 

SB 375 Sustainable Communities and Climate 
Protection Act 2008 

SB 1 The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017 

SCS Sustainable Community Strategy 

SHA State Highway Account 

SHOPP State Highway Operation and Protection 
Program  

SNTDM Solano Napa Travel Demand Model  

SR State Route 

SRTS Safe Routes to School 

SOV Single-Occupant Vehicle 

STA State Transit Assistance 

STIC Small Transit Intensive Cities 

STIP State Transportation Improvement Program 

STP Surface Transportation Program 

TAC Technical Advisory Committee 
TCM Transportation Control Measure 

TCRP Traffic Congestion Relief Program 

TDA Transportation Development Act 

TDM Transportation Demand Management 
 Transportation Demand Model 

TE Transportation Enhancement  

TEA Transportation Enhancement Activities 

TEA 21 Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century 

TFCA Transportation Fund for Clean Air 

TIP Transportation Improvement Program 

TIFIA Transportation Infrastructure Finance and 
Innovation Act  

TIRCP Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program 

TLC Transportation for Livable Communities 

TLU Transportation and Land Use 

TMP Traffic Management Plan 

TMS Transportation Management System 

TNC Transportation Network Companies 

TOAH Transit Oriented Affordable Housing  
TOC Transit Oriented Communities 

TOD Transit-Oriented Development 

TOS Transportation Operations Systems 

TPA Transit Priority Area  
TPI Transit Performance Initiative 

TPP Transit Priority Project Areas 

VHD Vehicle Hours of Delay 

VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled 



March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Public Hearing on the First Reading of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s 
(NVTA) Biennial Budget for Fiscal Years (FY) 2024-25 and 2025-26 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board: 

1. Open the public hearing for the biennial budget; and

2. Review and comment on the FY 2024-25 (FY25) NVTA annual operating budget of
$35,307,000; capital budget of $16,200,000, and Transportation for Clean Air
budget of $500,000 for a total amount of $52,007,000; and

3. Review and comment on the FY 2025-26 (FY26) NVTA annual operating budget of
$28,437,300; capital budget of $0, and Transportation for Clean Air
budget of $500,000 for a total amount of $28,937,300

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

NVTA staff is presenting the two-year biennial budget financial program for FYs 2024-25 
and 2025-26 for review, and comment.     

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a fiscal impact?   Yes, upon adoption of the budget will result in expenditures of 
up to $52,007,000 for FY 2024-25 and $28,937,300 for FY 2025-26 for a two-year total 
appropriation of $80,944,300. 

Fund FY2024-25 Budget FY 2025-26 Budget 
CMA (General Fund) $14,290,800 $6,245,800 
Transit Operations (Enterprise Fund) $20,816,200 $21,991,500 
Capital Budget $16,200,000 $0 
TFCA and Debt Service $700,000 $700,000 
Total $52,007,000 $28,937,300 

10



 

March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director of Administration, Finance and Policy 

(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT:  Public Hearing on the First Reading of the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority’s (NVTA) Biennial Budget for Fiscal Years (FY) 2024-25 and 
2025-26  

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board:  
 

1.  Open the public hearing for the biennial budget; and  
 

2. Review and comment on the FY 2024-25 (FY25) NVTA annual operating budget of  
    $35,307,000; capital budget of $16,200,000, and Transportation for Clean Air       
    budget of $500,000 for a total amount of $52,007,000; and  

 
3. Review and comment on the FY 2025-26 (FY26) NVTA annual operating budget of  
    $28,437,300; capital budget of $0, and Transportation for Clean Air       
    budget of $500,000 for a total amount of $28,937,300. 

 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Paratransit Coordinating Council reviewed and endorsed the Vine Go paratransit 
budget on March 7, 2024.  
 
  

11

mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                             Wednesday, March 20, 2024 
Agenda Item 9.1 

Page 2 of 7 
 

 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
The biennial budget outlines NVTA’s plan for how resources will be used to achieve the 
agency’s goals and objectives over the next two years.  The proposed consolidated 
budget is $52 million in FY 2024-25 and $28.9 million in FY 2025-26. Today’s action 
requests the Board to review and comment on the two-year financial plan. The final draft 
budget, incorporating any changes, will be presented to the NVTA Board at its April 
meeting for approval. 
 
Staff has constrained the budget to the achievable near-term goals and objectives. Any 
expanded project delivery role that may occur due to receipt of unanticipated capital 
revenues over the next two to three years along with additional operating expenses 
necessary for additional support will be incorporated into budget at a future date.  
 
NVTA will receive comments and requests for revisions over the next 30 days for possible 
incorporation into the final draft budgets.  Budgetary adjustments will be brought back to 
the Board over the next two years for any new projects, programs, requests for new 
appropriations, or amendments to carry over unused budgets from the previous year. 
 
NVTA’s top five budgetary expenditures are:  

1. Capital Investments 
2. Purchased Transportation  
3. Professional Fees  
4. Personnel Costs  
5. Fuel  

 
Table 1 summarizes the proposed biennial budget. 
 
Table 1:  Biennial Budget FY25 and FY26  
 
Fund FY2024-25 Budget FY 2025-26 Budget 
CMA (General Fund) $14,290,800 $6,245,800 
Transit Operations (Enterprise Fund) $20,816,200 $21,991,500 
Capital Budget $16,200,000 $0 
TFCA and Debt Service $700,000 $700,000 
Total $52,007,000 $28,937,300 

 
General Fund (CMA)- Planning and Administration   
NVTA’s administrative and planning budget is supported by Transportation 
Development Act (TDA) Funds, One Bay Area Grant planning funds distributed by the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), Federal Highway Funds administered 
by Caltrans, and membership fees.  The biennial operations budget for the CMA is 
shown in Table 2.  
 
  

12



NVTA Agenda Letter                             Wednesday, March 20, 2024 
Agenda Item 9.1 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 
Table 2:  Congestion Management Agency (General Fund) 
Fiscal Year FY2025 FY2026 
Operating Budget   
   Revenues $14,290,800 $6,245,800 
   Expenses* $14,290,800 $6,245,800 

* Unused appropriation in FY25 will be carried over to FY26 
 
Table 3:  Operating Expenses Details 
Fiscal Year FY2025 FY2026 
Personnel Costs $3,127,400 $3,252,400 
Administration $933,400 $933,400 
Professional Fees/Project 
Delivery 

$10,230,000 $2,060,000 

TOTAL CMA $14,290,800 $6,245,800 
 
The personnel costs are for the agency’s 16 approved full time equivalent employee 
positions and administration and for the expenditures related to managing the agency’s 
operations.  A list of general fund programs and projects is included as Attachment 1. The 
top projects incurring Professional Fees include: 
 
1. SR29 Improvements/ American Canyon Corridor Improvements 
2. SR29/SR12/ Airport Environmental Documents 
3. Vine Trail Completion Activities 
4. Soscol Gateway Transit Center Modifications  
5. Soscol Junction Completion Activities 
6. All other projects less than $1 million 
A list of general fund programs and projects is included as Attachment 1.  
 
Public Transit (Enterprise) Fund   
The transit operating budget represents the cost for deploying the Vine, Vine Go, 
community shuttle services in American Canyon, Yountville, the St. Helena, and 
Calistoga. Table 4 shows the biennial budget for the next two years. 
 
Table 4:  Public Transit Fund 
Fiscal Year FY2025 FY2026 
Operating Budget   
   Revenues        $20,813,700 $21,989,000 
   Expenses        $20,813,700 $21,989,000 
   
Capital Budget* $16,200,000 0 

* Unused appropriation in FY25 will be carried over to FY26. 
 
Purchased Transportation and New Transdev Services Contract   
Purchase Transportation costs reflect a new contract which significantly increased costs 
to recruit new drivers.  In addition, there are new costs associated with an increase of 

13



NVTA Agenda Letter  Wednesday, March 20, 2024 
Agenda Item 9.1 

Page 4 of 7 

“dead-head” hours resulting from the move to the new maintenance facility as it is further 
outside the Vine’s primary operating area than the facility on Jackson Street.   Actual 
costs will be based upon services hours performed. 

Fuel  
Fuel costs are projected to increase over the next two years given current geopolitical 
issues and a general overall increase in fuel costs. Buses in St. Helena and Yountville 
will be fueled with electricity as opposed to diesel or gas. Electrical fuel costs for St. 
Helena and Yountville are about half the price when compared to traditional fuels. Other 
fuel savings will be realized as the agency receives delivery of new electric buses. 

The Vine Fixed Route The budget is consistent with agreed upon terms in the new Transit 
Services contract which became effective January 1, 2022. The budget reflects service 
levels based on ridership and demand for services, tempered with the resources that are 
available. NVTA anticipates providing 119,441 hours of service for each of the two fiscal 
years. 

Vine Go (paratransit) The budget is reflective of the growth with the ADA paratransit 
services with service hours based upon demand.  NVTA anticipates providing 12,300 
hours of service for each of the two fiscal years. 

American Canyon Transit The biennial budget is consistent with the current level of 
service hours, which is 5,200 hours per year. NVTA anticipates providing 6,000 hours of 
service for each of the two fiscal years. 

St. Helena Shuttle The budget recommends 4,300 service hours for the next two years, 
above the 3,715 hours provided in FY23.  

Yountville Trolley The budget recommends 4,700 service hours for the next two years, 
well above the current 3,767 hours provided in FY23. 

Calistoga Shuttle The biennial budget is consistent with the current level of service hours, 
which is 5,400 hours per year. The Calistoga Shuttle provided 5,176 service hours in 
FY23. 

Capital Projects Investments for the two fiscal years include procuring additional vehicles 
for Calistoga, and purchasing eight zero emission buses, equipment upgrades, 
enhancements to the Napa Valley College and Redwood Park and Ride. Capital 
investments are detailed in Attachment 1.  

Economic Forecasting and Strategies 
NVTA staff continuously monitor long term financial forecasts from several sources to 
maintain sufficient funding levels for service delivery, agency operations, maintenance, 
capital needs, and to ensure that the agency has the adequate cash flow to attain its 
short- and long-term objectives and goals.  Financial forecasting and fiscal strategies are 

14



NVTA Agenda Letter                             Wednesday, March 20, 2024 
Agenda Item 9.1 

Page 5 of 7 
 

 
employed to establish reserve levels that should be maintained, to inform staff when 
reserves can be increased during economically robust times and to safeguard operational 
stability during fiscally challenging times.  The proposed budget employs conservative 
strategies and fiscal discipline to sustain operational objectives, maintain the capital 
investments in a state of good repair, make necessary capital improvements to enhance 
efficiencies, and improve operations.  
 
Revenue Projections  
Financial indicators show that the local economy will continue to grow, however, 
economic factors indicate that progress is slowing, but not stalling.  Economic growth can 
be stunted by uncontrollable factors such as persistent rise in inflation or rising fuel costs. 
The Federal Reserve’s efforts to stabilize inflation, along with other Federal economic 
policies, has resulted in a persistent healthy job market and lowered interest rates.  As a 
result, it’s anticipated that economic expansion will continue to grow, but  at a very modest 
rate in the next two years.   
 
Transportation Development Act (TDA)   
TDA is the main revenue source for both transit and transportation operations, as such 
growth, or lack thereof in TDA receipts is watched closely.  TDA is a ¼ cent statewide 
revenue source and NVTA receives the revenues generated locally.   Staff uses Measure 
T as a proxy to evaluate TDA revenues as it is a solid indicator of the county’s economic 
health.  Last year, Measure T receipts came in slightly over the previous year’s revenues.  
While staff does not expect the same rate of growth for the next two years, given 
inflationary pressures, a 2% TDA growth rate is judicious.  As of February 2024, the TDA 
reserve was at $16.2 million, up from $15.2 million in the previous year. Some of these 
funds have already been committed to capital projects. 
 
Federal Transit Administration Funds- Section 5307, 5311, 5311f and 5339 formula funds 
President Biden’s Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) makes the largest investment in 
public transit in history. The BIL provides more than $108 billion for public transit, of which 
$9.5 billion is dedicated to the Bay Area over the next five years. That’s approximately 35 
percent more funding than previous years.  This signficant bump in federal funding will 
allow NVTA to purchase new buses, improve operational reliability, and increase service 
when resources allow.  
 
The balance of NVTA’s revenues come from a number of other sources including 
Regional Measure 2 and 3 bridge tolls and farebox, and miscellaneous chargebacks.    
 
Pandemic Recovery - Farebox Recovery Ratio and Fiscal Cliff 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, transit agencies statewide, including Vine Transit, have 
experienced significant declines in some local revenues and farebox revenues.  In 
response, the State of California has provided statutory and regulatory relief for public 
transportation agencies.  Assembly Bill No. 90 (AB 90) was approved by the Governor on 
June 29, 2020.  AB 90 contains changes to transportation statutes, in particular temporary 
relief for public transit operators to meet statutory farebox recovery requirements and c      

15



NVTA Agenda Letter                             Wednesday, March 20, 2024 
Agenda Item 9.1 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 
 
As transit ridership has declined due to secondary affects from the COVID-19 pandemic, 
this language would prevent agencies from being penalized due to outcomes associated 
with the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
Last year’s trailer bill, SB 125 provided $5.1 billion over a two-year period to provide 
funding for public transit system to help stave off the looming fiscal cliff that is anticipated 
to impact most public transit systems around the state, including the Vine, while the 
California State Transportation Agency in conjunction with the Transit Transformation 
Task Force (TTTF) identifies new funding and efficiency measures to sustain the State’s 
public transportation systems. 
 
Small Intensive Capital Cities (STIC) Funds STIC is a federal incentive program that 
provides financial incentives to small, urbanized areas with a population of 200,000 or 
less for achieving higher than average efficiency standards in six (6) areas.  Despite the 
pandemic, the FTA is continuing, and in fact, increasing the amount of STIC funding 
available to small operators.  Napa anticipates receiving one million for FY24 for meeting 
two out of the six efficiency standards. Since the funding is based on performance 
measures and grant awards for these funds are not routine, staff does not customarily 
budget for STIC funding.  
 
State Transit Assistance (STA) STA funding was significantly curtailed during the 
pandemic because these revenues are generated from sales tax on diesel; and fuel sales 
dropped significantly when the economy shut down during the Pandemic.  While these 
generations are rebounding, revenues are likely to be curtailed  over the next two years 
due to State budgetary challenges. 
  
STA revenue generations come into the region on revenue and population formula.  The 
revenue formula is based on the amount of eligible (non-federal and non-state) revenues 
that an agency counts in its transit budget.  For NVTA that is only Regional Measure 2,  
Regional Measure 3 funds and local revenue contributions for shuttle services from the 
small jurisdictions. The STA population funds for the region flow directly to MTC.  While 
STA in total only makes up a small percentage of the agency’s transit budget, the increase 
from the population formula that the agency will receive from the MTC is roughly ten times 
what the agency receives from the revenue formula portion.  
 
Micro Economic Factors 
 
Like many other transit properties, Vine ridership is still struggling to regain passengers. 
And while projected ridership in FY 2023-24 is anticipated to be roughly 62% of pre-
pandemic numbers, the lack of drivers has forced the agency to cut service three times 
which is exacerbating its recovery.   
 
  

16



NVTA Agenda Letter                             Wednesday, March 20, 2024 
Agenda Item 9.1 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 
Despite the dramatic declines in ridership during the pandemic, Vine ridership is 
consistently growing, albeit slowly.  Staff restored transit services to 87% of pre-pandemic 
levels last year and will continue to monitor ridership closely, consider additional 
strategies to capture riders given the ever-changing post-pandemic travel patterns of 
Napa Valley’s community, work force, and visitors.  With assistance from the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission, a proposed transportation measure for the 2026 year, and a 
seat at the State’s TTTF, staff is hopeful that transit will rebound and begin thriving in the 
near future.   
  
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board must adopt a budget by June 30, 2024, for the next fiscal year.   
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently.   
 
The budget appropriation is the legal spending authority approved by the Board of 
Directors which allows the NVTA to coordinate resources for the implementation of 
policies, operations, and project delivery. A budget must be adopted for the next fiscal 
year. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) Detailed FY25 and FY26 Proposed Budgets 

17



Financial Outlook - Consolidated CMA, Public Transit, Debt Service, TFCA
Fuel cost per mile 0.54 0.58 0.60 0.62 1.04 1.25 
Fixed Cost Per Hour 24.00 26.00 

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract  49.63$  51.34$  58.00$  60.00$  64.00$  66.00$  

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Public Transit Service Projections Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 
Service Hours 74,656 101,884 108,423 111,518 151,841 151,841 
Revenue Hours 61,931 82,053 85,902 91,105 129,347 129,334 
Service Miles 1,079,018 1,396,362 1,423,278 1,605,447 1,875,825 1,876,018 
Revenue Miles 961,390 1,215,347 1,267,145 1,448,949 1,668,090 1,668,090 
Ridership 261,988 428,145 471,165 483,823 559,720 562,920 

 Service Costs - - - - $9,668,900 $10,124,100
Fixed Cost Allocation - - - - $3,644,200 $3,995,300
Total-  Contracted Services - - - - $13,313,100 $14,119,400

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 

Transportation Development Act 4,516,068 7,171,811 7,984,968 10,322,900 9,120,800 8,200,100 
State Funds (ie Caltrans) 5,139,020 3,014,697 2,000,500 5,337,000 5,910,000 3,910,000 
Federal Funds-  FTA/FHWA 5,837,778 7,873,609 8,916,566 16,344,500 8,476,900 7,576,900 
Other Gov Agencies 523,911 1,546,119 3,798,280 9,722,200 3,700,000 2,900,000 
Interest 73,534 62,669 159,509 54,300 69,400 69,400 
Other Revenues - 3,500,000 900,000 
Charges for Services 1,059,178 1,093,577 1,644,433 927,800 757,600 790,600 
Charges for Services-Amcan 23,000 9,619 42,709 50,000 80,000 90,800 
Charges for Service-Yountville 38,971 - 28,853 50,000 55,000 58,500 
Charges for Services-St Helena 34,883 - 48,975 41,400 41,300 45,000 
Charges for Services-Calistoga 38,125 45,000 42,500 65,000 70,000 70,000 
Miscellaneous - (2,015,623) - - - - 
Intrafund Transfers-In (Timesheet Chargebacks) - - - 441,000 441,000 441,000 
Economic Adjustment 3,545,000 3,585,000 3,885,000 

Total Revenues $17,284,468 $18,801,478 $24,667,293 $46,901,100 $35,807,000 $28,937,300

Salaries and Wages 1,245,507 1,396,644 1,351,136 2,000,000 2,200,000 2,300,000 
Extra Help 5,247 34,653 5,535 - 20,000 20,000 
401A Employer Contribution 17,470 13,605 24,214 35,500 24,500 24,500 
Cell Phone Allowance 5,959 6,484 7,134 12,000 9,000 9,000 
Medicare 23,650 24,481 26,864 45,300 42,300 42,300 
Employee Insurance-Premiums 303,977 320,870 323,571 365,000 350,000 375,000 
Workers Compensation 5,172 2,671 1,061 12,000 7,900 7,900 
Unemployment Compensation 2,117 1,943 2,266 20,000 5,000 5,000 
Retirement 337,562 121,168 372,544 390,000 375,000 375,000 
Other Post Employment Benefits 46,874 50,289 64,779 80,000 40,000 40,000 
Other Employee Benefits 4,026 8,429 10,855 65,000 53,700 53,700 

Total for: Salaries and Benefits $1,997,561 $1,981,237 $2,189,959 $3,024,800 $3,127,400 $3,252,400

Administration Services 2,430 2,861 3,374 5,000 5,000 5,000 
Accounting/Auditing Services/Lobbyist 101,832 115,086 128,590 73,400 94,100 94,100 
Information Technology Service 124,890 109,885 123,037 160,500 170,000 170,000 
ITS-Communication Services 22,786 25,800 19,387 30,000 35,000 35,000 
Legal Services 140,214 101,535 78,010 70,000 80,000 80,000 
Temporary/Contract Help - - 9,520 - - - 
Consulting Services 4,919,278 2,735,614 6,040,327 21,652,000 10,730,000 2,560,000 
Waste Disposal Services 11,922 22,645 28,691 36,600 33,900 33,900 
Security Services 13,405 31,466 36,226 38,000 23,000 23,000 
Landscaping Services 9,875 10,080 5,263 10,000 7,500 7,500 
Purchased Transportation 7,726,001 9,400,384 10,459,907 13,434,300 13,313,100 14,119,400 
Maintenance-Equipment 104,692 44,145 179,325 435,000 445,000 345,000 
Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 131,666 135,892 142,971 175,000 150,000 150,000 
Maintenance-Software 139,934 142,995 405,200 250,000 275,000 275,000 
Maintenance-Vehicles 104,566 308,699 372,371 399,100 67,000 67,000 
Rents and Leases - Equipment 6,399 28,365 6,807 7,500 7,000 7,000 
Insurance - Premiums 456,960 428,116 370,203 537,000 454,000 454,000 
Communications/Telephone 19,125 44,032 68,534 87,000 16,300 16,300 
Advertising/Marketing 69,220 82,321 121,997 142,000 187,000 187,000 
Printing & Binding 51,158 82,809 51,281 30,000 88,200 88,200 
Bank Charges 4,153 9,069 12,963 17,000 17,000 17,000 
Publications & Legal Notices 17,195 9,607 21,478 25,000 13,000 13,000 
Training/Conference Expenses 4,599 30,016 65,921 40,000 25,000 25,000 
Business Travel/Mileage 233 3,387 10,125 8,700 15,000 15,000 
Office Supplies 109,240 48,447 51,414 41,500 31,500 31,500 
Freight/Postage 3,888 3,816 4,377 3,000 3,000 3,000 
Books/Media/Periodicals/Subscr 10,826 13,386 14,934 10,000 6,000 6,000 
Memberships/Certifications 70,722 41,803 46,736 60,000 50,000 50,000 
Utilities - Electric 31,090 54,427 65,723 65,000 45,000 45,000 
Utilities - Water 17,804 13,755 16,924 27,500 32,000 32,000 
Fuel 814,375 1,395,188 1,477,657 1,606,200 1,786,000 1,955,000 
Interest Expense - - 128,600 450,000 400,000 400,000 
Depreciation Expense 2,576,209 1,722,618 2,217,324 3,545,000 3,585,000 3,885,000 

Total for: Services and Supplies 17,816,687 17,198,249             22,785,197              43,471,300              32,189,600              25,194,900              

Salary/Overhead Allocation 350,940 379,252 442,326 405,000 490,000 490,000 
Total for: Other Expenses 350,940 379,252 442,326 405,000 490,000 490,000 

Total Expenses 20,165,188 19,558,738             25,417,482              46,901,100              35,807,000              28,937,300              

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (2,880,720)  (757,260)  (750,189)  -  -  -  

CAPITAL BUDGETS
TDA 465,998 3,451,336 300,776 2,000,000 2,894,000 - 
Federal - 4,867,978 2,659,955 2,000,000 8,556,800 - 
State/Other Revenues - 3,071,132 18,379,462 8,038,800 4,749,200 - 

Total Revenues 465,998 8,319,314               21,340,193              12,038,800              16,200,000              - 

Rolling Stock (Buses) $0 $3,371,441 $1,968,398 $425,000 $11,700,000 $0
Facilities $0 $9,238,482 $18,769,832 $8,638,800 $3,600,000 $0
Equipment $556,457 $3,395,252 $601,963 $2,975,000 $900,000 $0

Total for: Other Expenses $556,457 $16,005,175 $21,340,193 $12,038,800 $16,200,000 $0

Net Surplus (Deficit) - - - - - - 

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Actuals Actuals Actuals Budget  Budget  Budget 

CMA Budget 7,866,834 5,613,811 9,296,004$              25,745,300$            14,290,800$            6,245,800$              
Transit Budget 12,265,554 13,947,378             $16,054,809 $20,905,800 $20,816,200 $21,991,500

Debt Service - - $66,669 $250,000 $200,000 $200,000
Capital Budget 556,457 16,005,175             21,340,193              12,038,800              16,200,000              - 

TFCA 185,271 251,814 $0 $0 $500,000 $500,000
Consolidated Budget (Actuals) $18,145,436 $33,841,295 $44,540,351 $55,394,900 $52,007,000 $28,937,300

Revenues

Expenses

Revenues

Expenses

ATTACHMENT 1
NVTA AGENDA ITEM 9.1
MARCH 20, 2024

18



Outlook - TFCA Budget
***The amounts contained in this file are for planning and forecasting purposes only. Go to www.nvta.ca.gov for audited financial statements.

FY21 FY22 FY23* FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 

Other Revenues - - - - 500,000 500,000 
Total Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $500,000 $500,000

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Consulting Services - - - - 500,000 500,000 

Total for: Services and Supplies - - - - 500,000 500,000 

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $500,000 $500,000

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) - -              - - - - 

Revenues

19



Outlook - Debt Service
***The amounts contained in this file are for planning and forecasting purposes only. Go to www.nvta.ca.gov for audited financial statements.

FY21 FY22 FY23* FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 

Transportation Development Act -                              -                          16,000                       250,000                        200,000                     200,000                     
Total Revenues $0 $0 $16,000 $250,000 $200,000 $200,000

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Interest Expense/Debt Service -                              -                          66,669                       250,000                        200,000                     200,000                     

Total for: Services and Supplies -                           -                       66,669                   250,000                     200,000                 200,000                 

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $66,669 $250,000 $200,000 $200,000

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -                -              (50,669)        -                 -               -               

Revenues

Expenses

20



Outlook - Congestion Management Agency
***The amounts contained in this file are for planning and forecasting purposes only. Go to www.nvta.ca.gov for audited financial statements.

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 

Transportation Development Act 1,746,100                   3,159,928                     3,362,200                 2,704,500                     2,829,800                     1,384,800                 
State Funds (ie Caltrans) 4,084,848                   1,008,446                     689,156                    2,150,000                     3,000,000                     1,000,000                 
Federal Funds-  FTA/FHWA 899,263                      1,064,273                     3,322,667                 10,932,600                   3,000,000                     2,000,000                 
Other Org/Governmental Agencies 79,373                        160,602                        1,563,063                 9,222,200                     2,000,000                     1,000,000                 
Interest 16,569                        35,995                          76,969                      30,000                          20,000                          20,000                      
Other Revenues 678,604                      567,719                        936,330                    265,000                        3,000,000                     400,000                    
Intrafund Transfers-In (Timesheet Chargebacks) -                              -                                -                            441,000                        441,000                        441,000                    

Total Revenues $5,758,657 $2,837,035 $6,588,185 $25,745,300 $14,290,800 $6,245,800

Salaries and Wages 1,245,507                   1,396,644                     1,351,136                 2,000,000                     2,200,000                     2,300,000                 
Extra Help 5,247                          34,653                          5,535                        -                                20,000                          20,000                      
457 Employer Contribution 17,470                        13,605                          24,214                      35,500                          24,500                          24,500                      
Cell Phone Allowance 5,959                          6,484                            7,134                        12,000                          9,000                            9,000                        
Medicare/Employer Taxes 23,650                        24,481                          26,864                      45,300                          42,300                          42,300                      
Employee Insurance-Premiums 303,977                      320,870                        323,571                    365,000                        350,000                        375,000                    
Workers Compensation 5,172                          2,671                            1,061                        12,000                          7,900                            7,900                        
Unemployment Compensation 2,117                          1,943                            2,266                        20,000                          5,000                            5,000                        
Retirement 337,562                      121,168                        372,544                    390,000                        375,000                        375,000                    
Other Post Employment Benefits 46,874                        50,289                          64,779                      80,000                          40,000                          40,000                      
Other Employee Benefits 4,026                          8,429                            10,855                      65,000                          53,700                          53,700                      

Total for: Salaries and Benefits $1,997,561 $1,981,237 $2,189,959 $3,024,800 $3,127,400 $3,252,400

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Administration Services 2,430                          2,861                            3,374                        5,000                            5,000                            5,000                        
Accounting/Auditing Services/Lobbyist 99,192                        110,362                        124,964                    70,000                          80,000                          80,000                      
Information Technology Service 88,665                        107,198                        123,037                    155,000                        155,000                        155,000                    
ITS-Communication Services 22,786                        25,800                          19,387                      30,000                          35,000                          35,000                      
Legal Services 140,214                      101,535                        78,010                      70,000                          80,000                          80,000                      
Temporary/Contract Help -                              -                                9,520                        -                                -                                -                            
Consulting Services 4,919,278                   2,699,428                     6,040,327                 21,652,000                   10,230,000                   2,060,000                 
Waste Disposal Services 2,464                          4,261                            5,769                        6,600                            3,900                            3,900                        
Security Services 1,700                          5,877                            8,895                        23,000                          8,000                            8,000                        
Landscaping Services 3,900                          3,931                            5,263                        10,000                          7,500                            7,500                        
Maintenance-Equipment 9,150                          20,251                          5,457                        25,000                          25,000                          25,000                      
Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 123,784                      135,892                        130,247                    100,000                        75,000                          75,000                      
Maintenance-Software 63,619                        80,553                          84,664                      80,000                          50,000                          50,000                      
Maintenance-Vehicles 38,936                        9                                   -                            2,000                            2,000                            2,000                        
Rents and Leases - Equipment 6,399                          7,466                            6,807                        7,500                            7,000                            7,000                        
Insurance - Premiums 56,701                        55,657                          63,778                      75,000                          60,000                          60,000                      
Communications/Telephone 6,878                          9,122                            14,404                      40,000                          15,000                          15,000                      
Advertising/Marketing 7,913                          54,361                          106,895                    60,000                          75,000                          75,000                      
Printing & Binding 32,035                        18,301                          8,369                        15,000                          15,000                          15,000                      
Bank Charges 428                             836                               191                           15,000                          15,000                          15,000                      
Publications & Legal Notices 16,501                        8,796                            20,973                      20,000                          8,000                            8,000                        
Training/Conference Expenses 4,599                          30,016                          65,921                      40,000                          25,000                          25,000                      
Business Travel/Mileage 233                             3,387                            10,125                      8,700                            15,000                          15,000                      
Office Supplies 98,465                        39,544                          46,527                      35,000                          25,000                          25,000                      
Freight/Postage 3,888                          3,816                            4,377                        3,000                            3,000                            3,000                        
Books/Media/Periodicals/Subscr 10,826                        13,386                          14,934                      10,000                          6,000                            6,000                        
Memberships/Certifications 70,722                        41,803                          46,736                      60,000                          50,000                          50,000                      
Utilities - Electric 27,189                        40,130                          48,712                      45,000                          25,000                          25,000                      
Utilities - Water 10,276                        7,878                            8,305                        7,500                            12,000                          12,000                      
Fuel 102                             117                               77                             200                               1,000                            1,000                        
Interest Expense -                              -                                -                            50,000                          50,000                          50,000                      

Total for: Services and Supplies 5,869,273               3,632,574                  7,106,045              22,720,500               11,163,400               2,993,400              

Intrafund Transfers Out (Allocated Labor)
Total for: Other Expenses -                          -                            -                         -                            -                            -                         

Total Expenditures $7,866,834 $5,613,811 $9,296,004 $25,745,300 $14,290,800 $6,245,800
-                            

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (2,108,177)    (2,776,776)      (2,707,819)   -                  -                  -               

Less Depreciation -                              -                                -                            -                                -                                -                            

Revenues

Expenses

21



Special Projects:  Professional Fees/ Consultant Details

No.

Special Projects/Programs
See Next Page for Transit Projects Funding Source FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 Total Notes/ Funding Rationale

1 ADA Management Services (ADA Ride) TDA 60,000                             60,000                         120,000                       

2 Agency Workplace Coaching/Consulting TDA 10,000                             -                               10,000                         

3 Active Transportation Plan CMA/OBAG 325,000                           -                               325,000                       

4 Capital Projects - Project Management/Coordination/Oversight (various tasks) CMA/OBAG 300,000                           300,000                       

5 Carneros Intersection Environmental/Engineering RM3 350,000                           350,000                       RM3

6 ZEB implementation and quality assurance TDA 40,000                             -                               40,000                         

7 Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP) CMA/OBAG 325,000                           -                               325,000                       CMA for 25-26

8 Imola Corridor-Supplemental Engineering/Design CMA/OBAG 50,000                             50,000                         
9 Active Transportation Biennial Report CMA/OBAG 40,000                             -                               40,000                         25-26 after completion of AT Plan

10 Safe Routes UNASSIGNED 150,000                           -                               150,000                       To schools/transit/for seniors
11 Accessible Transportation Needs Assessment CMA/OBAG 200,000                           -                               200,000                       Any eligible FTA funding?
12 Soscol Junction Activities RM3 1,000,000                        1,000,000                    RM 3
13 SR29 Improvements/ Napa Forward (North Valley) MTC 140,000                           140,000                       
14 SR 29 American Canyon Corridor Improvements (South Valley) OBAG3/RM3/Other 2,500,000                        2,000,000                    4,500,000                    OBAG 3, Caltrans settlement, Rm 3
15 SR29/SR 12/Airport Environmental Document RM3 1,500,000                        1,500,000                    RM 3
16 Travel Behavior Study CMA/OBAG 300,000                           -                               300,000                       CMA
17 Travel Demand Model Operations and Maintenance (O&M) CMA/OBAG 25,000                             -                               25,000                         
18 Upstairs Office Partitioning/ Ground Floor Office Area Construction TDA 700,000                           -                               700,000                       

19 V Commute/TDM/Ride Amigos (rideshare services) Various 360,000                           -                               360,000                       

Includes Ride Amigos Platform annual 
subscription, TDM Outreach consultant, GRH, 
Bucks for Bikes, rewards programs, Collateral 
(May use TFCA if no other qualifying projects 
are submitted)

20 Vision Zero Biennial Report CMA/OBAG 20,000                             -                               20,000                         LRSP specific funds
21 Website Enhancements/Upgrades TDA 25,000                             -                               25,000                         
22 Community Based Transportation Plan (CBTP) CMA/OBAG 200,000                           -                               200,000                       CBTP specific funds
23 Outreach Consultant-(for CTP, AT, CBTP Plans and transit survey) CMA/OBAG 150,000                           -                               150,000                       
24 Measure T dashboard Measure T 60,000                             -                               60,000                         Measure T admin 
25 Vine Trail Completion Activities ATP/Local Funds 1,000,000                        -                               1,000,000                    
26 Comprehensive Operational Analysis (COA) CMA/OBAG 150,000                           150,000                       
36 Sheehy Ct. Battery Electric Storage CEQA and Design TDA 250,000                           -                               250,000                       

TOTAL SPECIAL PROJECTS TOTALS 10,230,000$                2,060,000$               

22



Outlook - Consolidated: Vine Transit Services
Fuel cost per mile 0.54                           0.58                            0.60                           0.62                           1.04                           1.25                           
Fixed Cost Per Hour 24.00                              26.00                              

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract  49.63$                            51.34$                             58.00$                            60.00$                            62.00$                            65.00$                            

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Public Transit Service Projections Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 
Service Hours 74,656                       101,884                      108,423                     111,518                     151,841                     151,841                     
Revenue Hours 61,931                       82,053                        85,902                       91,105                       129,347                     129,334                     
Service Miles 1,079,018                  1,396,362                   1,423,278                  1,605,447                  1,875,825                  1,876,018                  
Revenue Miles 961,390                     1,215,347                   1,267,145                  1,448,949                  1,668,090                  1,668,090                  
Ridership 261,988                     428,145                      471,165                     483,823                     559,720                     562,920                     

 Service Costs 9,668,900                  10,124,100                
Fixed Cost Allocation 3,644,200                  3,995,300                  
Total-  Contracted Services -                             -                              -                             -                             13,313,100                14,119,400                

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Public Transit Service Projections Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 

41400 Transportation Development Act 2,769,968                  4,011,883                   4,606,768                  7,368,400                  6,091,000                  6,615,300                  
43790 State Transit Assistance 1,054,172                  2,006,251                   1,311,344                  3,187,000                  2,910,000                  2,910,000                  
43890 Federal Funds-  FTA 4,938,515                  6,809,336                   5,593,899                  5,411,900                  5,476,900                  5,576,900                  
43950 Other Gov Agencies 444,538                     1,385,517                   2,235,217                  500,000                     1,700,000                  1,900,000                  
45100 Interest 56,965                       26,674                        82,540                       24,300                       49,400                       49,400                       

Other Revenues
46800 Charges for Services (Farebox) 380,574                     525,858                      708,103                     662,800                     757,600                     790,600                     
46810 Charges for Services-Amcan 23,000                       9,619                          42,709                       50,000                       80,000                       90,800                       
46820 Charges for Service-Yountville 38,971                       -                              28,853                       50,000                       55,000                       58,500                       
46825 Charges for Services-St Helena 34,883                       -                              48,975                       41,400                       41,300                       45,000                       
46830 Charges for Services-Calistoga 38,125                       45,000                        42,500                       65,000                       70,000                       70,000                       
47900 Miscellaneous -                             (2,015,623)                  -                             -                             -                             -                             
49900 Intrafund Transfers-In (Timesheet Chargebacks) -                             -                              -                             -                             -                             -                             

Non Cash Budget Items Economic Adjustment 3,545,000                  3,585,000                  3,885,000                  
Total Revenues $9,779,711 $12,804,515 $14,700,908 $20,905,800 $20,816,200 $21,991,500

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
52125 Accounting/Auditing Services/Lobbyist 2,640                         4,724                          3,626                         3,400                         14,100                       14,100                       
52130 Information Technology Service 36,225                       2,687                          -                             5,500                         15,000                       15,000                       
52310 Consulting Services -                             36,186                        -                             -                             -                             -                             
52325 Waste Disposal Services 9,458                         18,384                        22,922                       30,000                       30,000                       30,000                       

52335 Security Services 11,705                       25,589                        27,331                       15,000                       15,000                       15,000                       

52340 Landscaping Services 5,975                         6,149                          -                             -                             -                             -                             
52490 Purchased Transportation 7,726,001                  9,400,384                   10,459,907                13,434,300                13,313,100                14,119,400                
52500 Maintenance-Equipment 95,542                       23,894                        173,868                     410,000                     420,000                     320,000                     
52505 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 7,882                         -                              12,724                       75,000                       75,000                       75,000                       
52515 Maintenance-Software 76,315                       62,442                        320,536                     170,000                     225,000                     225,000                     
52520 Maintenance-Vehicles 65,630                       308,690                      372,371                     397,100                     65,000                       65,000                       
52600 Rents and Leases - Equipment -                             20,899                        -                             -                             -                             -                             
52705 Insurance - Premiums 400,259                     372,459                      306,425                     462,000                     394,000                     394,000                     
52800 Communications/Telephone 12,247                       34,910                        54,130                       47,000                       1,300                         1,300                         
52810 Advertising/Marketing 61,307                       27,960                        15,102                       82,000                       112,000                     112,000                     
52820 Printing & Binding 19,123                       64,508                        42,912                       15,000                       73,200                       73,200                       
52825 Bank Charges 3,725                         8,233                          12,772                       2,000                         2,000                         2,000                         
52830 Publications & Legal Notices 694                            811                             505                            5,000                         5,000                         5,000                         
53100 Office Supplies 10,775                       8,903                          4,887                         6,500                         6,500                         6,500                         
53110 Freight/Postage -                             -                              -                             -                             -                             -                             
53205 Utilities - Electric 3,901                         14,297                        17,011                       20,000                       20,000                       20,000                       
53220 Utilities - Water 7,528                         5,877                          8,619                         20,000                       20,000                       20,000                       
53250 Fuel 814,273                     1,395,071                   1,477,580                  1,606,000                  1,785,000                  1,954,000                  

Interest Expense (Bank of Marin) -                             -                              61,931                       150,000                     150,000                     150,000                     
54,600       Depreciation Expense 2,576,209                  1,722,618                   2,217,324                  3,545,000                  3,585,000                  3,885,000                  

52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 11,947,414            13,565,675             15,612,483            20,500,800            20,326,200            21,501,500            

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out (Allocated Labor/Overhead) 350,940                     379,252                      442,326                     405,000                     490,000                     490,000                     
>='54 Total for: Other Expenses 350,940                 379,252                  442,326                 405,000                 490,000                 490,000                 

5* Total Expenses 12,298,354            13,944,927             16,054,809            20,905,800            20,816,200            21,991,500            

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (2,518,643)   (1,140,412)    (1,353,901)   -               -               -               

Revenues

23



Updated 12/26/2023

V1. V2. V3. F1. F2. F3. F4. F5. E1. E2. E3.

TOTALS Rolling Stock
TBD

Rolling Stock
5310 Buses

8 ZEBs
Gillig

SGTC & Maint 
Facility Upgrades

Park and Ride 
Upgrades

Bus amenities and 
facilities

Redwood Park and 
Ride Upgrades

Napa Valley 
College

Transit Equipment 
Upgrades

Transit Signal 
Priority (City of 

Napa)
SGR/Preventive 

Maintenance
SGR/Preventive 

Maintenance
SGR/Preventive 

Maintenance

Unassigned Secured Secured Secured Secured Unassigned Secured Secured Secured Unassigned Unassigned

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS $16,200,000 $1,000,000 $700,000 $10,000,000 $600,000 $200,000 $200,000 $1,600,000 $1,000,000 $400,000 $500,000 $0

Funding Source:
FTA 5307/5339 7,596,800        - - 7,596,800          - - - - - - - - 
FTA 5310 360,000           - 360,000             - - - - - - - - - 
FTA Other 600,000           - - - - - - 600,000             - - - 

- - - - - - - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - - - - - - 

STATE: LCTOP 1,289,200        - - 1,289,200          - - - - - - - - 
STATE: HVIP - - - - - - - - - - - - 
STATE: STA Lifeline - - - - - - - - - - - - 
STATE: STA Reg. Para - - - - - - - - - - - - 
STA Small Ops - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Other Reven - - - - - - - - - - - - 
MTC: Special Purpose - - - - - - - - - - - - 
RM3 2,500,000        - - - 1,000,000          1,000,000          - 500,000             - 
Other Funds - - - - - - - - - - - - 
HVIP - - 960,000             - - - - - - - - 
TDA (LTF) 2,894,000        1,000,000          340,000             154,000             600,000          200,000             200,000             - - 400,000             - - 
TOTAL FOR YEAR $16,200,000 $1,000,000 $700,000 $10,000,000 $600,000 $200,000 $200,000 $1,600,000 $1,000,000 $400,000 $500,000 $0

Intrafund Transfers-In (Tim $0 $0 $0 # $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Economic Adjustment $0 $0

FUNDING STATUS

TRANSIT CAPITAL INVESTMENTS FY 2025 & FY 2026

ROLLING STOCK EQUIPMENT

PROJECT

DEPT

FACILITIES

24



Financial Outlook - Vine Go
Cost per mile 0.95                             1.05                            1.10                            1.20                            1.55                            1.75                            

Fixed Cost Per Hour 24.00                          26.00                          
 Total Hourly Cost per Contract  49.63$                         51.34$                        58.00$                        60.00$                        65.00$                        68.00$                        

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Public Transit Service Projections Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 
Service Hours 4,843                       8,087                      12,201                    11,000                    12,300                    12,300                    
Revenue Hours 3,043                       5,344                      8,613                      7,500                      8,613                      8,600                      
Service Miles 56,314                     87,845                    120,807                  125,000                  120,807                  121,000                  
Revenue Miles 40,053                     64,560                    91,331                    85,000                    91,300                    91,300                    
Ridership 3,316                       6,344                      13,340                    8,000                      13,000                    13,100                    

Service Costs 799,500                  836,400                  
Fixed Cost Allocation 295,200                  319,800                  
Total-  Contracted Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,094,700 $1,156,200

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 

Transportation Development Act 978,972                   594,297                  739,800                  602,000                  784,200                  852,700                  
State Transit Assistance 100,000                   156,900                  -                          200,000                  100,000                  100,000                  
Federal Funds-  FTA 89,968                     663,841                  674,512                  500,000                  400,000                  400,000                  
Other Revenues -                           -                          -                          -                          
Interest (60)                           5,014                      9,187                      4,000                      1,000                      1,000                      
Farebox 14,858                     40,492                    54,183                    50,000                    52,000                    55,000                    
Miscellaneous/Other Grants -                           35,201                    -                          -                          -                          -                          
Economic Adjustment 120,000                  120,000                  120,000                  

Total Revenues $1,183,738 $1,495,745 $1,477,682 $1,476,000 $1,457,200 $1,528,700

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Accounting/Auditing Services 120                          533                         868                         2,000                      2,500                      2,500                      
Information Technology Service 3,746                       -                          -                          2,500                      2,500                      2,500                      
Consulting Services 36,186                    
Purchased Transportation 454,280                   637,154                  1,042,767               1,110,000               1,094,700               1,156,200               
Maintenance-Vehicles 6,149                       9,156                      -                          25,000                    25,000                    25,000                    
Insurance - Premiums 44,124                     26,639                    24,899                    55,000                    35,000                    35,000                    
Communications/Telephone 652                         2,119                      -                          -                          -                          
Advertising/Marketing -                           -                          -                          5,000                      5,000                      5,000                      
Printing & Binding -                           531                         797                         1,000                      2,000                      2,000                      
Publications & Legal Notices -                          225                         -                          -                          -                          
Office Supplies -                          17                           500                         500                         500                         
Fuel 77,204                     146,632                  146,954                  115,000                  130,000                  140,000                  
Depreciation Expense 93,394                     54,731                    54,731                    120,000                  120,000                  120,000                  

Total for: Services and Supplies 679,017                912,214               1,273,377            1,436,000            1,417,200            1,488,700            

Intrafund Transfers Out (Allocated Labor/Overhead) 50,659                     66,913                    39,815                    40,000                    40,000                    40,000                    
Total for: Other Expenses 50,659                  66,913                 39,815                 40,000                 40,000                 40,000                 

Total Expenses 729,676                979,127               1,313,192            1,476,000            1,457,200            1,528,700            

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 454,062       516,618      164,490      -              -              -              
ok ok ok

Revenues

25



Financial Outlook - Vine
Cost per mile 0.54                           0.58                           0.60                           0.62                           1.04                           1.25                           
Fixed Cost Per Hour 24.00                         26.00                         

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract  49.63$                            51.34$                            58.00$                            60.00$                            65.00$                            68.00$                            

FY21 FY22 FY23* FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Public Transit Service Projections Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 
Service Hours 56,791                       75,560                       77,708                       80,318                       119,441                     119,441                     
Revenue Hours 46,751                       60,471                       60,829                       64,379                       101,653                     101,653                     
Service Miles 950,313                     1,168,670                  1,153,245                  1,353,766                  1,639,475                  1,639,475                  
Revenue Miles 865,159                     1,052,870                  1,086,917                  1,271,419                  1,486,131                  1,486,131                  
Ridership 236,082                     369,444                     413,166                     429,681                     509,861                     512,861                     

Service Costs 7,763,900                  8,121,900                  
Fixed Cost Allocation 2,866,600                  3,105,500                  
Total-  Contracted Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,630,500 $11,227,400

FY21 FY22 FY23* FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 

Transportation Development Act 435,001                     2,346,719                  2,447,478                  5,763,000                  4,518,400                  4,835,300                  
State Transit Assistance 702,172                     1,319,351                  1,111,344                  2,832,000                  2,500,000                  2,500,000                  
Federal Funds-  FTA 4,381,443                  4,272,242                  3,908,793                  4,140,000                  4,400,000                  4,500,000                  
Other Revenues 444,538                     1,385,517                  2,235,217                  500,000                     1,700,000                  1,900,000                  
Interest 49,911                       11,044                       62,214                       15,000                       44,100                       44,100                       
Farebox 351,866                     478,001                     627,186                     600,000                     690,000                     720,000                     
Miscellaneous/(Disposal) -                             (2,062,247)                 -                             -                             -                             -                             
Economic Adjustment 3,200,000                  3,200,000                  3,500,000                  

Total Revenues $6,364,931 $7,750,627 $10,392,232 $17,050,000 $17,052,500 $17,999,400

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Accounting/Auditing Services 2,290                         3,991                     2,604                         -                             10,000                       10,000                       
Information Technology Service 27,474                       -                         -                             -                             10,000                       10,000                       
Waste Disposal Services 9,458                         18,384                   22,922                       30,000                       30,000                       30,000                       
Security Services 11,705                       25,589                   27,331                       15,000                       15,000                       15,000                       
Landscaping Services 5,975                         6,149                     -                             -                             -                             -                             
Purchased Transportation 6,078,808                  7,336,874              7,872,803                  10,625,000                10,630,500                11,227,400                
Maintenance-Equipment 43,081                       699                        173,868                     400,000                     400,000                     300,000                     
Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 7,882                         -                         12,724                       75,000                       75,000                       75,000                       
Maintenance-Software 76,315                       62,442                   202,136                     100,000                     100,000                     100,000                     
Maintenance-Vehicles 59,481                       276,338                 372,371                     350,000                     25,000                       25,000                       
Rents and Leases - Equipment 20,899                   -                             -                             -                             -                             
Insurance - Premiums 237,485                     286,655                 242,839                     310,000                     300,000                     300,000                     
Communications/Telephone 10,739                       34,108                   45,106                       45,000                       -                             -                             
Advertising/Marketing 61,307                       27,960                   1,700                         65,000                       90,000                       90,000                       
Printing & Binding 12,057                       59,553                   40,399                       8,000                         65,000                       65,000                       
Bank Charges 3,725                         8,233                     12,772                       2,000                         2,000                         2,000                         
Publications & Legal Notices 694                            811                        280                            5,000                         5,000                         5,000                         
Office Supplies 10,775                       7,809                     4,870                         5,000                         5,000                         5,000                         
Freight/Postage -                             -                         -                             -                             -                             -                             
Utilities - Electric 3,901                         14,297                   17,011                       20,000                       20,000                       20,000                       
Utilities - Water 7,528                         5,877                     8,619                         20,000                       20,000                       20,000                       
Fuel 699,066                     1,176,124              1,257,256                  1,400,000                  1,550,000                  1,700,000                  
Interest Expense (TIFIA/Bank of Marin) -                             -                         61,931                       150,000                     150,000                     150,000                     
Depreciation Expense 2,441,553                  1,651,442                  2,046,782                  3,200,000                  3,200,000                  3,500,000                  

Total for: Services and Supplies 9,811,299              11,024,234            12,426,324            16,825,000            16,702,500            17,649,400            

Intrafund Transfers Out (Allocated Labor/Overhead) 252,226                     230,816                     359,565                     225,000                     350,000                     350,000                     
Total for: Other Expenses 252,226                 230,816                 359,565                 225,000                 350,000                 350,000                 

Total Expenses 10,063,525            11,255,050            12,785,889            17,050,000            17,052,500            17,999,400            
-                      64,306                

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (3,698,594)    (3,504,423)    (2,393,657)    -               -               -               

Revenues

26



Financial Outlook - American Canyon
Cost per mile 0.95$                          1.05$                          1.10$                          1.20$                          1.25                            1.40                            

Fixed Cost Per Hour 24.00                          26.00                          

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract  49.63$                        51.34$                        58.00$                        60.00$                        55.00$                        58.00$                        

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Public Transit Service Projections Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 
Service Hours 2,535                      5,867                      5,856                      6,000                      6,000                      6,000                      
Revenue Hours 2,321                      4,995                      4,999                      6,500                      6,500                      6,500                      
Service Miles 21,356                    45,960                    52,696                    48,000                    48,000                    48,000                    
Revenue Miles 15,827                    47,004                    34,669                    36,000                    36,000                    36,000                    
Ridership 6,730                      29,439                    19,327                    16,000                    16,000                    16,000                    

Service Costs 360,000                  330,000                  348,000                  
Fixed Cost Allocation -                          140,000                  144,000                  195,000                  
Total-  Contracted Services $0 $0 $0 $500,000 $474,000 $543,000

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 

Transportation Development Act 562,435                  -                          200,000                  110,200                  26,000                    87,200                    
State Transit Assistance -                          -                          -                          80,000                    80,000                    80,000                    
Federal Funds-  FTA -                          1,344,344               476,426                  400,000                  400,000                  400,000                  
Interest 5,945                      1,653                      3,857                      1,500                      1,500                      1,500                      
Farebox 5,600                      -                          12,709                    8,300                      9,600                      9,600                      
Charges for Services-Amcan 23,000                    9,619                      42,709                    50,000                    80,000                    90,800                    
Economic Adjustment 25,000                    25,000                    25,000                    

Total Revenues 596,980               1,355,616            735,701               675,000               622,100               694,100               

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Accounting/Auditing Services -                          -                          -                          400                         400                         400                         
Information Technology Service 1,259                      977                         -                          1,500                      1,500                      1,500                      
Purchased Transportation 240,484                  459,267                  489,115                  500,000                  474,000                  543,000                  
Maintenance-Equipment 11,598                    11,598                    -                          -                          10,000                    10,000                    
Maintenance-Software -                          29,600                    25,000                    35,000                    35,000                    
Insurance - Premiums 23,096                    19,405                    12,126                    30,000                    12,000                    12,000                    
Communications/Telephone 456                         -                          2,293                      1,000                      1,000                      1,000                      
Advertising/Marketing 5,000                      5,000                      
Printing & Binding -                          266                         -                          -                          200                         200                         
Fuel 2,645                      22,078                    24,727                    31,000                    33,000                    36,000                    
Depreciation Expense 24,817                    -                          -                          25,000                    25,000                    25,000                    

Total for: Services and Supplies 304,355               513,591               557,861               626,000               597,100               669,100               

Intrafund Transfers Out (Allocated Labor/Overhead) 11,124                    20,814                    13,049                    35,000                    25,000                    25,000                    
Total for: Other Expenses 11,124                 20,814                 13,049                 35,000                 25,000                 25,000                 

Total Expenses 315,479               534,405               570,910               661,000               622,100               694,100               
-                    

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 281,501      821,211      164,791      14,000        -              -              

Revenues

27



Financial Outlook - Yountville
 Cost per mile 0.95                            1.05                            1.10                            1.20                            1.25                            1.40                            

 Fixed Cost Per Hour 24.00                          26.00                          

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract  49.63$                        51.34$                        58.00$                        60.00$                        55.00$                        58.00$                        

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Public Transit Service Projections Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 
Service Hours 3,332                      3,641                      3,767                      4,400                      4,400                      4,400                      
Revenue Hours 3,271                      3,448                      3,560                      3,700                      3,700                      3,700                      
Service Miles 13,936                    18,235                    14,839                    18,000                    18,000                    18,000                    
Revenue Miles 10,136                    10,474                    9,384                      13,800                    13,800                    13,800                    
Ridership 4,039                      4,494                      4,300                      4,800                      4,900                      5,000                      

Service Costs 242,000                  255,200                  
Fixed Cost Allocation 105,600                  125,000                  
Total-  Contracted Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $347,600 $380,200

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 

Transportation Development Act 299,676                  370,147                  512,782                  333,400                  244,000                  275,100                  
State Transit Assistance 75,000                    150,000                  100,000                  -                          75,000                    75,000                    
Federal Funds-  FTA 105,551                  165,000                  165,168                  100,000                  75,000                    75,000                    
Other Revenues -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Interest 231                         2,814                      1,353                      1,000                      1,000                      1,000                      
Charges for Service-Yountville 38,971                    -                          28,853                    50,000                    55,000                    58,500                    
Miscellaneous -                          11,423                    -                          -                          -                          -                          
Economic Adjustment 100,000                  100,000                  100,000                  

Total Revenues $519,429 $699,384 $808,156 $584,400 $550,000 $584,600

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Accounting/Auditing Services 180                         200                         56                           400                         400                         400                         
Information Technology Service 1,249                      581                         -                          -                          -                          -                          
Purchased Transportation 305,033                  284,331                  314,669                  375,000                  347,600                  380,200                  
Maintenance-Equipment 13,621                    -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Maintenance-Software -                          -                          29,600                    25,000                    30,000                    30,000                    
Maintenance-Vehicles -                          11,598                    -                          -                          5,000                      5,000                      
Insurance - Premiums 30,357                    12,262                    7,796                      35,000                    20,000                    20,000                    
Communications/Telephone 140                         150                         1,508                      -                          -                          
Advertising/Marketing -                          -                          6,701                      4,000                      4,000                      4,000                      
Printing & Binding 316                         250                         621                         -                          -                          -                          
Fuel 10,617                    7,371                      3,838                      10,000                    18,000                    20,000                    
Depreciation Expense 16,445                    16,445                    66,128                    100,000                  100,000                  100,000                  

Total for: Services and Supplies 377,958               333,188               430,917               549,400               525,000               559,600               

Intrafund Transfers Out (Allocated Labor/Overhead) 11,751                    13,573                    9,146                      35,000                    25,000                    25,000                    
Total for: Other Expenses 11,751                 13,573                 9,146                   35,000                 25,000                 25,000                 

Total Expenditures 389,709               346,761               440,063               584,400               550,000               584,600               

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 129,720      352,623      368,093      -              -              -              
ok ok ok

Revenues

28



Financial Outlook - St. Helena
 Cost per mile 0.95                              1.05                              1.10                              1.20                              1.25                              1.40                              

 Fixed Cost Per Hour 24.00                            26.00                            

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract  49.63$                          51.34$                          58.00$                          60.00$                          55.00$                          58.00$                          

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Public Transit Service Projections Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 
Service Hours 3,095                      3,650                      3,715                      4,300                      4,300                      4,300                      
Revenue Hours 2,970                      3,304                      3,348                      4,126                      4,126                      4,126                      
Service Miles 3,369                      24,417                    24,119                    4,681                      4,681                      4,681                      
Revenue Miles 11,322                    12,094                    13,159                    15,730                    15,730                    15,730                    
Ridership 3,989                      5,038                      6,734                      5,542                      5,542                      5,542                      

Service Costs                             -                               -                               -   258,000                  236,500                  249,400                  
Fixed Cost Allocation -                          -                          -                          105,000                  103,200                  125,000                  
Total-  Contracted Services $0 $0 $0 $363,000 $339,700 $374,400

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 

Transportation Development Act 202,301                  340,000                  545,141                  197,800                  196,600                  229,600                  
State Transit Assistance 75,000                    150,000                  100,000                  75,000                    75,000                    75,000                    
Federal Funds-  FTA 184,500                  165,000                  170,000                  121,900                  121,900                  121,900                  
Interest 672                         2,731                      1,377                      800                         800                         800                         
Farebox 2,534                      2,738                      3,192                      2,500                      2,500                      2,500                      
Charges for Services-St Helena 34,883                    -                          48,975                    41,400                    41,300                    45,000                    
Intrafund Transfers-In (Timesheet Chargebacks) -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Economic Adjustment 100,000                  100,000                  100,000                  

Total Revenues $499,890 $660,469 $868,685 $539,400 $538,100 $574,800

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Accounting/Auditing Services -                          -                          14                           400                         400                         400                         
Information Technology Service 1,249                      1,129                      -                          -                          -                          -                          
Purchased Transportation 283,820                  285,854                  310,079                  363,000                  339,700                  374,400                  
Maintenance-Equipment 13,621                    11,597                    -                          5,000                      5,000                      5,000                      
Maintenance-Software -                          29,600                    -                          30,000                    30,000                    
Maintenance-Vehicles -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Insurance - Premiums 28,198                    11,668                    7,706                      12,000                    12,000                    12,000                    
Communications/Telephone 456                         -                          2,116                      -                          -                          -                          
Advertising/Marketing -                          -                          6,701                      3,000                      3,000                      3,000                      
Printing & Binding -                          65                           956                         1,000                      1,000                      1,000                      
Fuel 10,518                    19,184                    17,661                    20,000                    22,000                    24,000                    
Depreciation Expense -                          49,683                    100,000                  100,000                  100,000                  

Total for: Services and Supplies 337,862               329,497               424,516               504,400               513,100               549,800               

Intrafund Transfers Out (Allocated Labor/Overhead) 10,970                    14,666                    9,436                      35,000                    25,000                    25,000                    
Total for: Other Expenses 10,970                 14,666                 9,436                   35,000                 25,000                 25,000                 

Total Expenditures 348,832               344,163               433,952               539,400               538,100               574,800               

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 151,058      316,306      434,733      -              -              -              

Revenues

29



Financial Outlook - Calistoga
 Cost per mile 0.95   1.05  1.10   1.20   1.25   1.40  

 Fixed Cost Per Hour 24.00  26.00  

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract  49.63$     51.34$     58.00$     60.00$     55.00$     58.00$     

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Public Transit Service Projections Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 
Service Hours 4,060 5,079 5,176 5,500 5,400 5,400 
Revenue Hours 3,575 4,491 4,553 4,900 4,755 4,755 
Service Miles 33,730 51,235 57,573 56,000 44,863 44,863 
Revenue Miles 18,893 28,345 31,686 27,000 25,129 25,129 
Ridership 7,832 13,386 14,298 19,800 10,417 10,417 

Service Costs 297,000 313,200 
Fixed Cost Allocation 129,600 125,000 
Total-  Contracted Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $426,600 $438,200

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26
Actuals Actuals Actuals  Budget  BASE  BASE 

Revenues
Transportation Development Act 291,583 360,720 161,567 376,000 321,800 335,400 
State Transit Assistance 102,000 230,000 - - 80,000 80,000 
Federal Funds-  FTA 177,053 198,909 199,000 150,000 80,000 80,000 
Interest 266 3,418 4,552 2,000 1,000 1,000 
Farebox 5,716 4,627 10,833 2,000 3,500 3,500 
Charges for Services-Calistoga 38,125 45,000 42,500 65,000 70,000 70,000 
Economic Adjustment - 40,000 40,000 

Total Revenues $614,743 $842,674 $418,452 $595,000 $596,300 $609,900

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
Accounting/Auditing Services 50 - 84 200 400 400 
Information Technology Service 1,248 - - 1,500 1,000 1,000 
Purchased Transportation 363,576 396,904 430,474 461,300 426,600 438,200 
Maintenance-Equipment 13,621 - - 5,000 5,000 5,000 
Maintenance-Software - 29,600 20,000 30,000 30,000 
Maintenance-Vehicles - 11,598 - 10,000 10,000 10,000 
Insurance - Premiums 36,999 15,830 11,059 20,000 15,000 15,000 
Communications/Telephone 456 - 988 1,000 300 300 
Advertising/Marketing - - 5,000 5,000 5,000 
Printing & Binding 6,750 3,843 139 5,000 5,000 5,000 
Office Supplies 1,094 1,000 1,000 1,000 
Fuel 14,223 23,682 27,144 30,000 32,000 34,000 
Interest Expense (TIFIA/Bank of Marin) - - - - - 
Depreciation Expense - - - 40,000 40,000 

Total for: Services and Supplies 436,923 452,951 499,488 560,000 571,300 584,900 

Allocated Labor/Overhead 14,210 32,470 11,315 35,000 25,000 25,000 
Total for: Other Expenses 14,210 32,470 11,315 35,000 25,000 25,000 

Total Expenditures 451,133 485,421 510,803 595,000 596,300 609,900 

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 163,610      357,253      (92,351)       -              -              -              

30



Page 1 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/7/2024 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
625 Burnell Street 
Napa, CA 94559 

Meeting Minutes 
NVTA Board of Directors 

JoAnn Busenbark Board Room 
Wednesday, February 21, 2024 1:30 PM 

1. Call to Order

Chair Alessio called the meeting to order at 3:11pm. 

2. Consideration and Approval of Board Member Requests for Remote
Participation 
 

None 

3. Roll Call
Leon Garcia 
Alfredo Pedroza 
Paul Dohring 
Mark Joseph 
Liz Alessio 
Scott Sedgley 
Margie Mohler 
Donald Williams 
Ryan Gregory 
Robin McKee-Cant 
Anna Chouteau 
Non voting: 
Devereaux Smith 
Absent: 
Kevin Eisenberg 

4. Adoption of the Agenda

Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by MOHLER to APPROVE Item 4. Adoption of the 
Agenda with amendment to move up items 9.1 and 11.1, and continue Items 11.2, 11.3 and 12.1. Motion 
passed unanimously. 

Aye: 23 -  Garcia, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Alessio, Sedgley, Mohler, Williams, Gregory, 
McKee-Cant and Chouteau 

Absent: 1 -  Eisenberg 

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS

9.1 Public Hearing for a Proposed Vine Transit Fare Increase  
Attachments: Public Hearing 

Public hearing opened at 3:13pm. 

31

https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=251dfc98%1eaa9e%1e4eaf%1eb401%1e816fe2c69993.pdf


 

 Page 1 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/7/2024 

 
 Written comment submitted by Patrick M, Alex Corey and Scott Owens are attached. 
 
 Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by GARCIA to close public hearing at 3:30pm. 
 
11.1 Resolution No. 24-02 Adopting the Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) 40% 
Fund Expenditure Plan for Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2025 and Call for Projects for Fiscal Years 
Ending 2025-2028 (Diana Meehan) (Pages 83-104) 
 
 Attachments: Staff Report 
  
 Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by CHOUTEAU to APPROVE Item 11.1 Adopting  
 Resolution 24-02. Motion passed unanimously. 
 Aye: 23 -  Garcia, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Alessio, Sedgley, Mohler, Williams, Gregory,  
 McKee-Cant, and Chouteau 
 
 Absent: 1 -  Eisenberg 
 
 
10.  CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
  
 Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by GARCIA to APPROVE Item 10. Consent Agenda 
Items 10.1-10.4. Motion passed unanimously. 
 Aye: 23 -  Garcia, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Alessio, Sedgley, Mohler, Williams, Gregory,  
 McKee-Cant, and Chouteau 
 
 Absent: 1 -  Eisenberg  
 
10.1 Meeting Minutes of January 17, 2024 (Laura Sanderlin) (Pages 33-36)   
 Attachments: Meeting Minutes 
 
 
10.2 ADA Paratransit Policy Changes (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 37-70)   
 Attachments: Staff Report 
 
 
10.3 Active Transportation Advisory Committee (ATAC) Member Appointment (Diana  
 Meehan) (Pages 71-74) 
 
 Attachments: Staff Report 
 
 
10.4 Resolution 24-01 Amending the Active Transportation Advisory Committee (ATAC)  
 Bylaws (Diana Meehan) (Pages 75-82) 
 
 Attachments: Staff Report 
  
 
11.4 Federal and State Legislative Update (Kate Miller) (Pages 214-240)   
 Attachments: Staff Report 
  
 Motion MOVED by PEDROZA, SECONDED by GREGORY to APPROVE Item 11.4 Recommended  
 positions on the State Bill Matrix. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 Aye: 21 -  Garcia, Pedroza, Joseph, Alessio, Sedgley, Mohler, Gregory, McKee-Cant, and Chouteau 
  
 Absent: 3 -  Dohring, Williams, and Eisenberg 
 
 

32

https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bcd014a0%1ecb0f%1e46ef%1e9e09%1ede3f7e4dcc8f.pdf
https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=280d996f%1ebf81%1e4cde%1e851f%1ebed65928eeb4.pdf
https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2e81c70b%1e3a06%1e42f7%1e8caf%1e8d763d63dc0f.pdf
https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1cda946b%1ebe1e%1e4818%1ea79f%1ed9f03931efa7.pdf
https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5af1c858%1e69a5%1e4dd3%1e896e%1e6b7929be7354.pdf
https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=610c749c%1e30d7%1e413e%1e8da9%1e2dba0ac43229.pdf


Page 1 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/7/2024 

5. Public Comment

None 

6. Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation
Commissioner's, and Association of Bay Area Governments Update

Director Pedroza reported on recent MTC activities. 
Director Garcia reported on recent ABAG activities. 

7. Executive Director's Update

Executive Director Miller reported: 
-Staff member anniversary acknowledgement
-Retirement of Kenny Schwarzbach from Transdev
-Upcoming road closure SR29 Soscol Junction

8. Caltrans' Update

None 

11. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

11.2 Napa Valley Transportation Authority's (NVTA) Annual Financial Statement with 
Independent Auditor's Report for the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and Single 
Audit Report of Uniform Guidance (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 105-204) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

This Action Item was continued. 

11.3 Vine Transit Update (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 205-213) 
 

Attachments: Staff Report 

This informational item was continued. 

12. CLOSED SESSION

This Closed Session item is continued. 

12.1  Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation: Peters v. 
Burnham, et al, Napa County Superior Court Case No. 23CV001586 

13. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

None 

14. ADJOURNMENT

Chair Alessio adjourned the meeting at 3:42pm. 

14.1  The next Regular Meeting is Wednesday, March 20th. 

____________________________________ 
Laura M. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

33

https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=050bb082%1e075a%1e4922%1e8d8b%1ee0f99f501cb2.pdf
https://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=379213d6%1ebf5a%1e4395%1e8fad%1ed1c98689b815.pdf


March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda 10.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Measure T 6.67% Equivalent Fund Certification 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 24-03 
certifying NVTA 6.67% Equivalent Fund spending for Fiscal Year 2022-23.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In order to meet Measure T 6.67% Equivalent Fund reporting requirements, NVTA staff 
is asking the Board to certify the qualifying NVTA funds expended on Class I Bicycle 
Facilities. NVTA expended $1,964,525.76 of eligible revenues for the St. Helena to 
Calistoga Vine Trail Project.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a fiscal impact? No 

34



March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.2 

Continued From: New  
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA-TA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Addrell Coleman, Assistant Program Planner/Analyst 

Phone: (707) 259-8235 / Email: acoleman@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Measure T 6.67% Equivalent Fund Certification 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 24-03 
certifying NVTA’s 6.67% Equivalent Fund spending for Fiscal Year 2022-23.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On November 6, 2012, the voters in Napa County approved Measure T, the Napa 
Countywide Road Maintenance Act.  Measure T is a ½-cent sales tax expected to 
generate over $500 million over a 25-year period that began on July 1, 2018.  Measure T 
is for the rehabilitation of local streets and roads. As part of the Ordinance, all agencies 
must collectively commit non-Measure T funds towards Class I Bicycle Facilities 
equivalent to 6.67% of the estimated total revenue of Measure T. Qualifying funding 
sources for 6.67% Equivalent Fund projects must be from either local general funds or 
formula specific funds.  
 
Currently, 6.67% Equivalent Fund projects are committed on the 5-year project list, which 
agencies update every 2 years. These projects reflect future spending committed by the 
jurisdictions, but do not show current spending on qualifying Equivalent Fund projects. To 
ensure compliance with the 6.67% Equivalent Funds requirement, the NVTA-TA updated 
the Measure T Policies and Procedures in March 2022 to include an annual self-
certification of funds spent. Funds certified during this certification are to showcase 
spending during Fiscal Year 2022-23.   
 

35

mailto:acoleman@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.2 
March 20, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The table below provides a summary of the 6.67% Equivalent Fund expenditures spent 
by the Napa Valley Transportation Authority by funding source.   
Table 1. NVTA Equivalent Fund Spending  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) Resolution 24-03 certifying Measure T 6.67% Equivalent funds spent by NVTA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Vine Trail Equivalent Fund Spending 
STIP (Napa County allocated to 
Vine Trail) 

$196,000 

California Coastal Conservancy 
via the Bay Area Trail Council 

$143,750 

Napa County General Funds 
(STIP Swap) 

$1,501,528 

NVTA Staff time $123,447.76 
Total $1,964,525.76 

36



RESOLUTION No. 24-03 

A RESOLUTION OF NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
APPROVING CERTIFICATION OF 6.67% EQUIVALENT FUND EXPENDITURES 

UNDER THE MEASURE T PROGRAM  

WHEREAS, on November 6, 2012 the voters of Napa County passed the Napa 
Countywide Road Maintenance Act, also known as Measure T, which imposes a half 
cent transaction and use (sales) tax to provide supplemental funding for road 
maintenance as detailed in the Measure T Expenditure Plan; and  

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority is the designated agency that 
administers and oversees the Measure T revenues; and 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority is an eligible recipient of 
Measure T funds; and 

WHEREAS, the tax proceeds will be used to pay for the projects outlined in the 
Measure T Expenditure Plan allocated to the County of Napa and the cities and town 
within Napa County (“Local Agencies”) as set forth in Measure T; and  

WHEREAS, under the Measure T Expenditure Plan, Measure T funds are provided 
to the Local Agencies to be used for streets and roads projects as defined in the 
Measure; and  

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority shall determine and certify to 
NVTA-TA the annual spending towards qualifying Class I Bicycle Facilities, consistent 
with the criteria set forth in Section 3B of Ordinance No. 2012-01, including a 
memorandum detailing the supporting financial documentation and the methodology 
utilized to calculate the total spending and funding source; and    

WHEREAS, that amount set forth in Exhibit “A” will be deemed the “6.67% 
Equivalent Fund Spending for Class I Bicycle Facilities” of the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority,  which must be certified annually throughout the term of the 
Measure from qualifying local and formula funds of the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority; and 

WHEREAS, by January 31st each calendar year, the Agency must certify to and 
provide NVTA-TA a copy of supporting documentation as well as a Resolution 
approved by the governing body of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, including 
backup documentation, demonstrating that the Equivalent Fund Class I Bicycle 
Facilities spending occurred during the prior fiscal year; and 

ATTACHMENT 1 
AGENDA ITEM 10.2 
March 20, 2024 

37



Resolution No. 24-03 
Page 2 of 3 

WHEREAS, Measure T project(s) will comply with the requirements under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (California Code Sections 21000 et seq.; as 
implemented through California Regulations Title 14, Chapter 3, Sections  15000 et 
seq.);  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED 

1. The Napa Valley Transportation Authority hereby certifies the Equivalent
Fund Class I Bicycle Facilities expenditures for Fiscal Year 2022-23 in
Exhibit A.

Passed and adopted this 20th day of March, 2024. 

_______________________ Ayes: 
Liz Alessio, Chair 

Nays: 

Absent: 

ATTEST: 

______________________________________ 
Laura Sanderlin, Board Secretary  

APPROVED: 

______________________________ 
Osman Mufti, Legal Counsel 

38



Resolution No. 24-03 
Page 3 of 3 

Exhibit “A” 

Vine Trail Equivalent Fund Spending 
STIP (Napa County allocated to 
Vine Trail) 

$196,000 

California Coastal Conservancy 
via the Bay Area Trail Council 

$143,750 

Napa County General Funds 
(STIP Swap) 

$1,501,528 

NVTA Staff time $123,447.76 
Total $1,964,525.76 

39



March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 
 
Amendment to Engineering Design, Environmental & Construction Document Services 
for the Vine Trail – Calistoga to St. Helena Project 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director or designee to execute and make minor modifications to Amendment No. 7 to 
Project Work Order No. E-13 (Attachment 1) to NVTA Agreement No. 18-23 with RSA+ 
for additional bidding assistance & construction support scope in an amount not to 
exceed $7,000. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Calistoga to St. Helena segment will establish a 7.4-mile Class I bicycle/pedestrian 
path along State Route 29, spanning from the intersection of Fair Way and Lincoln 
Avenue in Calistoga to Pratt Ave in St. Helena. During construction, a previously 
unidentified small windmill, once associated with an abandoned well, was discovered 
within the Vine Trail alignment. The owner wishes to relocate the windmill for aesthetic 
reasons, necessitating a County of Napa Building permit. This amendment seeks 
approval to compensate RSA+ and their structural subconsultant to provide windmill 
anchorage and foundation design necessary for a building permit.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Yes. The additional $7,000 in construction support costs will come from the previously 
approved construction contingency budget.   
 

40



March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Grant Bailey, Program Manager – Engineer 

(707) 259-5951 / Email: gbailey@nvta.ca.gov  

SUBJECT:  Amendment to Engineering Design, Environmental & Construction 
Document Services for the Vine Trail – Calistoga to St. Helena Project 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director or designee to execute and make minor modifications to Amendment No. 7 to 
Project Work Order No. E-13 (Attachment 1) to NVTA Agreement No. 18-23 with RSA+ 
for additional bidding assistance & construction support scope in an amount not to 
exceed $7,000. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Calistoga to St. Helena segment will construct a 7.4-mile Class I bicycle/pedestrian 
path within the public right of way from the intersection of Fair Way and Lincoln Avenue 
in Calistoga on the northern end to Pratt Ave in St. Helena along State Route 29 on the 
southern end. Through the course of construction, a small windmill was discovered that 
previously served a now-abandoned well. Although not originally accounted for in plans, 
the owner wishes to relocate the windmill on their property for aesthetic reasons rather 
than opting for demolition.  
 
The process of relocating the windmill requires NVTA acquire a County of Napa Building 
permit. NVTA’s consultant designer, RSA+, will provide new windmill anchorage 
calculations and foundation design necessary to obtain a permit.  
 

41

mailto:gbailey@nvta.ca.gov


Approval of this amendment would bring the total cost of the phase to a not-to-exceed 
amount of $232,000. 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board has the option to not approve the amendment, however, doing so would 
neglect the windmill owner’s concerns regarding relocation, possibly resulting in 
unfavorable public perception. 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 3:  Use taxpayer dollars efficiently.   
 
Hiring consultants for a short term with expertise in a variety of fields is more economically 
viable than hiring full time employees with the qualifications needed to perform these 
services. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) Amendment No. 7 for Contract No. 18-23 with RSA+ 

42



PROJECT WORK ORDER NO. E-13 

ON-CALL A/E & PROJECT DELIVERY SERVICES 

PROJECT NAME:  PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING DESIGN, ENVIRONMENTAL & 

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT SERVICES FOR THE VINE TRAIL - 

CALISTOGA TO ST HELENA - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

PROJECT MANAGER: Grant Bailey, PE, Program Manager - Engineer 

E  gbailey@nvta.ca.gov | T  707.259.5951 

CONSULTANT DESIGNATED TEAM MEMBERS: 

• RSA+ , Staff; and
• Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., Parisi and Parikh, Staff as described in EXHIBIT A of the Project

Work Order.

SCOPE OF SERVICE: Provide professional engineering design and environmental services as described 

in the scope of services of the Project Work Order (June 2019) - see EXHIBIT A and its EXHIBIT A-7 of 

Amendment #7 (March 2024) for the Vine Trail Calistoga to St Helena segment. 

• WHEREAS NVTA REQUIRES ADDITIONAL SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY THE CONTRACTOR

UNDER EXHIBIT A, A-1, A-2, A-3, A-4, A-5, A-6 AND EXHIBIT A-7 OF THE PROJECT WORK ORDER

AS DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A-7 ATTACHED; AND

• WHEREAS CONTRACTOR IS ABLE TO PROVIDE THE DESCRIBED SERVICES AT AN ADDITIONAL
COST TO NVTA IN THE AMOUNT OF $7,000 AS PER COST PROPOSAL ATTACHED IN EXHIBIT B-

7; AND
• WHEREAS PROJECT WORK ORDER IS HEREBY AMENDED TO INCLUDE THE ADDITIONAL

SERVICE PERFORMANCE BY THE CONTRACTOR AT THE ADDITIONAL AMOUNT OF $7,000 AND

THE AGREEMENT NOT-TO- EXCEED TOTAL AMOUNT OF THE PROJECT IS AMENDED TO

$2,218,060.

     START DATE: JUNE 12, 2019,  COMPLETION DATE:  JUNE 30, 2024 (A#6) 

NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT FOR THIS PROJECT 
NEW NTE AMOUNT OF FOR THIS PROJECT:

$2,211,060 

$2,218,060 

CHARGE NUMBER FOR PAYMENT: TDA/CMA 8301001 52310 CMA_PLAN_PRGMS VINE_TRAIL 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: This Amendment No. 7 to Project Work Order is issued and entered into as of the 

last date written below in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Master Agreement with 

CONTRACTOR dated MAY 15, 2018, which terms are hereby incorporated and made part of to the Project Work 

Order. 

   NVTA    CONTRACT 

   _____________________________________        ___________________________________ 
  By:  KATE MILLER, Executive Director        By:  HUGH LINN, PE, Principal + President 

D R A F T 
AMENDMENT #7

ATTACHMENT 1
NVTA AGENDA ITEM 10.3
MARCH 20, 2024

43

mailto:gbailey@nvta.ca.gov


  

 AMENDMENT #7 

EXHIBIT A-7 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The additional scope of services under Task 14 of the project work order are necessary 
to support NVTA during the ongoing construction phase of the project.   

CONTRACTOR shall provide the following services to address the design changes forced by 
a structural relocation of a windmill during the ongoing construction under: 

TASK 14  DESIGN, BIDDING ASSISTANCE, AND CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT 
DOCUMENT SERVICES - WINDMILL 

CONTRACTOR shall perform specific project design changes to include, but 
not as to limit to, the  

• Review of existing site and windmill conditions.

• Provide structural analysis of the windmill to determine anchorage and
foundation design loads.

• Provide construction documents for the anchorage, foundation, and
required special testing and inspections for the windmill.

• Respond to plan check comments.

CONTRACTOR's cost proposal for the additional services to be provided i s
attached in EXHIBIT B-7. 

18-23 RSA+/A7/032024_ryk Page 2 of 3

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
DESIGN, BID & CONSTR SPT - WINDMILL

44



AMENDMENT #7 

EXHIBIT B-7 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 (Revised) 

DESCRIPTION         AMOUNT 

Additional services to be performed under 

the construction phase of the project as 
$      $     7,000 

described in EXHIBIT A-7 and 

CONTRACTOR's cost 

proposal (February 20, 2024/#4124470.1-03) 

 Work Order NTE Amount 

  

$2,211,060 

NEW  WORK ORDER NTE TOTAL AMOUNT  $2,218,060 

The total amount to be paid to the CONTRACTOR for the scope of work 

defined under EXHIBITS A, A-1, A-2, A-3, A-4, A-5, A-6, and A-7 shall 

not exceed $2,218,060. 

Subject to Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall periodically invoice NVTA 

based on progress towards completion of tasks/deliverables listed, 

amounts not to exceed tasks/deliverable totals. 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
DESIGN, BID & CONSTR SPT - WINDMILL

45



March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Vine Trail St. Helena to Calistoga Construction Contract Budget Increase 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board: 

(1) Approve an additional $740,000 in construction budget for Construction
Agreement No. 22-11 with Ghilotti Construction Company, Inc for construction of
the Vine Trail St Helena to Calistoga Project for an amount not to exceed
$2,056,709; and

(2) Approve Resolution No. 22-11, Revised authorizing the Executive Director, or
designee, to issue change orders for Construction Agreement No. 22-11 in an
amount not to exceed $2,056,709.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Vine Trail – St Helena to Calistoga project management team from NVTA and Park 
Engineering (construction manager) have forecasted an approximate $740,000 shortfall 
in construction funding stemming from delays associated with Pacific Gas and Electric 
facilities and projects. NVTA staff informed the project stakeholders (County of Napa, 
Cities of St. Helena and Calistoga, and Vine Trail Coalition) of this potential shortfall, 
requested funding assistance, and proposed a cost breakdown. The NVTA Board needs 
to take action on the requested budget increase and authorize the Executive Director or 
designee to issue change orders, as recommended by staff and supported by the member 
jurisdictions.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Yes. An estimated additional $740,000 is needed to complete the Vine Trail – St Helena 
to Calistoga project. County of Napa, Cities of St. Helena and Calistoga, and the Vine 
Trail Coalition have agreed to fund the shortfall based on the cost breakdown provided in 
the memo. Staff is projecting $1.4M in claimable damages costs related to PGE delays 
and utility conflicts. A full and final claim submission is expected by May 2024. 

46



March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Grant Bailey, Program Manager – Engineer 

(707) 259-5951 / Email: gbailey@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Vine Trail St. Helena to Calistoga Construction Contract Budget 
Increase 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board: 
 

(1) Approve an additional $740,000 in construction budget for Construction Agreement 
No. 22-11 with Ghilotti Construction Company, Inc for construction of the Vine Trail 
St Helena to Calistoga Project for an amount not to exceed $2,056,709; and  

 
(2) Approve Resolution No. 22-11, Revised (Attachment 1) authorizing the Executive 

Director, or designee, to issue change orders for Construction Agreement No. 22-
11 in an amount not to exceed $2,056,709.  

 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Vine Trail – St. Helena to Calistoga construction project (Project) constructs 8.5 miles 
of Class I path between the Cities of St Helena and Calistoga. The project broke ground 
in July 2022 and has experienced significant delays due to a concurrent utility 
replacement project within the Vine Trail project area and unforeseen underground utility 
conflicts. 
 
Specific issues encountered to date include positive location of Pacific Gas and Electric 
(PGE) facilities along approximately 7 miles of the project alignment, ordered by PGE, 
discrepancies in the existing topography when compared to project plan trail elevations, 

47

mailto:xxxxx@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.4 
March 20, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
delays to the project due to PGE’s gas replacement project between Big Tree Rd. and 
Pratt Ave., and conflicts between the project and an abandoned PGE gas line. The budget 
increase reflects additional costs associated with construction design support, 
construction management and inspection, and ecological/archeological/cultural resource 
monitoring. Staff has forecasted a budget shortfall of approximately $740,000. A 
breakdown of the original and new contract budget authorization is provided in Table 1 
below: 
 

Table 1: Project Budget 
Description Value 
Original Contract Value (Base Bid) $12,585,896 
Original Contract Contingency $616,709 
Original Budget Authorization $13,202,605 
Additional Budget Authorization (Sept ’23) $700,000 
  
Current Budget Authorization $13,902,605 
  
Funding Request $740,000 
  
  
  
New Project Budget $14,642,605 

 
A commonly used metric for determining construction contract contingency values is 
10%-20% of the base contract value, varying with project size, duration, and complexity. 
Although the requested amount is not insignificant, it is noteworthy that, even with this 
addition, the contingency remains at approximately 16% of the base contract value. This 
falls well within the standard range for contract contingencies, especially when 
considering the complexities inherent in the Vine Trial project and the significant 
challenges encountered thus far for this segment of the project. 
 
Recognizing the budget shortfall, NVTA staff has made requests to the County of Napa, 
Cities of St Helena and Calistoga and the Napa Valley Vine Trail Coalition to contribute 
to the funding shortfall as shown in Table 2, below. As of this report’s drafting, all 
jurisdictions were preparing budget requests for their respective Board or Council 
approval. 

Table 2:  Funding Breakdown 
Jurisdiction Percent Share Cost Share 

County of Napa 37% $275,000 
City of St Helena 19% $140,000 
City of Calistoga 19% $140,000 
Vine Trail Coalition 25% $185,000 
Total 100% $740,000 

48



Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 10.4 
March 20, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

Table 3: Total Funding Contribution by Jurisdiction 
Jurisdiction Funding Contribution 

County of Napa $3,006,250 
City of St Helena $593,250 
City of Calistoga $594,250 
Vine Trail Coalition $2,029,301 
Total $6,223,051 

   **Funding contributions above include the current request. 
 
Staff is tracking costs incurred to the project due to PGE project delays and utility conflicts 
and currently forecasting $1.4M in claimable damages. The anticipated date of submittal 
for a full and final claim is May 2024, when the project will be materially completed. Should 
PGE find merit in the total value of the forthcoming claim, a significant portion of additional 
construction contributions from the jurisdictions would be returned.  
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board could choose to not authorize the requested construction contingency 
increase. This action would require staff to either find funding elsewhere or take on project 
oversite responsibilities. However, NVTA does not have the financial or staff resources to 
absorb the additional funding or oversite needs and not authorizing this request would 
likely lead to further project delays. 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 2 – Improve system safety in order to support all modes and serve all users. 
 
Completion of this project furthers this goal by providing a class I facility (separated bike 
and pedestrian path) as an alternative to the existing class II facility (bike lane on 
shoulder) which exists in Hwy 29. 
 
Goal 3 – Use taxpayer dollars efficiently. 
 
Authorization of additional construction budget ensures the project can be completed on 
the shortest timeline currently available. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
(1) Resolution No 22-11, Revised 

49



REVISED 
RESOLUTION No. 22-11 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 
(1) AWARDING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $12,585,896.20 TO GHILOTTI CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, 
INC., (2) AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE THE SUBJECT 
CONTRACT, (3) AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE CHANGE 

ORDERS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,056,709 
 

WHEREAS, since 2019, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (“NVTA”) has 
been under contract for the Environmental and Design of the Napa Valley Vine Trail – St 
Helena to Calistoga (“Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Project was evaluated pursuant the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) and on August 19, 2020, the NVTA Board of Directors certified the 
Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (SCH #2020060572) ("ISMND") for the 
Napa Valley Vine Trail – St Helena to Calistoga Project and approved the related findings 
and mitigation measures for the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, NVTA published an Invitation for Bid (IFB) inviting interested bidders 

to submit their sealed bids for the Project on December 23, 2021, and; 
 

WHEREAS, seven bids for Project No. 21-04 Napa Valley Vine Trail – St Helena 
to Calistoga, were received on February 2, 2022 by 2pm and examined, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the proposal from Ghilotti Construction Company, Inc. of Santa Rosa, 

California was determined to be the lowest responsive, responsible bidder at 
$12,585,896.20, and 

 
WHEREAS, the difference between the bid amount and the budget will be used 

for construction support services, and unallocated contingency related to the construction 
of the Project, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the NVTA received grant and local funds of approximately 

$14,462,739; and 
 
WHEREAS, execution of Construction Agreement No. 22-11 will occur upon the 

successful completion of the funding package; and  
 

WHEREAS, staff recommends that the Board of Directors award the contract for 
the Project in the amount of $12,585,897; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Napa and the Cities of St Helena and Calistoga have 

committed an additional $740,000 of construction funding to the project to address 
unforeseen construction issues; and 

ATTACHMENT 1 
AGENDA ITEM 10.4 

 
Revised 3/20/24 
Revised 9/27/23 
Adopted 3/16/22 

50



Resolution No. 22-11 
Page 2 of 2 

WHEREAS, the County of Napa, Cities of St Helena and Calistoga, and Napa 
Valley Vine Trail Coalition have committed an additional $700,000 of construction funding 
to the project to address unforeseen construction issues; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority that: 

1. That the NVTA Board award the construction contract to Ghilotti Construction
Company, Inc., Agreement No. 22-11 in the amount of $12,585,897 for the Napa Valley 
Vine Trail – St Helena to Calistoga project;  

2. That the Executive Director is authorized to approve change orders for the
Project not-to exceed $2,056,709; and 

3. The Executive Director or designee is authorized to finalize and make minor
changes to the Agreement No 22-11 with Ghilotti Construction Company, Inc, and directs 
staff to take all further actions necessary to deliver the Napa Valley Vine Trail – St Helena 
to Calistoga project. 

Passed and adopted this 20th day of March, 2024. 

________________________ 
Liz Alessio, NVTA Chair    Ayes: 

Nays: 

Absent: 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 
Laura M. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

APPROVED: 

_______________________________ 
Osman Mufti, NVTA Legal Counsel 

51



March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.5 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 
 
Amending Contract with Kleinfelder for Construction Services 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director to execute and make minor modifications to Amendment #2 to Agreement 21-
20-CM01 for construction management and material testing services with Kleinfelder 
Construction Services, increasing the contract value by $262,262 for an amount not to 
exceed $1,898,826. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
NVTA has contracted 127 Energy to design, build, and operate a photovoltaic (PV) 
system, including shade structures and roof-mounted panels, at the Vine Transit 
Maintenance Facility. Commencing with PV system design in early 2023, 127 Energy 
collaborated with NVTA and Kleinfelder Construction Services (KCS) to streamline project 
design and coordination with the maintenance facility building contract. With the PV 
system design now finalized, pending permit approval, construction is set to begin in May 
2024, lasting approximately 5 months. Staff is recommending KCS, currently overseeing 
construction management and inspection for the maintenance facility, continue to provide 
these services for construction of the PV system. To extend these services to the PV 
system contract, KCS requires a contract amendment for additional funding.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Yes. Up to $262,262.  However, no additional appropriation is needed as additional cost 
for construction management and materials testing and inspection services on the PV 
system project will can be funded by the Vine Transit Maintenance Facility project 
contingency, which was previously approved by the Board.  

52



March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.5 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Grant Bailey, Program Manager – Engineer 

(707) 259-5951 / Email: gbailey@nvta.ca.gov  

SUBJECT:  Amending Contract with Kleinfelder for Construction Services 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director to execute and make minor modifications to Amendment #2 to Agreement 21-
20-CM01 for construction management and material testing services with Kleinfelder 
Construction Services, increasing the contract value by $262,262 for an amount not to 
exceed $1,898,826. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
NVTA has contracted with 127 Energy under a design-build-operate project delivery 
model to construct and operate a photovoltaic (PV) system consisting of shade structures 
and roof mounted panels at NVTA’s new Vine Transit Maintenance Facility. 127 Energy 
began PV system design in early 2023 and actively engaged with NVTA and Kleinfelder 
Construction Services (KCS) to advance project design. These efforts have ensured 
seamless coordination between the maintenance facility building contract and PV system 
contract in an effort to streamline construction of the PV system. Recently, 127 Energy 
finalized the PV system design and submitted building permit applications to construct 
the system. Pending permit approval, construction is anticipated to commence in May 
2024, with an estimated duration of approximately 5 months, concluding in October 2024. 
 
KCS currently serves as the construction management and inspection consultant for the 
Vine Transit Maintenance Facility, demonstrating effective coordination of both facility 
construction and PV pre-construction activities. As KCS assumes management 

53

mailto:gbailey@nvta.ca.gov


responsibilities for both projects, a contract amendment becomes necessary to ensure 
the continuation of construction management and inspection services during the PV 
system construction phase. While maintaining their commitment to closing out the 
maintenance facility construction contract, KCS will require additional funding 
authorization to extend their services throughout the entirety of the PV system 
construction period.  
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board could decide not to approve this amendment and transition construction 
management and inspection duties to NVTA staff which will limit the agency’s ability to 
effectively manage and deliver other ongoing projects. Materials testing scope cannot be 
transitioned to NVTA staff as testing and inspection are highly specialized. This option 
would likely halt construction of the PV system since materials inspections are required 
for intermediate construction permit approvals. 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 5: Minimize the energy and other resources required to move people and goods. 
 
The construction of the Bus Maintenance Facility and PV system will result in system 
efficiencies and reduction in power costs 
 
Goal 3:  Use taxpayer dollars efficiently.   
 
Hiring short-term consultants with expertise in a variety of fields is more economically 
viable than hiring full time employees with the qualifications needed to manage the 
construction of these capital projects. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) Amendment #2 Construction Management and Materials Testing and Inspection 
Services Agreement No. 21-20-CM01 – Kleinfelder Construction Services Inc. 

54



 

PROJECT WORK ORDER NO. 21-20-CM01 
ON-CALL CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 

BIOLOGIST/ARCHEOLOGIST & MATERIAL TESTING 
SERVICES 

PROJECT NAME: BUS MAINTENANCE FACILITY – SHEEHY COURT, VINE TRAIL ST 
HELENA TO CALISOGA, AND IMOLA PARK AND RIDE 

PROJECT MANAGER:  Grant Bailey, PE, Program Manager – Engineer 
 gbailey@nvta.ca.gov | 707.259.5951 

CONSULTANT DESIGNATED TEAM MEMBERS: 

• Kleinfelder Construction Services, Inc. – see fee schedule/cost proposal (EXHIBIT B)

Consultant will independently and at its own discretion and liability enter into agreement with sub-consultant(s) 
listed in their proposal for any services required to complete the project as described in the scope of work.   

SCOPE OF SERVICE:  Provide professional construction management, inspection, and materials testing 
services for the Bus Maintenance Facility – Sheehy Court, and materials testing services for the Vine Trail St 
Helena to Calistoga, and Imola Park and Ride projects as described in the scope of services of the Agreement. 

• WHEREAS NVTA REQUIRES ADDITIONAL SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY THE CONTRACTOR UNDER
EXHIBIT A, A-1, AND EXHIBIT A-2 OF THE PROJECT WORK ORDER AS DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A-2
ATTACHED; AND

• WHEREAS CONTRACTOR IS ABLE TO PROVIDE THE DESCRIBED SERVICES AT AN ADDITIONAL COST
TO NVTA IN THE AMOUNT OF $262,262 AS PER COST PROPOSAL ATTACHED IN EXHIBIT B-2,
INCREASING THE TOTAL WORK ORDER NTE AMOUNT TO $1,898,826; AND

• WHEREAS NVTA WILL NEED TO EXTEND THE TERM DATE TO DECEMBER 31, 2024, TO ACCOMMODATE
ADDITIONAL SERVICE PERFORMANCE TO COMPLETE THE PROJECT.

• WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE ABOVE ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS AS AGREED TO IN THE PROJECT
WORK ORDER REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT.

START DATE: November 1, 2021 NEW COMPLETION DATE:  December 31, 2024 

NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT FOR THIS PROJECT:   $1,636,564 (A#1) 
NEW NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT FOR THIS PROJECT: NTE $1,898,826 

CHARGE NUMBER FOR PAYMENT: 8300 830_000 5____   FTA/STATE 83010  PROJECT CODE 
ACCOUNT INFO TO BE DETERMINED AND ENTERED AT TIME OF INVOICE RECEIPT 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: This Amendment No. 2 to Project Work Order is issued and entered into as of 
the last date written below in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Master Agreement with 
CONTRACTOR dated NOVEMBER 1, 2021, which terms are hereby incorporated and made part of this Project 
Work Order. 

NVTA 

By: _____________  
KATE MILLER, Executive Director     Date 

CONTRACTOR 
Kleinfelder Construction Services, Inc. 

By: 
DAVID WATSON, President  Date 

AMENDMENT No. 02 
D R A F T 

ATTACHMENT 1
NVTA AGENDA ITEM 10.5

55

mailto:gbailey@nvta.ca.gov


 

EXHIBIT A-2 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The additional scope of services to be performed by the CONTRACTOR as outlined in the tasks 
below are necessary to support NVTA in the construction and installation of the photovoltaic (PV) 
system, to include the shade structures, and roof mounted panels at the Bus Maintenance Facility 
- Sheehy Court project.

CONTRACTOR shall provide, but not as to limit to, the following services: 

Task 1 - Construction Management and Administration 

CONTRACTOR will assist NVTA in providing construction management and 
administration services necessary for the PV system (Project) to establish critical power 
needs in support of the installed electric powered bus charging stations and system at 
the Bus Maintenance Facility.  

CONTRACTOR will manage and expedite completion of the construction and to quality 
standards established for the Project and as illustrated in the engineering drawings and 
specifications. At minimum, CONTRACTOR shall achieve the following requirements as 
summarized below: 

• Preconstruction Service. After conducting a constructability review during
design, CONTRACTOR will complete and oversee the permitting process which will include 
addressing County comments with the intent of securing a building permit in support of the 
established construction start date.  

• Photo Documentation. CONTRACTOR will document the site’s existing
conditions with complete and comprehensive job site photos prior to construction. 
Progress photos will be taken at frequent intervals during the project and filed 
accordingly. Photos will be dated, labeled, and logged for easy retrieval. 

• Project Coordination & Communications.

o CONTRACTOR wi l l  coordinate and communicate with NVTA
and assist to establish critical construction activity dates with NVTA’s transit operations 
schedule to facilitate the work. 

o CONTRACTOR shall receive dispatch copies of inspection requests
and reports issued by the County of Napa in compliance with permit requirements. 

o CONTRACTOR shall receive directly or indirectly all 
correspondence. 

o CONTRACTOR shall be responsive to all forms of communication.

o CONTRACTOR will establish a “Management Information System”
(MIS) which will serve as the repository for all project documents. CONTRACTOR will be 
added as a “User” of the system and will establish project process and procedures to 
include email format, and how subjects and/or situations shall be identified.  

o CONTRACTOR will be responsible to chair project progress
meetings.  Meetings shall follow an industry accepted format with a defined agenda. 

56



 

Meeting minutes shall be distributed for review and comment. 

• Request for Information (RFI).  CONTRACTOR shall be copied on all
RFIs issued against the Project. RFIs must be supported with applicable documentation, 
to include but not limited to existing condition photographs, when submitted from 
Construction to Design side of the project. 

• Change Management.   CONTRACTOR shall be stewards of NVTA’s 
Project and capital investment. CONTRACTOR will maintain a record of each incident 
occurrence, track their origin, forecast their impacts, adjust budget projections, and 
when changes impact the Project’s lump sum fee are warranted provide a full review 
and response.  All proposed change orders (PCOs) will be submitted with proper 
supporting documentation to validate the change(s) and justify the cost(s).  

• Project Meetings. CONTRACTOR will establish meetings prior to the start
of and during the course of the project work.  Meetings need to be established in advance 
to allow designated project team members their availability to meet and discuss meeting 
agendas. CONTRACTOR will take meeting minutes and distribute to all members within 
eight (8) hours after each meeting. 

• Claims Management. CONTRACTOR shall analyze claims for scope and
purpose validation, and cost, and schedule impacts. CONTRACTOR’s review will be 
memorialized in a report per claim and issued to NVTA for review. NVTA is responsible 
for consideration, negotiation, and resolution of all claims. 

• Progress Payments.  CONTRACTOR will review all invoicing for payment,
referring to executed agreements, and specifically to schedules of value, terms and 
conditions. CONTRACTOR will review and verify all billed deliverables submitted for 
payment by project team members in a timely manner. CONTRACTOR will review and 
notify the appropriate submitting project team member(s) immediately of any 
discrepancies and provide comment. 

• As-Built Drawings.  CONTRACTOR will require the Design Build Team to
maintain redline “As-Built” drawings during the progress of the Project. The Design Build 
Team shall submit these drawings during closeout. For progress payments 
CONTRACTOR will review the “As-Build” drawings before approving payment. 

• Closeout.  CONTRACTOR will observe the commissioning phase of the
project especially the interfacing of the PV panels power feed, use, and storage. 
CONTRACTOR will gather all project documents, “As-Build” drawings, communications, 
meeting minutes, RFIs, submittals, change conditions, inspection log, reports, etc. and 
transfer to NVTA in a easily accessible format. 

Task 2 - Materials Testing & Field Inspection; Documentation 

CONTRACTOR will provide service material testing, field observations and inspections 
of shade structure foundations, structural steel columns and beam welds and anchorage 
as needed and in accordance with the project documents. 

CONTRACTOR will provide specific service scopes needed for inspection and/or testing 
requirements.  

57



 

 EXHIBIT B-2 

  SUMMARY COST SHEET 

  (detailed fee/cost schedule attached) 

DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT 

Task 1  Construction Management & Administration    $226,317  

Task 2   Materials Testing & Field Inspection;   $   35,945 
    Documentation  

 _____________________________________________________________ 

TOTAL NTE AMOUNT                                                            $262,262 

Subject to Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall periodically invoice NVTA 
based on progress towards completion of the project. 

CONTRACTOR shall not perform any additional services and/or tasks 
as outlined in EXHIBIT A, A-1, and A-2 without prior approval by 
NVTA. 

The total amount to be paid to the CONTRACTOR for the scope of 
work defined under EXHIBIT A, A-1, and A-2 shall not exceed 
$1,898,826. 

58



59



March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Cover 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Proposed Vine Transit Fare Increase 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board of Directors approve the 
proposed Vine and VineGo fare increases.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Having maintained fares since 2015, NVTA is proposing adjustments to the Vine’s fares.  
The Vine adult fare would increase from $1.60 to $2.00, with adjustments to youth, 
senior/disabled fares, and various pass types. VineGo fares would increase by $0.80 to 
$4.00 for a single zone and $8.00 for two zones.  Other Vine fare media would also 
increase (Attachment 3).  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact? Yes. The proposed adjustment is expected to increase fare 
revenue by approximately $116,000 for the Vine and VineGo. 

60



March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 
FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Rebecca Schenck, Program Manager – Public Transit 

(707) 259-8636 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Proposed Vine Transit Fare Increase  
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board of Directors approve the 
proposed Vine and Vine Go fare increase.  
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) on January 11, 2024, as well as the Citizens 
Advisory Committee (CAC) on January 3, 2024 recommended that this proposed fare 
increase to the NVTA Board for approval. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The current NVTA Fare Policy was adopted by the Board of Directors in July 2014. The 
Fare Policy states that: 
 

Fare adjustments shall be considered by the NVTA Board under the following 
scenarios: 
1. Following NVTA’s annual report if Vine has failed to meet its farebox ratio goal defined in 

the fare policy. 
2. Every three years the NVTA Board of Directors will consider fare adjustments to 

match the previous three years of CPI for the San Francisco – Oakland – San Jose 
Region or to match the percent increase in Vine expenditures for the previous three 
years whichever is greater.  Unless the farebox ratio for the previous fiscal year is 
equal to or greater than 20%.  In which case fare increases shall be paused. 

 
  

61

mailto:rschenck@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Board Agenda                    Agenda Item 11.1 
March 20, 2024                                                                                                Page 2 of 5 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Vine Transit System 
 
NVTA staff is recommending a fare adjustment to cover the rise in operating costs. NVTA 
last fare adjustment was in 2015. As shown in Table 1, Vine Transit’s operating costs 
have risen 43% over the last eight fiscal years. While operating costs decreased during 
the COVID-19 pandemic in Fiscal Year (FY) 19-20 due to a reduction in service hours, by 
FY 21-22 expenses had risen back to FY 18-19 levels and then continued to rise. Table 
1 illustrates the rise in transit expenses since 2015. 
 
Table 1:  Vine Transit Operating Costs (Millions of $) 
 FY 

14/15 
FY 

15/16 
FY 

16/17 
FY 

17/18 
FY 

18/19 
FY 

19/20 
FY 

20/21 
FY 

21/22 
FY 

22/23 
Transit 
Expenses 

 
$9.7 

 
$9.5* 

 
$10.7 

 
$10.8 

 
$11.3 $11.4 $9.7** $12.2 $13.9 

% Change 
since 2015 

 
- - 10% 11% 16% 17%    -% 26% 43% 

* New contract executed 
** Covid 19 pandemic year, reduction of service hours 
 
The Vine and American Canyon Transit 
The Transportation Development Act (TDA) requires that NVTA achieve a 15% farebox 
ratio for the Vine and American Canyon Transit to receive TDA funds. This threshold was 
relaxed starting in 2020, but NVTA will once again be required to meet that requirement 
in 2026. This is defined as revenue obtained through means other than state and federal 
grants in an amount equal or above 15% of the system’s operating cost.   
 
Table 2 illustrates the farebox recovery generations compared to the increase in operating 
expenses and the farebox recovery ratio.  In the future, if Vine Transit continues to miss 
the required farebox ratio target, the system is at risk of having funds withheld by the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission, which could result in service reductions.   
 
Table 2:  Transit Fund Farebox and Operating Expenses FY2015 to FY2023 
 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 
Farebox  $1,310,234   $ 1,231,773   $1,247,968   $1,330,940  
 
Total 
Operating  $ 9,731,582   $ 9,525,784   $10,665,056   $10,763,749  
 
Overall Increase 
in Operating 
from FY2015 

 
- 

 
- 
 9.6% 10.6% 

Vine Farebox 
Recovery 
Ratio 15.03% 19.51% 18.42% 17.98% 

*New contract executed 

62



NVTA Board Agenda                    Agenda Item 11.1 
March 20, 2024                                                                                                Page 3 of 5 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 
Farebox  $1,276,122   $993,746   $515,553   $580,477         $871,140  
  

Total Operating  $ 11,261,321   $ 11,428,239   $   9,689,345   $ 12,222,309  
  

$13,915,156  
 
Overall Increase 
in Operating 
from FY 2015 15.7% 17.4% -% 25.6% 43.0% 
Vine Farebox 
Recovery Ratio 17.1% 13.41% 8.61% 8.99% 11.07% 

*Covid 19 Pandemic, free fares to Sept 2021 
 
 
MTC is currently working on a Fare Integration Policy to ensure a more seamless 
experience for the rider as part of its Regional Network Management efforts. Additionally, 
The California legislature, recognizing that its recent funding bump for public 
transportation is not enough to address the many critical issues faced by transit agencies, 
called for the California State Transportation Agency (CalSTA) to convene a task force to 
find solutions to attract more riders to public transit.  
 
Board approval to raise fares to the recommended amount would align Vine fares to 
connecting public transit systems and systems in adjacent counties. It should be noted 
that Sonoma County receives additional subsidies from the County of Sonoma to help it 
meet its farebox recovery requirements. 
 
Table3: Local Cash Fare Comparisons 

 Vine  Soltrans/
FAST 

Sonoma 
County Transit 

Santa Rosa 
City Bus 

Adult  (19-64) $1.60    $2.00 $1.50 to $2.10 
(Zone 1 and 2) $1.50 

Youth (6-18) $1.10 $1.75 Free Free 

Senior (65+), Disabled and Medicare $.80 $1.00 $0.75 to $1.05 
(Zone 1 and 2 0.75 

 
The current fares were effective July 1, 2015, and proposed fare changes would take 
effect July 1, 2024. This, along with other local funding sources should bring Vine Transit 
into compliance with the farebox ratio requirement when it returns in 2026.  Tables 3, 4, 
and 5 below outline the proposed pricing for NVTA’s pass and fare structure.   
 
  

63

https://cal.streetsblog.org/2023/06/16/theres-a-budget-with-transit-funding-but-negotiations-arent-over
https://cal.streetsblog.org/2023/06/16/theres-a-budget-with-transit-funding-but-negotiations-arent-over


NVTA Board Agenda                    Agenda Item 11.1 
March 20, 2024                                                                                                Page 4 of 5 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Proposed Vine Fare Tables: 
 
Table 3:  Vine Routes A-G, 10 and 11 Cash Fares and Passes 

 
Current 
Cash 
Fare 

New 
Cash 
Fare 

Current 
31-Day 
Pass 

New 
31-Day 
Pass 

Current 
20-Ride 

Pass 

New 20-
Ride Pass 

Current 
Day 
Pass 

New 
Day 
Pass 

Adult  
(19-64)* $1.60 $2.00  $53.00 $55.00 $29.00 $30.00 $6.50 $7.00 

Youth  
(6-18) $1.10 $1.25  $36.00 $37.00 $20.00 $21.00 $4.50 $5.00 

Senior (65+), 
Disabled and 

Medicare 
$.80 $1.00  $26.50 $27.50 $14.50 $15.00 $3.25 $3.50 

* Note that low-income riders ages 19-64 will continue to be able to apply to the Clipper 
START program for 50% off fares throughout the Bay Area. 
 
Table 4:  VineGo Fares 

 Current Single 
Zone Fare 

New Single 
Zone Fare 

Current Multi 
Zone Fare 

New Multi 
Zone Fare 

VineGo $3.20 $4.00 $6.40 $8.00 

 
Table 5 Express and BART Routes 21 and 29 

 Current Cash Fare New Cash Fare Current 31-Day Pass New 31-Day Pass 

Route 21 $3.00 $3.50 $53.00 $55.00 

Route 29 $5.50 $6.00  $120.00 $125.00 

 
There are no recommended changes to the shuttle fare structure.   
 
Public Outreach 
In preparation for opening of the public hearing on February 21, 2024, NVTA placed public 
notices in the Napa Valley Register on January 20 and February 3.  NVTA also places 
public notices from January 24 through February 25 in Spanish in La Voz, a 
Spanish/English community publication serving the North San Francisco Bay in five 
counties:  Sonoma, Marin, Napa, Mendocino and Lake.  In addition, signs were placed 
on all NVTA buses in English, Spanish and Tagalog as well as on the Vine Transit 
website.   
 
  

64



NVTA Board Agenda                    Agenda Item 11.1 
March 20, 2024                                                                                                Page 5 of 5 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
As a result, NVTA received written comments that were given to all NVTA Board Members 
at the opening of the public hearing on February 21, 2024.  At that hearing, the Board 
member representing the Paratransit Coordinating Council expressed concern about the 
impact of the fare increase on those riding paratransit because paratransit riders are often 
on a fixed income or are low income riders.  In addition, another NVTA Board member 
commented about how the fare increase could have a negative impact on ridership 
impacting ridership levels. Since February 21, NVTA has received one additional written 
comment (Attachment 4).  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) Vine Transit Title VI Equity Analysis 
(2) Vine Fare Policy 
(3) Vine Fare Types, Current and Proposed 
(4) Written Public Comment 
 

65



Page 1 of 10 

TITLE VI FARE EQUITY ANALYSIS 

Table of Contents 

INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................. 2 

BACKGROUND .............................................................................................................. 2 

TITLE VI POLICY ............................................................................................................ 2 

METHODOLOGY ............................................................................................................ 2 

EFFECTS OF PROPOSED FARE CHANGES ON MINORITY AND LOW INCOME 
POPULATIONS ............................................................................................................... 3 

System Wide Effects .................................................................................................... 3 

Disparate Impact Analysis ........................................................................................... 5 

Disproportionate Burden Analysis................................................................................ 6 

CONCLUSION ................................................................................................................ 6 

APPENDIX 1 ................................................................................................................... 8 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA AGENDA ITEM  11.1 

MARCH 20, 2024 

66



Page 2 of 10 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits discrimination based on race, color, or 
national origin in programs and activities receiving Federal financial assistance.  Federal 
Transportation Administration (FTA) Circular 4702.1B requires FTA recipients serving 
populations of 200,000 or greater to evaluate any fare change and any major service 
change at the planning and programming stages to determine whether those changes 
have a discriminatory impact.  FTA Circular 4702.1B does not require NVTA to perform 
an equity analysis, as a matter of policy Vine Transit performs equity analyses as guided 
by FTA Circular 4702.1B.  This document is an analysis of Vine Transit’s planned fare 
increase. 

BACKGROUND 
 
Since the last fare increase in 2015, total operational costs for the Vine Transit System 
have increased 43% or $4,183,574.  
 
By statute, the Vine, including American Canyon Transit, must collect passenger fares, 
advertising, and local contributions an amount equal to 15% of its operating cost. This is 
referred to as the farebox recovery ratio.  This threshold was waived starting in 2020, but 
NVTA will once again be required to meet that ratio by FY2026. Over the last two fiscal 
years, Vine Transit has failed to reach the required farebox ratio.  If TDA laws were 
currently being enforced, NVTA could be subject to a reduction in TDA funding and Vine 
Transit would have to initiate service reductions, which would result in less passengers, 
farebox, and additional service reductions.   
 
Additionally, the NVTA Board of Directors in July 2014 adopted a Fare Policy which 
directs Vine Transit to propose a fare adjustment every three years or when operations 
fail to reach its required farebox ratio.  The Vine and American Canyon Transit missed its 
obligatory 15% target in Fiscal Year 2022-2023 with a Farebox Recovery Ratio of 11.07% 
as well as in Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Vine Transit in its unaudited financial statement will 
miss the required 15% farebox ratio for the fourth consecutive year. The table below 
illustrates the farebox recovery generations compared to the increase in operating 
expenses. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67



Page 3 of 10 
 

 
 
Table 1:  Transit Fund Farebox and Operating Expenses FY2015 to FY2023 

 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 
Farebox  $1,310,234   $ 1,231,773   $1,247,968   $1,330,940  
Farebox Inc/(Dec) -  -6.0% 1.3% 6.6% 
 
Operating  $11,672,743   $11,547,760   $13,324,993   $13,480,279  
Less Depreciation  $(1,941,161)  $(2,021,976)  $(2,659,937)    $(2,716,530) 
Total Operating  $ 9,731,582   $          9,525,784   $        10,665,056   $10,763,749  
Operating 
Inc/(Dec) - 

               
$(205,798) 

              
$1,139,272  

                    
$98,693  

Percentage  -2.1%* 12.0% 0.9% 
 
Overall Increase 
in Operating from 
FY2015 

- - 
 

9.6% 10.6% 
Vine Farebox 
Recovery Ratio 15.03% 19.51% 18.42% 17.98% 

*New contract executed 
 
 

 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 
Farebox  $1,276,122   $993,746   $515,553   $580,477         $871,140  
Farebox Inc/(Dec) 

-4.1% -22.1% -48.1%* 12.6% 
 

$50.1% 
  

Operating  $13,937,571   $14,064,048   $12,265,554   $13,947,378  
  

$16,132,479  

Less Depreciation  $(2,676,250)  $ (2,635,809)  $ (2,576,209)  $ (1,725,069) 
  

$(2,217,323) 

Total Operating  $11,261,321   $ 11,428,239   $   9,689,345   $ 12,222,309  
  

$13,915,156  
Operating 
Inc/(Dec) 

          
$497,572            $166,918      $(1,738,894) 

       
$2,532,964  

       
$1,692,847  

Percentage 4.6% 1.5% -15.2% 26.1% 13.9% 
 
Overall Increase in 
Operating from 
FY2015 15.7% 17.4% -0.4% 25.6% 43.0% 
Vine Farebox 
Recovery Ratio 17.1% 13.41% 8.61% 8.99% 11.07% 

*Covid 19 Pandemic, free fares to Sept 2021 
 
 
July 2024 Fare Adjustments 
 

68



Page 4 of 10 
 

Vine Transit is proposing an increase of between three percent (3%) and twenty-five 
percent (25%). Adult fares would increase to $2.00 per ride from $1.60.  This change 
would result in a $1.25 youth fare and a $1.00 senior and disabled fare per the adopted 
Vine Fare Policy.  The fare increase would subsequently change the pass fare structure 
as well in accordance with the Vine Fare Policy.  This proposed fare increase would 
change the standard VineGo fare as well to $3.50 for a single zone and $7.00 for a multi 
zone trip.  The Route 21 cash fare would go from $3.00 to $3.50 and Route 29 fares 
would go from $5.50 to $6.00Additionally, the Route 11X pricing would be changed from 
matching the Express routes to aligning with the local routes just like the Route 11.  The 
proposed new fares are included in Appendix 1. 

TITLE VI POLICY 
 
NVTA will ensure that its programs, policies, and activities all comply with the Department 
of Transportation’s (DOT) Title VI regulations.  The Authority is committed to creating and 
maintaining public transit service that is free of all forms of discrimination.  NVTA will take 
whatever preventive, corrective, and disciplinary action necessary to address behavior 
that violates this policy or the rights and privileges it is designed to protect. 

METHODOLOGY 
 
Using the results of the most recently completed MTC Vine Survey in Spring 2019, NVTA 
staff compared the demographic information gathered about Vine riders with the 2020 
Decennial Census Data and the 2022 one year and five year (2018-2022) American 
Community Survey data. MTC comissioned a new survey in later 2023, but it will not be 
completed, and the data will not be available until mid-2024. The geographical areas for 
the demographic data of the general population included all areas within ¼ of a bus stop 
when available and if that level is not available, demographic data on Napa County 
residents.  Extrapolating from this data, staff was able to predict how the proposed fare 
change would affect certain populations based upon the overall service area 
demographics. 
 
The Disproportionate Burden Analysis was completed by comparing the percentage of 
households with income under 200% of the federal poverty line.  This is a standard 
measure in the Bay Area in determining Equity Priority Communities (previously 
Communities of Concern).  Staff also compared the percentage of zero vehicle 
households as these people are more likely to be transit dependent. 

EFFECTS OF PROPOSED FARE CHANGES ON MINORITY AND LOW 
INCOME POPULATIONS 

System Wide Effects 
The recommended fare change would increase the base adult fare by $.40 from $1.60 to 
$2.00 and increase all other fare types in accordance with the Vine Fare Policy.  The 

69



Page 5 of 10 
 

increase will apply to routes A-G, 10, 11, and 11X.  The routes 29 and 21 fares increase 
at lower rates.  The total projected change in fare revenue resulting from the fare increase 
is approximately $116,000. 
 
 
 
Table 2 Rider and General Population Demographic 

 

Disparate Impact Analysis 
The minority population among Vine ridership is close to that of the general population at 
-1.5% lower than that of the general population within the affected jurisdictions.  Since the 
minority population is slightly lower than the general population, the analysis indicates 
that it is does not constitute a disparate impact. 
 

Disproportionate Burden Analysis 
 
In analyzing the percentage of households with annual income under 200% of the federal 
poverty level, NVTA staff found that Vine riders are much more likely than the general 
population to be under 200% of the federal poverty level by 31.8%. NVTA staff also 
analyzed the percentage of zero vehicle households and found that Vine riders, are more 
likely to live in households without vehicles by 33.3% compared to the general population.  
This is important because these riders are more likely to be transit dependent and 
therefore more affected by an increase in fares.   
 

CONCLUSION 
There are significantly more low income and zero vehicle households than in the 
general population affected by the fare changes. The results of the disproportionate 
burden analysis has to be balanced by the alternative solution to address the farebox 
problem which would be to cut service in future years.  The alternative solution would 
likely result in greater negative impact on these transit dependent riders. 
 
  

 Vine Ridership 
from MTC 

Survey 

General Population 
within ¼ Mile of 
Transit Stops 

Difference 

Percent Minority 
Population 

56% 57.5% -1.5% 

Percent of 
Households Under 
200% of Poverty Level 

54% 22.2% 31.8% 

Percent of Zero 
Vehicle Households 

40% 6.7% 33.3% 

70



Page 6 of 10 
 

APPENDIX 
 

Appendix 1  Proposed Fare Table 

Appendix 2 Decennial Census 2020 and American Communities 
Survey 2023 5yr Data 

71



Page 7 of 10 
 

Appendix 1  Proposed Fare Table 

  Current Proposed Numerical Difference % Difference 

FARES     
Adult, now including 11X $1.60  $2.00  $0.40  25% 
Youth, now including 11X $1.10  $1.25  $0.15  14% 
Senior/Disabled/Medicare, now 
including 11X  $0.80  $1.00  $0.20  25% 
Express (Route 21) $3.00  $3.50  $0.50  17% 
BART (Route 29)  $5.50  $6.00  $0.50  9% 
Cash, Paratransit (One Zone) $3.20  $4.00  $0.30  9% 
Cash, Paratransit (Two Zones) $6.40  $8.00  $0.60  9% 
31-Day Pass, Adult $53.00  $55.00  $2.00  4% 
31-Day Pass, Youth $36.00  $37.00  $1.00  3% 
31-Day Pass, 
Senior/Disabled/Medicare $26.50  $27.50  $1.00  4% 
31-Day BART $120.00  $125.00  $5.00  4% 
20-Ride Pass, Adult (Local routes 
10, 11 one "ride", 21  two(2) "rides", 
29 three (3) "rides") $29.00  $30.00  $1.00  3% 
20-Ride Pass, Youth (Local routes 
10, 11 one "ride", 21 two(2) "rides", 
29 three (3) "rides") $20.00  $21.00  $1.00  5% 
20-Ride Pas, 
Senior/Disabled/Medicare (Local 
routes 10, 11 one "ride", 21 two (2) 
"rides", 29 three (3) "rides") $14.50  $15.00  $0.50  3% 
Day Pass, Adult* $6.50  $7.00  $0.50  8% 
Day Pass, Youth* $4.50  $5.00  $0.50  11% 
Day Pass, 
Senior/Disabled/Medicare* $3.25  $3.50  $0.25  8% 

 
 
  

72



Page 8 of 10 

Appendix 2 General Population within ¼ Mile of Transit Stops: Decennial Census 2020 and American Communities Survey 2022 5yr Data 

Population 
(Census 2020) 

population jobs (work) % of people in 
poverty 

% of people who are 
non-White or of 
Hispanic / Latino 
origin (Census 2020) 

% of people who are 
non-White or of 
Hispanic / Latino 
origin 

% of households that 
are car free 

SYSTEM STATS 82,536 77,773 42,777 10% 57% 58% 7% 
10 Up Valley Connector 21,529 20,865 18,321 8% 49% 50% 7% 
11 Napa-Vallejo Connector 27,308 27,910 20,768 11% 67% 68% 9% 
11X Napa-Vallejo Express 4,111 4,897 2,508 10% 60% 65% 12% 
21 Napa-Solano Express 1,399 2,403 2,136 15% 70% 68% 6% 
29 Napa-BART Express 4,482 5,365 2,056 6% 59% 65% 9% 
A Browns Valley | North 
Napa 

14,596 14,773 8,500 7% 53% 54% 5% 

Route B Westwood | South 
Napa 

15,338 14,946 7,437 11% 61% 58% 4% 

Route C  Jefferson | Central 
Napa 

12,707 14,494 11,288 7% 53% 52% 7% 

Route D Shelter | Shurtleff 6,008 5,803 2,649 12% 61% 55% 6% 
Route E  Vintage 17,232 16,198 8,665 8% 48% 50% 6% 
Route F Southwest Napa 11,190 10,639 6,313 12% 56% 60% 5% 
Route G Coombs | South 
Napa 

5,019 5,408 4,960 15% 58% 57% 7% 

73



Page 9 of 10 
 

Appendix 2 Vine Ridership from MTC 2019 Survey 
 
 

VEHICLES IN HOUSEHOLD  WEEKDAY WEEKEND 
  TOTAL  Before 10AM Midday After 3PM  
BASE - ALL RESPONDENTS 19,755 4,408 4,792 3,482 6,625 
None 40% 31% 47% 35% 44% 
One 29% 32% 26% 26% 34% 
Two 17% 19% 22% 18% 6% 
Three 9% 12% 2% 12% 13% 
Four or more 5% 5% 3% 9% 4% 
Refused <1% - - 1% - 
      
Average Number of Vehicles 1.91 1.96 1.69 2.16 1.77 

 
HOUSEHOLD INCOME  WEEKDAY WEEKEND 
  TOTAL  Before 10AM Midday After 3PM  
 
  

TOTAL  Before 10AM Midday After 3PM  

BASE - ALL RESPONDENTS 19,755 4,408 4,792 3,482 6,625 
Below $10,000 [$5,000] 15% 15% 14% 13% 16% 
$10,000 to $24,999 [$17,499.5] 23% 23% 26% 15% 31% 
$25,000 to $34,999 [$29,999.5] 16% 16% 16% 22% 8% 
$35,000 to $49,999 [$42,499.5] 10% 8% 10% 7% 17% 
$50,000 to $74,999 [$62,499.5] 5% 5% 6% 5% 5% 
$75,000 to $99,999 [$87,499.5] 4% 6% 2% 5% 4% 
$100,000 to $149,999 [$124,999.5] 4% 3% 4% 5% 2% 
$150,000 or more [$200,000] 3% 3% 3% 5%  
Don't know 16% 17% 13% 22% 13% 
Refused 3% 4% 5% 1% 4% 
      
Average Income ($1,000) $39.7 $39.6 $39.0 $47.8 $30.0 

 
 

ARE YOU OF HIPSANIC, LATINO OR 
SPANISH ORIGIN 

 WEEKDAY WEEKEND 

 
  

TOTAL  Before 10AM Midday After 3PM  

BASE - ALL RESPONDENTS 19,755 4,408 4,792 3,482 6,625 
Yes 53% 42% 55% 59% 50% 
No 47% 58% 44% 41% 50% 
Refused <1% - 1% - - 

 
 
 
 

74



Page 10 of 10 
 

RACE/ETHNICITY ARE YOU . . . .   WEEKDAY WEEKEND 
  TOTAL  Before 10AM Midday After 3PM  
BASE - ALL RESPONDENTS 19,755 4,408 4,792 3,482 6,625 
Hispanic 45% 58% 41% 38% 50% 
White/Caucasian 44% 32% 51% 41% 48% 
Black/African American 11% 15% 7% 11% 14% 
Asian 6% 5% 4% 11% 2% 
American Indian/Alaska Native 4% - 4% 9% 2% 
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander 2% - 1% 2% 4% 
Mixed (unspecified) 1% - 2% 3% - 
Persian/Arab/North African/Middle 
Eastern 

<1% 2% - - - 

Refused 2% 2% 3% 2% - 
 

75



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
[15] 

CHAPTER 3 PASSENGER FARES, PASSES & TRANSFERS 

Section 3.1. Definitions 

For the purposes of these policies, the following definitions shall apply: 

Fare:  The fee charged and received by NVTA in exchange for transit services 
provided.  The fare can be in the form of cash payment at the time of service, 
prepayment through other means or Clipper.  Many transit fares are typically 
collected and recorded via an electronic recording device, known as a farebox; 
however, this is not the only method of collecting and recording fees.  This policy 
may use the term fare and farebox interchangeably, and shall be interpreted as 
the totality of the fees. 

Base Fare: For purposes of the fare policy, the base fare will be defined as the 
single unlinked trip, full cash fare. 

Youth Fare: Fare for any rider 18 years of age and under (photo ID with proof of 
age required). 

Child Fare: Fare for any child 5 years of age and younger. 

Express Bus Route:  A deluxe bus route characterized by one or more segments 
of high-speed, non-stop operation, and with a limited number of stops which are 
generally provided for commuter service. 

Fare Media: Fare media shall be defined as all passes, tickets, cards or ID’s sold 
or otherwise distributed for use on various NVTA services. 

Half-Fare:  Fares, as defined above, for eligible persons with disabilities, senior 
riders or Medicare cardholders.  The cash half fare is the maximum of one-half of 
the full cash fare or the current  FTA guidelines (Code of Federal Regulations, Title 
49, Subtitle B, Chapter Vi, Part 609), rounded down to an increment of $0.05. 

Local Bus Route:  Any fixed route bus service not designated as an express or 
shuttle bus route. 

Shuttle Bus Route: Local distribution services that operate in a small area and 
are used for shorter than average length trips are classified as shuttle services. 

Mode: Defines the different types of services offered by NVTA, which includes 
local bus, express bus, shuttle bus and Para-Transit. 

Senior: Any person age 65 or older (photo ID with proof of age required at 
boarding). 

Person with Disability: People who meet the currently enforced Federal Transit 
Administration’s (FTA) definition of people with disabilities.  At the time of the 
adoption of this policy, the definition is: “any individual who, by reason of illness, 
injury, age, congenital malfunction, or other incapacity or temporary or permanent 
disability (including any individual who is a wheelchair user or has semi-ambulatory  
capabilities),  cannot use effectively, without special  facilities, planning  or design, 
mass transportation  service or a mass transportation facility.” 

Attachment 2
NVTA Agenda Item 11.1 

March 20, 2024

76



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
[16] 

Medicare Cardholders:  Individuals who have been issued a Medicare card, 
regardless of age or disability. 

Day Pass: A 24 hour period pass valid for unlimited travel on all VINE fixed route 
services (excluding Route 29) for one calendar day from the time of activation 
through the end of the service day. 

Monthly Pass: A thirty (31) day period pass valid for unlimited travel on all VINE 
fixed route services (excluding the Route 29) for 31 calendar days from the day of 
activation through the end of the 31st consecutive service day. 

Section 3.2. Fare Policies 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s (NVTA) Fare Policy establishes principles 
and polices that govern recovery of passenger revenues in  support of NVTA’s 
vision of the Vine being a customer-driven and efficient public transportation 
system serving the County of Napa. 

3.2.1 Revenue Collection Principles 

Generally, fares are required to generate revenue to offset a component part of 
NVTA’s expenses as defined by the Transportation Development Act (TDA) as 
part of a sustainable long-term Financial Plan.  The following principles guide 
establishment and management of NVTA’s fare revenue collections: 

A. Promote ridership on all transit related services:  NVTA seeks to
encourage and facilitate transit ridership within VINE’s service area.
Vine’s fares shall; therefore, be devised to be attractive to the widest
possible range of existing and potential rider groups.

B. Equitable fares: To be equitable, fares must take into account the
needs of Vine’s riders as well as the cost and value of the service
provided by the Vine.  Vine’s fares shall support the travel patterns
and requirements of transit riders throughout the service area and
shall also reflect differences in the characteristics and frequency of
the service provided, while not undervaluing Vine’s service.

C. Enhance mobility & access: Vine fares shall enhance the ability of
riders to access the system and move through it with ease.  To do
so, Vine fares shall be easy to understand and shall promote a
unified system by simplifying and, where effective and possible,
unifying fares across services.

D. Effective & cost efficient: Vine’s fare pricing, fare policy, fare media
distribution  channels, and fare collection technologies shall be
developed and operated  to be easily applied by transit operating
employees, as well as to minimize the costs associated with fare
collection, fare media distribution and revenue processing.

E. Management:  Vine’s fares and fare collection system shall be
designed to facilitate data collection to foster analytical decision
making by NVTA’s staff.

77



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
[17] 

In keeping with these principles, the policies governing Vine’s fares are set forth 
below: 

A. Farebox Recovery: Vine collects fares from passengers riding its
transit services as one element of funding these services.  These
fares are then used to offset the costs of providing the transit service,
otherwise known as Farebox Recovery.  The Farebox Recovery ratio
is defined as the ratio of the transit fares to the operating costs.
NVTA’s farebox recovery ratio target shall be equal to those targets
set forth by Transit Development Act regulations.  Urban transit
services, Vine and American Canyon Transit, have a farebox
recovery target different than that of rural transit (Calistoga Shuttle,
St. Helena Shuttle and Yountville Trolley) and ADA Paratransit
services.  See note D at the end of this document for current
regulatory farebox recovery rates.

B. Vine Fare Adjustments: Fare adjustments are defined as any
permanent changes to Vine’s fare structure.  Decisions on fare
adjustments are made by the NVTA’s Board of Directors.  Prior to
making a decision on a fare adjustment, the Board shall consider the
recommendation by NVTA’s staff, including but not limited to an
analysis of the impacts on minorities and low-income individuals
consistent with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C.  §
2000d et seq), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Title VI
regulations (49 CFR part 21), and FTA’s Circular 4702.1B, including
any future amendments thereto, as well as NVTA’s Title VI Policy.
Prior to raising a fare, NVTA shall solicit and consider public
comment in compliance with 49 USC Chapter 53 and FTA Circular
9030.1C, including any future amendments thereto.  Implementation
of a fare adjustment shall occur no earlier than 30 days and no later
than 12 months following approval by the Board of Directors.  Any
change in the fare shall be rounded to the nearest $.05.

Fare adjustments shall be considered by the NVTA Board under the
following scenarios:

1. Following NVTA’s annual report if VINE has failed to meet its
farebox ratio goal defined in the fare policy.

2. Every three years the NVTA Board of Directors will consider
fare adjustments to match the previous three years of CPI-U
for the San Francisco – Oakland – San Jose Region or to
match the percent increase in Vine expenditures for the
previous three years whichever is greater.  Unless the farebox
ratio for the previous fiscal year is equal to or greater than
20%.  In which case fare increases shall be paused.

NVTA staff will annually report to the Board a review of
farebox revenues and the farebox recovery ratio for the entire
system and service.  NVTA staff will recommend possible

78



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
[18] 

solutions for meeting the minimum farebox recovery if 
analysis indicates it has not been met.  Solutions may include 
a recommendation for a fare adjustment.  Such 
recommendation will include consideration of economic 
trends, Vine’s current and future operating health and the 
value of services, both qualitative and quantitative, in the 
communities served. 

C. Fare Differentials: Vine’s fares shall balance simplicity and
uniformity of fares with the equity of pricing services consistent with
the cost and value of providing that service.  The number of fare
types, levels, and fare payment instruments shall consider the ease
of enforcement by vehicle operators, ease of understanding by
customers and the ease of tracking with both the farebox technology
and the back-office technology.

Services that cost more to operate or provide additional value to
passengers compared with local bus service are considered
premium services, and may be priced higher (but never lower) than
local bus service.  Premium services include express buses,
paratransit, and if implemented in the future, bus rapid transit.  The
price structure for each premium service will be set separately.

Local distribution services that operate in a small area and are used
for shorter than average length trips provide less value to riders and
are classified as shuttle services.  Shuttle services may be priced
equal to or lower than local bus service.

D. Vine-GO Paratransit Fares: Vine Go’s policy, in compliance with
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Section
12143) and the implementing FTA Regulations (49 CFR Section
37.121) is that ADA complementary paratransit fares will equal twice
the regular fixed-route fare for the same trip.  If the Act is changed,
this policy shall be changed to be consistent with federal law.  If ADA
complementary paratransit provides service beyond or in addition to
the federally defined ADA complementary paratransit service, a
higher fare shall be charged for that service.

E. Vine Local Passes: Prepayment of fares on the fixed-route system
shall be encouraged.  Monthly local Vine passes shall be discounted
to provide some savings to commuters compared with the cash fare,
but not less than 30 (See Attachment A) times the cash fare.  Day
passes shall be priced at least equivalent to the cost of three
boardings and no more than the cost of six boardings.  Twenty ride
passes shall provide the equivalent of 20 rides and shall be
discounted no more than 10% (See Attachment A) from the actual
value.  These policies shall be applied equitably across all fare types
(Adult, Youth and Discount).  Passes shall be priced to expedite the

79



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
[20] 

local VINE service do not apply to the Route 21.  The Route 
21 does not have a distinct monthly pass but all other passes 
are valid for use on the Route 21.  In the case of a punch pass 
one ride shall be equal to two punches.  Transfers are 
accepted onto the Route 21 from any other VINE route.   

G. Local Shuttle Services:  Local shuttle service fares (St. Helena,
Yountville, Calistoga and American Canyon) are defined by the
individual Agreements between the jurisdiction and NVTA.  These
shuttle services are not subject to any provision stated in the Fare
Policy except those required by law and defined within the relevant
Agreement.

H. Promotions and Special Events:  Fare promotions, including
special event fares, may be used to attract riders to Vine services.
Fare promotions can be a cost-effective method of attracting riders
to new services (such as new bus routes) and existing services.  For
the purpose of this policy, Fare Promotions shall be defined as any
new fare card, fare media, cash fare or other transit fare which is not
part of the adopted fare structure and may be priced higher or lower
than Vine’s regular fares.  Fare Promotions are not required to
include a specific fare for seniors, Medicare cardholders or
individuals with disabilities, however the rates charged seniors,
Medicare cardholders or individuals with disabilities during off-peak
hours must not exceed one-half of the rates generally applicable to
other persons at peak hours (excluding the Fare Promotion) as
required by FTA regulations (Code of Federal Regulations, Title 49,
Subtitle B, Chapter Vi, Part 609).  Fare promotions must be able to
be implemented within the capabilities of the current fare collection
technology in use at the time of the implementation.  Fare promotions
shall not exceed a six (6) month period.  If the promotion is deemed
to be successful and management desires it to be part of the fare
structure, then management shall bring the issue and analysis to the
Board of Directors for adoption into the current fare structure. Should
the fare promotion result in “free rides”. Pass holders with a 31-day
pass activated before the beginning of the promotion and valid during
the period of the promotion shall receive a period pass equal to the
free period. To remain equitable all paratransit service shall be free
during free ride promotions

I. New Payment: Options Fare payment options that effectively attract
a different market segment or encourage increased use of Vine
services by current riders shall be developed; but must be within the
realm of current or planned hardware, software and back-office
technologies.  Initial pricing for such options shall be set such that
VINE is not expected to lose fare revenue, unless the Board of
Directors specifically approves an estimated amount of lost revenue.

J. Design: The design of fare payment instruments shall consider the

80



 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
[21] 

ease of enforcement by bus operators, ease of understanding by 
customers and the ease of tracking with both the farebox technology 
and the back-office technology. 

K. Child and Youth Fares - Vine Local Route Services: Up to two 
children, 5 years of age or less, ride free with each adult over 18 
paying fare.  Additional children must pay $.50 per child. No child 
under the age of seven may ride without an accompanying adult.  

Youth shall be defined as persons ages 6 - 18.  Youth may qualify 
for a reduced fare based on the type of service being provided and 
the publicized fare.  Youth fare is calculated by subtracting $.50 from 
the full adult fare.  In all cases, the youth will no longer qualify for any 
youth discounts on his/her 19th birthday. 

L. Half-Fare Program – Vine Local Fixed Route Services: The 
objective of the Half-Fare Program is to provide reduced fares for 
fixed route services for seniors, persons with disabilities and 
Medicare cardholders in compliance with the Federal Transit 
Administration’s half-fare requirements (Code of Federal 
Regulations, Title 49, Subtitle B, Chapter Vi, Part 609). 

Who is eligible for the half-fare program? 

1. Persons aged 65 and older, unless the FTA regulations 
defining seniors are changed in the future, in which case the 
FTA regulations shall be followed. 

2. Medicare cardholders 

3. People who meet the currently enforced Federal Transit 
Administration’s (FTA) definition of people with disabilities.  At 
the time of the adoption of this policy, the definition is: “any 
individual who, by reason of illness, injury, age, congenital 
malfunction, or other incapacity or temporary  or permanent 
disability (including any individual who is a wheelchair user or 
has semi-ambulatory  capabilities), cannot use effectively, 
without special facilities, planning or design, mass 
transportation service or a mass transportation facility.” 

81



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
[22] 

NOTES 

A. The local monthly pass multiplier is based on an analysis of other local transit
services within the Bay Area and what is currently being used by the Vine.  See
Attachment A.

B. The discount for the punch pass is based on an analysis of other local transit
services within the Bay Area and what the VINE is currently using.  See Attachment
A.

C. The Route 29 monthly pass multiplier is based on an analysis of other express
route services within the Bay Area and what is currently being used by the Vine.
See Attachment B.

D. As of June 1, 2014 the regulatory minimum farebox recovery ratio is 16% for urban
transit services and 10% for rural and ADA paratransit services.

E. Vine offers reduced fares to senior citizens and disabled persons.  The Vine honors
the federal Medicare identification card, the California Department of Motor
Vehicles disability ID card, the Regional Transit Connection Discount Card, or any
other current identification card issued by another transit operator that is valid for
the type of transportation service or discount requested; and when offering
reduced fares to senior citizens, it also offers the same reduced fare to disabled
patrons.

82



Vine Transit Fares
Fare Type Current Proposed Numerical $ Percentage %

Adult, now including 11X $1.60 $2.00 $0.40 25%
Youth, now including 11X $1.10 $1.25 $0.15 14%
Senior/Disabled/Medicare, now including 11X $0.80 $1.00 $0.20 25%
Express (Route 21) $3.00 $3.50 $0.50 17%
BART (Route 29) $5.50 $6.00 $0.50 9%
Cash, Paratransit (One Zone) $3.20 $4.00 $0.80 25%
Cash, Paratransit (Two Zones) $6.40 $8.00 $1.60 25%
31-Day Pass, Adult $53.00 $55.00 $2.00 4%
31-Day Pass, Youth $36.00 $37.00 $1.00 3%
31-Day Pass, Senior/Disabled/Medicare $26.50 $27.50 $1.00 4%
31-Day BART $120.00 $125.00 $5.00 4%
20-Ride Pass, Adult (Local routes 10, 11 one "ride", 21  two(2) "rides", 29 three (3) "rides") $29.00 $30.00 $1.00 3%
20-Ride Pass, Youth (Local routes 10, 11 one "ride", 21 two(2) "rides", 29 three (3) "rides") $20.00 $21.00 $1.00 5%
20-Ride Pas, Senior/Disabled/Medicare (Local routes 10, 11 one "ride", 21 two (2) "rides", 29 three (3) "rides") $14.50 $15.00 $0.50 3%
Day Pass, Adult* $6.50 $7.00 $0.50 8%
Day Pass, Youth* $4.50 $5.00 $0.50 11%
Day Pass, Senior/Disabled/Medicare* $3.25 $3.50 $0.25 8%
*Not Valid on Route 29

ATTACHMENT 3
NVTA AGENDA ITEM 11.1 

March 20, 2024

83



ATTACHMENT 4 
AGENDA ITEM 11.1 

MARCH 20, 2024 

Public Comment – 
Item 11.1 Proposed Vine Transit Fare Increase 

Writen comment submited via email: 

From: ROBERT ACKLEY  
Subject: Transparency 

Hi Rebecca, I’m wri�ng about the fare increase proposal that was discussed in the 2/21/24 mee�ng. The 
reason I’m wri�ng is that your proposed solu�on (fare increase) sounds a lot like the plight of the Napa 
Register. A year ago we dropped the Register because they couldn’t execute the delivery consistently. We 
decided to go digital at $10.99/month last summer. Less than two months later the price went to $21.99 
a month, followed by another two or three dollar increase before year's end. I wrote a note to the editor 
sugges�ng that their current path could only lead to higher prices un�l they reached a point that most 
people wouldn’t pay, and they would be out of business. They were responsive and grandfathered me at 
the original $10.99/month. I’m happy with that. They raised the price to $28.99 a month star�ng January 
1 this year. 

Now, public transporta�on is using the same approach (well jus�fied I’m sure) to deal with ridership 
problems. I rarely see a vine bus with significant passenger load. Much more common to see no or a few 
passengers on that huge bus. How much does a bus cost to buy and operate? What is the average 
occupancy on each route. How would you address this problem if you didn’t have tax payers subsidizing 
your opera�on. The real ques�on in my mind is: How do you match ridership to capacity? I believe one 
of the solu�ons could be reducing capacity (smaller busses) or route frequency. Where can I find info 
regarding % occupancy of each scheduled run? 

Thank you, 
Bob Ackley 

84



March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 
 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s (NVTA) Annual Financial Statement with 
Independent Auditor’s Report for the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and Single 
Audit Report of Uniform Guidance. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board: 

 
(1) Accept and file the Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s Report for 

Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2023 and 2022 and the NVTA Single Audit Report 
of the Uniform Guidance for the Year Ended June 30, 2022; and  

 
(2) Return an allocation surplus of $3,534,631 to the Local Transportation Fund 

(LTF) Trust Fund  
. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The certified public accountants firm, Brown Armstrong Incorporated, completed NVTA’s 
annual financial audit for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and federal Single 
Audit Report of Uniform Guidance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. This report 
summarizes NVTA’s financial position at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
$3,534,631 will be returned to the Local Transportation Fund for reallocation, which will 
be made available for future allocation to NVTA when requested. 
 

85



March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director - Administration, Finance and Policy 

(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s (NVTA) Annual Financial 
Statement with Independent Auditor’s Report for the Years Ended 
June 30, 2023 and 2022 and Single Audit Report of Uniform Guidance 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board: 

 
(1) Accept and file the Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s Report for 

Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2023 and 2022 (Attachment 2) and the NVTA 
Single Audit Report of the Uniform Guidance for the Year Ended June 30, 2023 
(Attachment 3); and  

 
(2) Return an allocation surplus of $3,534,631 to the Local Transportation Fund 

(LTF) Trust Fund 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
NVTA Financial Activities 
 
NVTA financial activities are separated into three (3) fund types: 
 

1. Governmental Fund: This fund type accounts for all of the non-trust, non-transit, non-
capital activities of NVTA, also known as the General Fund. It includes agency 
administration, salaries, pass through activities, and planning costs.   
 

86

mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 11.2 
March 20, 2024 
Page 2 of 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________  
 

The Governmental activities Net Position increased by $488,364 from $2,408,827 in 
FY2022-21 to $2,897,191 in FY2023-22. The reason was advances of funds for the 
Vine Trail and Soscol Junction were used that were accumulated over the previous 
fiscal year.  
 

2. Proprietary Fund (or Enterprise Fund): This fund accounts for the financial activity 
of all public transit service programs.  At the end of FY 2023-22, the enterprise fund 
net position increased by $5,063,000 from $36,658,838 to $31,595,838.  
 
The enterprise fund significantly increased assets due to the completion of the Imola 
Park and Ride and the ongoing construction of Vine Bus Maintenance Facility. 

 
NVTA will also return an allocation surplus back to the Local Transportation Fund 
(LTF) trust account of $3,534,631. These funds were allocated as stop-gap advance 
to federal appropriations and grant approval delays and are no longer needed for 
expenses incurred in the fiscal year. These dedicated funds will be available for 
reallocation in a future period should NVTA request the funds. This amount is 
significantly higher than in previous years - $163,517 and $617,772 due to the delays 
of receiving federal funds for transit operations and the use of the TIFIA financing for 
the Vine Bus Maintenance Facility. 
 

3. Fiduciary Funds:  This fund type accounts for the Bay Area Air Quality Management’s 
(BAAQMD) Transportation for Clean Air Fund.  The funds pass through NVTA to other 
governments.  NVTA collects an administration fee from the BAAQMD program up to 
five percent (5%). At the end of FY 2023-22, the Fiduciary Fund Type shows net 
assets of $549,833 due to the carryover of projects into later years.   

 
Management Discussion and Analysis 
 
NVTA continued its brisk pace on progressing major, transformative project in its pipeline. 
Three marquee projects; Soscol Junction, the Vine Trail, and Vine Bus Maintenance 
Facility, had huge strides in construction progress with the goal post within sight for the 
competition while a new park and ride facility- the Imola Park and Ride, in the City of 
Napa, began service in October 2022. 
 
In terms of planning and capital development, NVTA has been able to progress on several 
active projects in the pipeline hitting several key milestones.  Noteworthy project and 
program developments during the year include:  
 
Soscol Junction 
Napa County's most significant transportation project in a decade is swiftly progressing, 
captivating the attention of daily commuters and travelers alike. The project is expected 
to be materially completed and open to traffic this summer, ahead of the fall 2024 
schedule for the $54 million Soscol Junction project.. 

87



Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 11.2 
March 20, 2024 
Page 3 of 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
The long-awaited Soscol Junction project reflects a decades-long endeavor, harkening 
back to California's 1970s plans to relocate Highway 29 and create an interchange at the 
Soscol Junction site. Although the original vision faced setbacks, the current project 
brings Napa Valley closer to that vision, introducing modern features such as 
roundabouts. Soscol Junction is well on its way to transforming the entrance to Napa 
Valley wine country. Soscol Junction serves as a primary gateway to Napa Valley wine 
country and the City of Napa, with an average daily traffic flow of around 69,000 vehicles 
on Highway 29. 
 
 
Napa Valley Vine Trail-St. Helena to Calistoga 
The Napa Valley Vine Trail (Vine Trail) is a visionary and connective multiuse path that 
will extend from the City of Calistoga to the Vallejo Ferry terminal in Solano County. The 
Vine Trail route incorporates several existing paved pathways in the cities of Calistoga, 
Napa, American Canyon, St. Helena, Vallejo, the Town of Yountville, and the County of 
Napa. When it is fully completed, the 47-mile paved trail will involve land controlled by 
twelve separate public agencies. 
After construction delays during an abnormally wet winter season, construction on the 
eight-mile segment was full steam ahead in the spring.   
Given the continued delays with gas and electric undergrounding adjacent to the trail, the 
anticipated start date has been moved to the Spring of 2024.  The project budget was 
also increased due to the unanticipated costs of these delays. 
 
Farebox Ratio 
 
Due to the lingering effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, transit agencies statewide, 
including Vine Transit, have experienced significant declines in local and farebox 
revenues. In response, the State of California has provided statutory and 
administrative/regulatory relief for public transportation agencies.  Assembly Bill No. 90 
(AB 90) was approved by the Governor that temporarily suspends the financial penalties 
associated with the TDA’s requirements that transit agencies obtain specified fixed 
percentages of their operating budgets from passenger fares through the FY2022-23 
budget years.  As such, for the year ended June 30, 2023, the farebox recovery ratios 
were suspended.  
 
Single Audit Report of Uniform Guidance (formerly Office of Management and 
Budget Announcement 133 OMB A-133) 
 
NVTA is required to undergo a Single Audit, known as the Uniform Guidance for receiving 
funds in excess of $750,000. A Single Audit encompasses an examination of the agency’s 
financial records, financial statements, federal award transactions and expenditures, 
general management of its operations, internal control systems, and federal assistance 
received during the audit period.  Findings during the audit period ending June 30, 2023: 

88

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Financial_statements
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Expenditure


Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 11.2 
March 20, 2024 
Page 4 of 4 
____________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
Financial: There were no financial findings.   
 
Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs:  There were no findings. 
 
Material Weakness: No material weaknesses were noted. 
 
Recommendations: There were no recommendations noted. 
 
The complete audits are available on request and will be distributed to Board members 
at the meeting.  The financial audit and single audit are also available on NVTA’s website 
at http://www.nvta.ca.gov/fiscal-audits-single-audits. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
 (1) Brown Armstrong CPA’s Letter to NVTA’s Board of Directors dated 
      December 27, 2023 (SAS 114) 
(2) NVTA Audit Report for Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 
(3) NVTA Single Audit Report for Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2023 
 
 
 
 
  

89

http://www.nvta.ca.gov/fiscal-audits-single-audits


ATTACHMENT 1
AGENDA ITEM 11.2

90



91



92



ATTACHMENT 2

93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



ATTACHMENT 3

173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Vine Transit Update 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) receive the second quarter Fiscal 
Year (FY) 2023-24 Vine Transit update. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This report summarizes the Vine’s operational performance during the second quarter for 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-24, covering the period Oct 1 to December 31, 2023. The board 
memo compares the second quarter of FY 2023-24 to the second quarter of FY 2019-
2020 to provide context on how ridership compares to pre-COVID ridership levels and 
compares to the prior year to provide insight to more recent ridership trends. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact?  No 

185



March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.3 

Continued From: New  
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Rebecca Schenck, Program Manager – Public Transit 

(707) 259-8636 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Vine Transit Update 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the second quarter 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-24 Vine Transit update. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The first four tables compare ridership across different services in the second quarter of 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 (October to December) to the second quarter of Fiscal Year 2019-
2020, which was the last second quarter that was unaffected by the COVID-19 pandemic. 
This allows us to present ridership today compared to pre-COVID levels. 
 
Table 1 shows that the eight fixed routes in the City of Napa in the second quarter of FY 
2019-20 carried 91,372 riders compared to the 31,183 riders on the six fixed routes 
available in FY 2023-24, a decrease of 67%. The on-demand service operating in the City 
of Napa served 1,203 riders during the second quarter of FY 2023-24 so the overall 
decrease in ridership in the City of Napa was 66%. The changes implemented on August 
13, 2023, increased the number of fixed routes in Napa in an effort to increase the City of 
Napa ridership, but its impact was minimal. 
 
Table 1: City of Napa - Comparing Q2 of FY20 & Q2 of FY24 

 
Q2 FY20 Q2 FY24 % Difference Numerical 

Difference 
Napa Local On-Demand N/A 1,203 N/A 1,203 
Fixed Route 91,372 29,980 -67.19% -61,392 
Total 91,372 31,183 -65.87% -60,189 

 
 

186

mailto:dcypress@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Board Item                                Agenda Item 11.3 
March 20, 2024                              Page 2 of 8 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Overall, Table 2 shows that the regional routes have recovered faster than the local City 
of Napa routes. There was a 32% decrease in ridership on the regional routes from FY 
20 to FY 24. The Route 10 is performing the best at 8.1% below pre-pandemic ridership 
levels. The August 13th changes brought the Route 10 service hours in line with pre-
pandemic levels and helped the Route 10 ridership rise significantly.  
 
Table 2: Routes 10, 11, 11X, 21 and 29 Ridership – Comparing Q2 of FY20 & Q2 of FY24 
  Q2 FY20 Q2 FY24 % Difference Numerical Difference 
Route 10 39,713 36,495 -8.10% -3,218 
Route 11 50,797 32,032 -36.94% -18,765 
Route 10X 1,061 N/A N/A -1,061 
Route 11X  1,379 882 -36.03% -497 
Route 21 9,669 4,029 -58.33% -5,640 
Route 29 18,326 8,798 -51.99% -9,528 
Total 120,945 82,236 -32.01% -38,709 

 
Table 3 indicates that ridership recovery on the community shuttles varies greatly by 
community.  The City of American Canyon is 17% below pre-pandemic levels.  Meanwhile 
the Yountville Bee is performing at 65% below pre-pandemic levels. 
 
Table 3: Community Shuttles– Comparing Q2 of FY20 & Q2 of FY24 

 Q2 FY20 Q2 FY24 % Difference Numerical Difference 
Calistoga Shuttle 5,322 4,159 -21.85% -1,163 
St. Helena Shuttle 3,485 1,748 -49.84% -1,737 
Yountville Bee 3,686 1,304 -64.62% -2,382 
American Canyon 
Transit 

7,118 5,875 -17.46% -1,243 

Total 19,611 13,086 -33.27% -6,525 
 
VineGo Ridership, as shown in Table 4, also remains low compared (-43%) to pre-
pandemic levels. It’s understandable that VineGo ridership has been slow to return given 
those eligible for VineGo tend to be the most vulnerable to COVID-19.  
 
Table 4: VineGo Ridership – Comparing Q2 of FY20 & Q2 of FY24 

 
Q2 FY20 Q2 FY24 % Difference Numerical Difference 

VineGo 6,503 3,726 -42.70% -2,777 
 
Tables 5- 7, compare an annual difference between second quarter of FY 2022-2023 to 
second quarter of FY 2023-2024 to see the impact of the August 12, 2023 changes.  
Ridership in the City of Napa is about the same, with a decrease of only 482 riders.   
 

187



NVTA Board Item                                Agenda Item 11.3 
March 20, 2024                              Page 3 of 8 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Table 5:  City of Napa Ridership - Comparing Q2 of FY23 & Q2 of FY24 
 Q2 FY23 Q2 FY24 % Difference Numerical 

Difference 
Napa Local On-Demand 
(Route A)* 

4,275 1,203 -71.86% -3,072 

Route N 16,206 N/A N/A -16,206 
Route S 3,797 N/A N/A -3,797 
Route E 741 N/A N/A -741 
Route W 6,646 N/A N/A -6,646 
Route B N/A 5,408 N/A 5,408 
Route C N/A 14,778 N/A 14,778 
Route D N/A 1,588 N/A 1,588 
Route E N/A 2,413 N/A 2,413 
Route F N/A 3,579 N/A 3,579 
Route G N/A 2,214 N/A 2,214 
Total 31,665 31,183 -1.52% -482 

*In FY 2023, there were twice the number of vehicles providing on demand service in 
multiple locations.  In FY 2024, there is one vehicle serving only the Browns Valley 
neighborhood (Route A).  In FY 2023 there was only four (4) fixed routes and in FY 2024 
there are six (6) fixed routes.   
 
Beyond ridership on local routes, it is also important to track passengers per revenue 
hour.  This is a measure of the number of people on the bus for every hour that the bus 
is in service.  It does not include the deadhead, which is the time leading to and from the 
maintenance yard.  In Chart 1 below, which includes data on weekdays, you can see that 
passengers per revenue hour remained relatively steady.  While the weekday ridership 
was higher in Q1 and Q2 FY 23/24, the number of hours operated rose as well keeping 
the passengers per revenue hour just under 6.0.  
 
Chart 1:  Passengers per Revenue Hour (Weekdays) 

 

0.0
2.0
4.0
6.0
8.0

10.0

2nd  Qtr FY 22/23: Hybrid 1st  Qtr FY23/24: Hybrid 2nd  Qtr FY23/24: Hybrid

Pasengers Per Revenue Hours  Service Mean
50% Service Mean 150% Service Mean
Minimum Threshold

188



NVTA Board Item                                Agenda Item 11.3 
March 20, 2024                              Page 4 of 8 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Chart 2 shows that the passengers per revenue hour vary a lot by route.  The Route C 
passengers per revenue hour is above the 8.0 minimum threshold.  All other fixed routes 
were in the 3 to 6 range with Route A on-demand coming in below 2 passengers per 
revenue hour. 
 
Chart 2:  Local Service Passengers per Revenue Hour (Weekdays) 

 
Table 6 shows strong growth in the Route 10 ridership as four new trips were added to 
the Route 10 leading to an overall ridership increase of 6% on regional routes. 
 
Table 6: Routes 10, 11,11X, 21 & 29 Ridership – Comparing Q2 of FY23 & Q2 of FY24 
  Q2 FY23 Q2 FY24 % Difference Numerical Difference 
Route 10 33,446 36,495 9.12% 3,049 
Route 11 30,504 32,032 5.01% 1,528 
Route 11X  1,009 882 -12.59% -127 
Route 21 3,906 4,029 3.15% 123 
Route 29 8,717 8,798 0.93% 81 
Total 77,582 82,236 6.00% 4,654 

 
Passenger per revenue hour data on the weekdays on the regional routes shows that 
Routes 10 and 11 continue to be the most efficient regional routes. As shown on Chart 3, 
the Routes 10 and 11 have passengers per revenue hour over 7, but still below the pre-
COVID minimum threshold of 12 passengers per revenue hour.  The least productive 
route remains the Route 11X, which is geared towards Ferry commuters.  It is a 

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

Route A On-
Demand

Route B Route C Route D Route E Route F Route G

Passengers per Revenue Hour Service Mean

50% of Service Mean 150% of Service Mean

Minimum Threshold

189



NVTA Board Item                                Agenda Item 11.3 
March 20, 2024                              Page 5 of 8 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
combination of a history of missed trips on the Route 11X and moving the City of Napa 
stop away from Soscol Gateway Transit Center and to the Imola Park and Ride.  
 
Chart 3:  Regional Service Passengers per Revenue Hour 

 
Ridership increased on the community shuttles by 13% compared to the same quarter 
last year as shown in Table 7. Only the St. Helena Shuttle experienced a small ridership 
decrease driven by the end of December when school was out of session. 
 
 
Table 7: Community Shuttles– Comparing Q2 of FY23 & Q2 of FY24 

 
Q2 FY23 Q2 FY24 % Difference Numerical 

Difference 
Calistoga Shuttle 3,679 4,159 13.05% 480 
St. Helena Shuttle 1,862 1,748 -6.12% -114 
Yountville Bee 925 1,304 40.97% 379 
American Canyon Transit 5,100 5,875 15.20% 775 
Total 11,566 13,086 13.14% 1,520 

 
VineGo ridership rose by 13% over the last year as seen in Table 8.  
 
Table 8: VineGo Ridership – Comparing Q2 of FY23 & Q2 of FY24 

 Q2 FY23 Q2 FY24 % Difference Numerical Difference 
VineGo 3,303 3,726 12.81% 423 

 
 
 
 
 

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

Route 10 Route 11 Route 11X Route 21 Route 29

Passengers per Revenue Hour Service Mean

50% of Service Mean 150% of Service Mean

Minimum Threshold

190



NVTA Board Item                                Agenda Item 11.3 
March 20, 2024                              Page 6 of 8 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Table 9 shows Q2 ridership over the past five fiscal years to provide an even broader 
context on the fluctuations of ridership pre and post-COVID.  The data shows continued 
progress from Q2 FY 21 through Q2 FY 24.  
 
Table 9: Ridership – Comparing Q2 of FY 20, 21, 22, 23, 24 
 Q2 FY20 Q2 FY21 Q2 FY22 Q2 FY23 Q2 FY24 
Fixed Route 240,960 54,615 86,069 104,972 112,216 
Demand Response 26,114 17,820 16,787 19,144 18,015 
Total 267,074 72,435 102,856 124,116 130,231 

 
 
Chart 4 below breaks down the fixed route data shown in Table 9 across the second 
quarters and also adds in the prior quarter to visually show the changes. The narrative 
differs by route.  For Routes 10 and 11, there has been an increase in ridership second 
quarter to second quarter annually after the initial COVID impact, but the figures show a 
cyclical decrease from last quarter due to the holiday season impacting school and work 
commutes.  For Express Routes like 11X, 21 and 29, ridership has remained consistently 
low since the onset of COVID.  Finally, the ridership on the City of Napa Local Routes 
has been stagnant over the last year and significantly below pre-COVID levels. 
 
 
Chart 4: Total Ridership Change 

 
Chart 5 below takes the demand response data and segments it across the different 
services.  Once again there are differences across services like the St Helena Shuttle 
and the Yountville Bee remaining below 50% of pre-COVID levels, while at the other end 
of the spectrum, ridership on American Canyon Transit is close to pre-COVID ridership 
levels.  

0
10,000
20,000
30,000
40,000
50,000
60,000
70,000
80,000
90,000

Local/OD Route 10 Route 11 Route 10X Route 11X Route 21 Route 29

2nd Qtr 19/20 2nd  Qtr 20/21 2nd  Qtr 21/22
2nd Qtr 22/23 1st Qtr 23/24 2nd Qtr 23/24

191



NVTA Board Item                                Agenda Item 11.3 
March 20, 2024                              Page 7 of 8 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Chart 5:  Total Demand Response Ridership Change 

 
 
Table 10 shows full fiscal year ridership over the past five years to add further context on 
the annual fluctuations of ridership pre- and post-COVID.  The data shows a significant 
decline in ridership in FY 21 followed by a slow, but consistent recovery. 
 
Table 10: Overall Ridership – Comparing FYs 2019 - 24 
 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 
Fixed Route 957,403 736,341 236,775 369,444 413,166 
Demand Response 103,701 88,485 78,711 71,821 74,829 
Total 1,061,104 824,826 315,486 441,265 487,995 

 
Finally, the Vine missed trips fell from the second quarter of FY 2023 to the second quarter 
of FY 2024 as NVTA was able to hire more drivers. Mechanical issues now represent a 
greater percentage of missed trips as the Vine fleet ages. 
 
Table 11:  Missed Trips During Q1 of FY 2023 and FY 2024 
 Regular Missed Trips On-Demand Missed Trips 
 Q2 FY 23 Q2 FY 24 Q2 FY 23 Q2 FY 24 
October 65 93 51 15 
November 40 45 9 6 
December 77 21  29 1  
Total 182 138 89 21 

 
 

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

VineGo Calistoga
Shuttle

St. Helena
Shuttle

Yountville Bee American
Canyon Transit

2nd Qtr 19/20 2nd  Qtr 20/21 2nd  Qtr 21/22

2nd Qtr 22/23 1st Qtr 23/24 2nd Qtr 23/24

192



NVTA Board Item Agenda Item 11.3 
March 20, 2024   Page 8 of 8 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Upcoming Marketing Efforts 
This calendar year started off with the NVTA hiring a new Communications and Outreach 
Coordinator, Emily Charrier-Botts.  The transit team will be working with Emily to better 
promote Vine Services.  One of the first projects involves the development of three short 
videos for the Vine Transit system. These videos aim to inform and engage viewers about 
different aspects of Vine Transit's services and developments including 1) ‘How to Ride 
Vine Transit’, 2) ‘What is VineGo Paratransit?’ and 3) the ‘New Maintenance Facility’. 
NVTA staff looks forward to sharing the videos with the Board and the larger public. 

ATTACHMENTS 

None 

193



March 20, 2024 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Federal and State Legislative Update 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the Federal 
Legislative update, State Legislative Update, and receive a briefing for changes on bills 
included on the State Bill Matrix. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The attached memos from Platinum Advisors summarizes recent federal and state 
legislative activities respectively. The State Bill Matrix includes a change to one bill and 
adds the NVTA co-sponsored bill. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

194



March 20, 2024 
NVTA Board Agenda Item 11.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY:  Kate Miller, Executive Director  

(707) 259-8634 / Email: kmiller@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Federal and State Legislative Update 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the Federal 
Legislative update (Attachment 1), State Legislative Update (Attachment 2), and receive 
a briefing for changes on bills included on the State Bill Matrix (Attachment 3). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Federal Update: 
 
Congress approved the FY 2024 Transportation Housing and Urban Development budget 
and released full year appropriations amount which are consistent with the Bipartisan 
Infrastructure Legislation authorizing levels. The legislation included $1.1 million for the 
Tolay Creek Bridge Replacement and Restoration Project.   
 
Nuria Fernandez, the Federal Transit Administrator (FTA) retired on February 24.   
 
The Department of Transportation has released the Safe Streets and Roads for All 
(SS4A) $1.256 billion call for projects. 
 
FTA released the $1.5 billion Low-No Grant program call for projects.   
 
State Update:  
 
The Legislative Analyst Office’s updated its official deficit projection to $73 billion, an 
increase of $15 billion over prior estimates.  Their recommendation includes $2 billion in 
transportation funding cuts. 
 

195

mailto:kmiller@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority              Agenda Item 11.4 
March 20, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Included on the bill matrix is SB 195 (Weiner) which would allow MTC to add a 
transportation measure to the November 2026 ballot.  The new bill is SB 1031 which as 
of this writing, is not yet in print but purportedly will be released in coordination with 
Senator Wahab and require a specified revenue set-aside for transit and includes Senator 
Wahab’s interest to study the consolidation of all Bay Area transit operators.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1) March 4, 2024 Federal Update (Platinum Advisors) 
2) March 4, 2024 State Update (Platinum Advisors) 
3) March 4, 2024 State Bill Matrix 

 

196



 

   
 

 

TO: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 

FROM: Jessica Aune, Platinum Advisors  

DATE: Monday, March 4, 2024 

RE: Napa Valley Transportation Authority February 2024 Monthly Report 

State of Play and Congressional Update 

Days before a partial government shutdown, top appropriators reached a deal on the final 
details of six Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 appropriations bills and agreed on a short-term 
spending measure for the remaining measures. The proposed deal would fund agencies 
covered by the Agriculture-Food and Drug Administration (FDA), Energy-Water, Military 
Construction-Veterans Administration (VA), Transportation-Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD), Interior-Environment and Commerce-Justice-Science bills through 
the end of the fiscal year. The legislation included $1,116,279 designated for the Tolay 
Creek Bridge Replacement and Restoration Project, which was requested by 
Congressman Thompson and Congressman Huffman. Lawmakers will have until March 
8 to pass those six appropriations bills, while the remaining six would be pushed back 
until March 22. If Congress manages to pass all twelve spending bills by those deadlines, 
appropriators can begin preparing the next set of spending bills for FY 2025. President 
Biden is expected to unveil his FY25 budget request on March 11. 

In the House, lawmakers passed the Tax Relief for American Families and Workers Act, 
which pairs an expansion of the child tax credit with business tax breaks, affordable 
housing credits, and disaster assistance. The disaster assistance provision extends rules 
for the treatment of certain disaster-related personal casualty losses, including areas 
where a major disaster was declared by the President beginning on January 1, 2020, and 
ending 60 days after the enactment of the legislation. Furthermore, any amount received 
by or on behalf of an individual as a qualified wildfire relief payment – expenses, damages, 
losses incurred during a qualified wildfire that aren’t covered by insurance – would be 
excluded from gross income amounts.  

After the bill’s passage, the lead Republican on the Senate Finance Committee came out 
in opposition over reforms made to the child tax credit. While early skepticism of the 
legislation amongst GOP lawmakers has since dissipated over the last month, there is still 
a desire for a full committee markup of the legislation, which would delay passage. Some 
committee Democrats have suggested that the tax bill could be attached to a larger 
package compiled of appropriations bills.  

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA BOARD Item 11.4 

March 20, 2024 
 

197



 

   
 

Across Capitol Hill, the Senate worked this month to complete work on a foreign aid 
supplemental which would provide new military and humanitarian assistance to Ukraine, 
Israel, and Taiwan. After passage, the measure was swiftly rejected by Speaker Mike 
Johnson because it took no action on border security. Speaker Johnson and conservative 
members of the House Freedom Caucus also opposed the bill’s original text, which 
included new funding for border security and immigration judges as well as strengthened 
several expulsion authorities. 

FAA REAUTHORIZATION 

Lawmakers are aiming to pass a measure that would extend authorization for the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) until May 10. Congress originally passed legislation in 
December that would give them until mid-March to complete work on a reauthorization 
package. This month, the Senate Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation 
held its long-anticipated markup of its five-year FAA reauthorization legislation. The panel 
had previously canceled its original markup last year when senators couldn’t agree on an 
amendment making changes to pilot training hours, among other issues. Days later, the 
full Senate advanced the bill. Leaders in both chambers are now in the beginning stages 
of conferencing the legislation to resolve differences between the two versions. The 
House passed their own version of the bill last July.  

HOUSE HEARING ON ‘BUY AMERICA’ REQUIREMENTS 

On February 15th, the House Transportation and Infrastructure Subcommittee on 
Highways and Transit held a hearing titled “Hearing on Implementation of Buy American 
Provisions”.  There was bipartisan support for ‘Buy American’ provisions for their 
importance to the economy and public safety. However, there was some disagreement 
about the granting of waivers to such provisions; Subcommittee Chair Rick Crawford (R-
AR-1) criticized the Biden administration’s implementation of ‘Buy American’ provisions 
and the exemptions they have given for construction materials while Democrats on the 
subcommittee commended the administration for being judicious in their granting of 
waivers.  

The witnesses, stakeholders in the transportation industry, advocated for greater 
transparency about granting waivers to ‘Buy American’ provisions. Witnesses also spoke 
of construction companies' uncertainty with ‘Buy American’ regulations, as many of the 
manufactured materials they source are not made in America. 

The barriers infrastructure stakeholders face in adhering to ‘Buy American’ provisions 
were discussed at length. Some members signaled support for working with 
administrative agencies to create a flexible and equitable ‘Buy American’ waiver program. 
Members expressed support for state Department of Transportations (DOTs) to be 
involved in the decision-making surrounding how to improve the waiver program and 
wished for working groups composed of state and local stakeholders to offer guidance to 
the OBM.  

198



 

   
 

Particular attention was paid to electric vehicle infrastructure, particularly to President 
Biden’s veto of the higher standards for electric vehicle chargers. Witnesses spoke of the 
capacity of industry to meet the demand for electric vehicle charging infrastructure and 
the regulations placed on it.  

HOUSE E&C REPUBLICAN LETTER ON EV FUNDING IMPLEMENTATION 

Republican leaders on the House Energy & Commerce Committee sent a letter to 
Secretary of Energy Jennifer Granholm and Secretary of Transportation Pete Buttigieg 
requesting information on the Biden administration’s implementation of the National 
Electric Vehicle Infrastructure (NEVI) Formula and the Charging and Fueling 
Infrastructure (CFI) Discretionary Grant programs. The letter highlights delays in the 
delivery of federally funded EV charging infrastructure, concerns from state DOTs about 
labor contracting requirements, and minimum operating standards for chargers. One of 
the questions posed to the two federal officials centers on private sector deployment of 
EV chargers outpacing the federal government and how the Joint Office of Energy and 
Transportation is updating its review of state plans to ensure federal dollars don’t 
“overbuild” private sector investments. 

Pending Legislation of Interest 

H.R.125 — To prohibit the imposition of mask mandates on public transportation. 
Sponsor: Biggs, Andy [Rep.-R-AZ-5]  
Introduced: 1/9/2023 

H.R.327 — To reduce the tax credit for new qualified plug-in electric drive motor 
vehicles by State subsidies for these vehicles. 
Sponsor: Estes, Ron [Rep.-R-KS-4]  
Introduced: 1/12/2023 

H.R.490 — To establish the Federal Infrastructure Bank to facilitate investment in, 
and the long-term financing of, economically viable U.S. infrastructure projects 
that provide a public benefit. 
Sponsor: Webster, Daniel [Rep.-R-FL-11] 
Introduced: 1/24/2023 

S.63 — A bill to adjust the effective date for application of certain amendments 
made with respect to the credit for new clean vehicles. 
Sponsor: Manchin, Joe, III [Sen.-D-WV] 
Introduced: 1/25/202 

H.R.495 — To amend the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 to authorize 
assignment to States of Federal agency environmental review responsibilities. 
 Sponsor: Calvert, Ken [Rep.-R-CA-41]  
Introduced: 1/25/2023 

199

https://d1dth6e84htgma.cloudfront.net/02_22_24_Letter_to_Secretary_Granholm_and_Secretary_Buttigieg_3c7296b2b5.pdf
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=c6ffb781f1&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=15f190ba9a&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=ee06b6c1e5&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=0d404c407d&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=476c7fd13a&e=d2cf47155a


 

   
 

H.R.852 — To direct the Attorney General to establish a grant program for civilian 
traffic violation enforcement. 
Sponsor: Rep. Torres, Ritchie [D-NY-15] 
Introduced: 2/06/2023 

H.R.873 — To authorize the Administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency 
to award grants and contracts for projects that use emerging technologies to 
address threats to water quality, and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Rep. Donalds, Byron [R-FL-19] 
Introduced: 2/08/2023 

S.352 — Highway Formula Modernization Act of 2023 
Sponsor: Kelly, Mark [Sen.-D-AZ] 
Introduced: 2/09/2023 

H.R. 1500 – To establish a program to use anonymized data from third party 
entities to inform infrastructure planning decisions and improve transportation 
management capabilities. 
Sponsor: Graves, Garret [Rep.-R-LA-6] 
Introduced: 3/09/2023 
Status: Advanced from T&I Committee  

H.R.1665 — To direct the Secretary of Transportation to establish a program to 
provide grants to local governments to install publicly accessible safety charging 
stations for electric bicycles and scooters, and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Velazquez, Nydia M. [Rep.-D-NY-7] 
Introduced: 03/17/2023 

S.876 — A bill to establish a 90-day limit to file a petition for judicial review of a 
permit, license, or approval for a highway or public transportation project, and for 
other purposes. 
Sponsor: Cruz, Ted [Sen.-R-TX] 
Introduced: 03/21/2023 

H.R.1668 — To amend title 23, United States Code, with respect to the highway 
safety improvement program, and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Blumenauer, Earl [Rep.-D-OR-3] 
Introduced: 03/21/2023 

H.R.2664 —Transportation Innovation Coordination Act 
Sponsor: DelBene, Suzan K. [Rep.-D-WA-1] 
Introduced: 04/18/2023 

200

https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/852?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22H.R.852%22%5D%7d&s=8&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/873?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22H.R.873%22%5D%7d&s=9&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/senate-bill/352?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22S.+352%22%5D%7d&s=3&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/1500/text
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/1665?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22H.R.1665%22%5D%7d&s=10&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/senate-bill/876?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22S.876%22%5D%7d&s=1&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/1668?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22H.R.1668%22%5D%7d&s=2&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/2664?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22%22%5D%7d&s=3&r=22


 

   
 

H.R.3082 - Mobility aids On Board Improve Lives and Empower all (MOBILE) Act 
Sponsor: Cohen, Steve [D-TN-9] 
Introduced: 05/05/2023 
 
S.1535 — A bill to require the Administrator of the Federal Aviation Administration 
to promulgate regulations to allow the transport of firefighters on board a covered 
aircraft operated on a mission to suppress a wildfire, and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Kelly, Mark [Sen.-D-AZ] 
Introduced: 05/10/2023 
 
H.R.3411 - To increase access to higher education by providing public transit 
grants. 
Sponsor: Fitzpatrick, Brian K. [R-PA-1] 
Introduced: 05/17/2023 
 
H.R.3468 — To direct the Secretary of Energy to establish a grant program to 
facilitate electric vehicle sharing services operated at public housing projects, 
and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Barragan, Nanette Diaz [D-CA-44] 
Introduced: 05/18/2023 

H.R.3785 — To amend title 23, United States Code, to require that public 
employees perform construction inspection work for federally funded highway 
projects, and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Rep. Garamendi, John [D-CA-8] 
Introduced: 06/01/2023 

H.R.3845 — To amend title 23, United States Code, to increase accessible 
transportation for individuals with disabilities. 
Sponsor: Titus, Dina [Rep.-D-NV-1] 
Introduced: 06/06/2023 

H.R.3896 — To establish an airport infrastructure resilience pilot program. 
Sponsor: Cohen, Steve [Rep.-D-TN-9] 
Introduced: 06/07/2023 

S.1929 — A bill to direct the Administrator of the Federal Aviation Administration 
to provide progress reports on the development and implementation of the 
national transition plan related to a fluorine-free firefighting foam, and for other 
purposes. 
Sponsor: Peters, Gary C. [Sen.-D-MI] 
Introduced: 06/12/2023 

201

https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/3082?s=1&r=10
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/senate-bill/1535?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22%5C%22wildfire%5C%22%22%5D%7d&s=3&r=4
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/3411?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22H.R.+3411%22%5D%7d&s=1&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/3468?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22H.R.+3468%22%7d&s=2&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/3785?s=2&r=1&q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22H.R.3785%22%7d
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/3845?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22%22%5D%7d&s=9&r=42
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/3896?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22%22%5D%7d&s=9&r=38
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/senate-bill/1929?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22%22%5D%7d&s=1&r=23


 

   
 

S.1946 — A bill to amend title 49, United States Code, to allow the owner or 
operator of a small hub airport that is reclassified as a medium hub airport to 
elect to be treated as a small hub airport, and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Sen. Blackburn, Marsha [R-TN] 
Introduced: 06/13/2023 

S.2075 —A bill to amend the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act to modify the 
Safe Streets and Roads for All program. 
Sponsor: Fetterman, John [Sen.-D-PA] 
Introduced: 06/21/2023 

S.Res.274 —A resolution expressing the sense of the Senate to reduce traffic 
fatalities to zero by 2050. 
Sponsor: Blumenthal, Richard [Sen.-D-CT] 
Introduced: 06/22/2023 

H.R.4598 — To provide for disadvantaged business enterprise supportive 
services programs at modal administrations of the Department of Transportation, 
and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Aguilar, Pete [Rep-D-CA-33] 
Introduced: 07/13/2023 

H.R.4621 — To improve the environmental review process for highway projects 
through the use of interactive, digital, cloud-based platforms, and for other 
purposes. 
Sponsor: Johnson, Dusty [R-SD-At Large] 
Introduced: 07/13/2023 

H.R.4636 — To direct the Secretary of Transportation to establish a Wireless 
Electric Vehicle Charging Grant Program, and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Stevens, Haley M. [Rep.-D-MI-11] 
Introduced: 07/14/2023 

H.R.4728 — To amend title 49, United States Code, to provide for free public 
transportation for individuals who are recently released from incarceration. 
Sponsor:  Cleaver, Emanuel [Rep.-D-MO-5] 
Introduced: 07/20/2023 

H.R.4857 — Equitable Transit Oriented Development Support Act 
Sponsor: DeSaulnier, Mark [Rep.-D-CA-10] 
Introduced: 07/25/2023 

202

https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/senate-bill/1946?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22S.1946%22%7d&s=7&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/senate-bill/2075?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22%22%5D%7d&s=6&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/senate-resolution/274?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22%22%5D%7d&s=5&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/4598?s=4&r=26
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/4621?s=4&r=21
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/4636?s=4&r=20
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/4728?s=3&r=13
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/4857/text?s=4&r=14&q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transit%5C%22%22%7d


 

   
 

S.2480 — Connecting Hard-to-reach Areas with Renewably Generated 
Energy (CHARGE) Act of 2023 
Sponsor: Markey, Edward J. [Sen.-D-MA] 
Introduced 07/25/2023 

H.R.4908 — Expedited Federal Permitting for California Act 
Sponsor: Garamendi, John [Rep.-D-CA-8] 
Introduced: 07/26/2023 

H.R.4982 — Tolling Transparency Act of 2023 
Sponsor: Chavez-DeRemer, Lori [Rep.-R-OR-5] 
Introduced: 07/27/2023 

H.R.5154 — Connecting Hard-to-reach Areas with Renewably Generated 
Energy (CHARGE) Act of 2023 
Sponsor: Ocasio-Cortez, Alexandria [Rep.-D-NY-14] 
Introduced: 08/04/2023 

H.R.5242 — Connecting Our Neighbors to Networks and Ensuring Competitive 
Telecommunications (CONNECT )Act of 2023 
Sponsor: Pettersen, Brittany [Rep.-D-CO-7] 
Introduced: 08/18/2023 

H.R.5359 — Rural Development Modernization Act 
Sponsor: Costa, Jim [Rep.-D-CA-21] 
Introduced: 09/08/2023 

H.R.5437 — Protecting Infrastructure Investments for Rural America Act 
Sponsor: Finstad, Brad [Rep.-R-MN-1] 
Introduced: 09/13/2023 

S.2855 — A bill to modernize and streamline the permitting process for broadband 
infrastructure on Federal land, and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Barrasso, John [Sen.-R-WY] 
Introduced: 09/20/2023 

H.R.5656 — To amend the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 to provide a tax credit 
for new off-road plug-in electric vehicles. 
Sponsor: Phillips, Dean [Rep.-D-MN-3] 
Introduced: 09/21/2023 

S.2882 — Stop EV Freeloading Act 
Sponsor: Fischer, Deb [Sen.-R-NE] 
Introduced: 09/21/2023 

203

https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/senate-bill/2480?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22%5C%22charging%5C%22%22%5D%7d&s=4&r=5
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/4908/text
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/4982?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22tolls%22%5D%7d&s=2&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/5154/text?s=4&r=1&q=%7b%22search%22%3A%5B%22%5C%22charging%5C%22%22%5D%7d
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/5242?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22rural+development%5C%22%22%7d&s=6&r=8
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/5359/text?s=6&r=4&q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22rural+development%5C%22%22%7d
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/5437?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transit%5C%22%22%7d&s=4&r=4
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/senate-bill/2855?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22broadband%5C%22%22%7d&s=2&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/5656?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22electric+vehicle%5C%22%22%7d&s=5&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/senate-bill/2882/text?s=1&r=1&q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22S.2882%22%7d


 

   
 

H.R.5859 — To direct the Secretary of Transportation to establish a program to 
provide grants to protection and advocacy systems to advocate for individuals 
with disabilities to access transportation, and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Wilson, Frederica S. [Rep.-D-FL-24] 
Introduced: 09/29/2023 

H.R.5980 — To amend title 49, United States Code, to authorize state of good 
repair grants to be used for public transportation resilience improvement, and for 
other purposes. 
Sponsor: Espaillat, Adriano [Rep.-D-NY-13] 
Introduced: 10/18/2023 

S.3080 — Resilient Transit Act of 2023 
Sponsor: Gillibrand, Kirsten E. [Sen.-D-NY] 
Introduced: 10/18/2023 

H.R.6178 — Bidirectional Electric Vehicle Charging Act of 2023 
Sponsor: Brownley, Julia [Rep.-D-CA-26] 
Introduced: 11/02/2023 

H.R.6199 — Build More Housing Near Transit Act of 2023 
Sponsor: Peters, Scott H. [Rep.-D-CA-50] 
Introduced: 11/02/2023 

S.3216 — Build More Housing Near Transit Act of 2023 
Sponsor: Schatz, Brian [Sen.-D-HI] 
Introduced: 11/02/2023 

S.3246 — Building Safer Streets Act 
Sponsor: Fetterman, John [Sen.-D-PA] 
Introduced: 11/07/2023 

H.R.6376 — To require certain grant recipients of transit and highway 
transportation projects to establish and contribute to a business uninterrupted 
monetary program fund, and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Correa, J. Luis [Rep.-D-CA-46] 
Introduced: 11/13/2023 

H.R.6665 — To amend the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 to eliminate certain fuel 
excise taxes and impose a tax on greenhouse gas emissions to provide revenue 
for maintaining and building American infrastructure, and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Fitzpatrick, Brian K. [Rep.-R-PA-1] 
Introduced: 12/07/2023 

S.3477 — A bill to increase access to higher education by providing public transit 
grants. 

204

https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/5859?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transportation%5C%22%22%7d&s=2&r=15
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/5980?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22public+transportation%5C%22%22%7d&s=2&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/senate-bill/3080?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22public+transportation%5C%22%22%7d&s=2&r=2
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/6178?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22H.R.+6178%22%7d&s=2&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/6199?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transit%5C%22%22%7d&s=5&r=12
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/senate-bill/3216?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transit%5C%22%22%7d&s=5&r=13
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/senate-bill/3246/text?s=5&r=8&q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transit%5C%22%22%7d
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/6376?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transit%5C%22%22%7d&s=5&r=2
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/6665?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transit%5C%22%22%7d&s=1&r=4
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/senate-bill/3477?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22public+transit%5C%22%22%7d&s=2&r=1


 

   
 

Sponsor: Casey, Robert P., Jr. [Sen.-D-PA] 
Introduced: 12/12/2023 

H.R.6964 — To establish limitations on advanced payments for bus rolling stock, 
and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Fischbach, Michelle [Rep.-R-MN-7] 
Introduced: 01/11/2024 

H.R.6997 — Disaster Contract Improvement Act 
Sponsor: LaLota, Nick [Rep.-R-NY-1] 
Introduced: 01/16/2024 

S.3605 — A bill to require the Secretary of Transportation to develop guidelines 
and best practices for local evacuation route planning, and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Padilla, Alex [Sen.-D-CA] 
Introduced: 01/17/2024 

H.R.7009 — Securing Airport Facilities for Enhanced Parking Act 
Sponsor: Caraveo, Yadira [Rep.-D-CO-8] 
Introduced: 01/17/2024 

H.R.7012 — Transit Emergency Relief Act 
Sponsor: D'Esposito, Anthony [Rep.-R-NY-4] 
Introduced: 01/17/2024 

H.R.7039 — To amend title 49, United States Code, to establish a program to 
provide grants to eligible recipients for eligible operating support costs of public 
transportation, and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Johnson, Henry C. "Hank," Jr. [Rep.-D-GA-4] 
Introduced: 01/18/2024 

H.R.7191 — Save Our Pedestrians Act of 2024 
Sponsor: Carey, Mike [Rep.-R-OH-15] 
Introduced: 02/01/2024 

H.R.7273 — Undoing Nationwide Programs and Limiting Unnecessary Grants for 
Electric Vehicles Act (UNPLUG EVs) Act 
Sponsor: Burlison, Eric [Rep.-R-MO-7] 
Introduced: 02/07/2024 

H.R.7286 — Generating Resilient, Environmentally Exceptional National 
(GREEN) Streets Act 
Sponsor: Huffman, Jared [Rep.-D-CA-2] 
Introduced: 02/07/2024 

205

https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/6964?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transportation%5C%22%22%7d&s=2&r=21
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/6997/text?s=2&r=17&q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transportation%5C%22%22%7d
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/senate-bill/3605?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transportation%5C%22%22%7d&s=2&r=16
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/7009?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transportation%5C%22%22%7d&s=2&r=13
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/7012?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transportation%5C%22%22%7d&s=2&r=12
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/7039?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transportation%5C%22%22%7d&s=2&r=5
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/7191?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transit%5C%22%22%7d&s=6&r=4
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/7273/text?s=6&r=2&q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transit%5C%22%22%7d
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/7286/text?s=6&r=1&q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transit%5C%22%22%7d


 

   
 

H.R.7504 — To expand and modify the grant program of the Department of 
Veterans Affairs to provide innovative transportation options to veterans in highly 
rural areas, and for other purposes. 
Sponsor: Perez, Marie Gluesenkamp [Rep.-D-WA-3] 
Introduced: 02/29/2024 

Executive Branch 

Transportation Agency Vacancies 

Nuria Fernandez, the head of the Federal Transit Administration, retired on February 24 
after almost three years in the role. The retirement marks the fourth leadership gap at 
DOT agencies. The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, the Federal Motor 
Carrier Safety Administration, and the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety 
Administration are all without Senate-confirmed leaders. 

Department of Transportation (DOT) 

DOT has opened the process for cities, towns, counties, Tribal governments and 
Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPO) to apply for $1.256 billion in funding for local 
projects that improve roadway safety. The funds are from the competitive grant program, 
Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A), which was created to help communities both plan 
and carry out projects that help reduce the number of deaths and serious injuries on our 
highways, streets, and roads. SS4A funds will help communities in the development of 
road safety action plans and improve unsafe roadway corridors by implementing effective 
interventions. These funds can also be used to test safety features like separated bicycle 
lanes or curb extensions at intersections. 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 

FTA announced the availability of $9.9 billion in federal formula funding for states, 
urbanized areas and tribal governments. The partial-year Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 funding 
is detailed in apportionment tables that specify funding based on statutory formulas. FTA 
will address these changes in further detail after the full-year FY24 appropriations are 
signed into law. FTA’s formula-based grant programs include funding for transit systems 
in both urbanized and rural areas, grants for buses and bus facilities, transit designed for 
seniors and people with disabilities, planning funds, and support to improve the condition 
of transit assets. The tables allow transit agencies and grant recipients to view the 
amounts for programs set by statutorily defined formulas so they can better plan and 
manage over the long term for new projects and address their repair backlogs. 

FTA announced the availability of approximately $1.5 billion to support American transit 
vehicle manufacturing – including zero-emission buses – help build bus facilities and 
promote workforce development. FTA's Low- or No-Emission Program helps transit 

206

https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/7504?q=%7b%22search%22%3A%22%5C%22transportation%5C%22%22%7d&s=1&r=1
https://www.transportation.gov/briefing-room/us-department-transportation-announces-125-billion-direct-accessible-grants-local
https://www.transit.dot.gov/about/news/biden-harris-administration-sends-another-99-billion-bipartisan-infrastructure-law
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/apportionments/current-apportionments
https://transit.dot.gov/about/news/biden-harris-administration-announces-availability-15-billion-federal-funding-modernize


 

   
 

agencies buy or lease U.S.-built zero-emission and low-emission transit buses along with 
charging equipment and supporting facilities. FTA's Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities 
Program supports transit agencies in buying and rehabilitating buses and vans and 
building bus facilities. In Fiscal Year 2024, $1.1 billion will be authorized for the Low-No 
Program and $390 million for grants for buses and bus facilities.  

FTA announced nearly $110 million in funding to eight public transportation providers and 
state Departments of Transportation in six states and one U.S. territory to help 
communities recover from recent natural disasters. The support, provided through FTA’s 
Public Transportation Emergency Relief (ER) Program, will help agencies repair 
damaged equipment and facilities and recoup costs for evacuation and rescue operations 
following floods, hurricanes, and tornadoes that occurred in 2017 and 2020-22. 

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 

FHWA announced a new Bipartisan Infrastructure Law program that makes $250 million 
available, over five years, in competitive grants to advance innovative, multimodal 
solutions to reduce vehicular traffic in the most congested metropolitan areas of the 
United States. The Congestion Relief Program provides funding to reduce highway 
congestion and the economic and environmental costs associated with congestion, 
including pollution from transportation emissions. The program also optimizes existing 
highway capacity and transit systems, improves coordination with transit, and encourages 
other modes of travel. The grants are available to states, metropolitan planning 
organizations, cities, and municipalities for projects in urban areas with a population of at 
least one million.  

Joint Office of Technology and Energy (Joint Office) 

The Joint Office announced that the National Renewable Energy Laboratory is 
implementing the Clean Bus Planning Awards (CBPA) program. The CBPA program 
provides free technical assistance to create comprehensive and customized bus 
electrification plans for fleets across the United States through Fiscal Year 2024. 
Electrifying school and transit buses can help communities meet decarbonization goals 
and improve health outcomes. States and municipalities across the country are looking to 
electrify bus fleets—the transition to electric buses is more in demand than ever before. 

The Joint Office released a new whitepaper on innovative mobility options for all types of 
communities, including renters and multifamily housing residents. The resource advances 
the office’s goal of providing convenient, equitable access to EV charging so everyone 
can choose to ride and drive electric. Intended for the use of public officials, property and 
vehicle owners, utilities, and other stakeholders, the paper includes strategies that go 
beyond installing private onsite EV chargers at multifamily properties, including charging 
in the public right-of-way and technical and cost-saving solutions to common barriers, 

207

https://www.transportation.gov/briefing-room/biden-harris-administration-announces-nearly-110-million-relief-funding-help-public
https://highways.dot.gov/newsroom/biden-harris-administration-opens-first-round-applications-250-million-reduce-traffic
https://driveelectric.gov/news/clean-bus-planning-awards
https://driveelectric.gov/news/community-e-mobility-charging


 

   
 

such as: streetlight charging, smart outlets and panels, mobile charging, and “bring-your-
own cord” approaches. 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 

EPA announced a grant funding opportunity for non-profit organizations, Tribes, and state 
and local governments to advance innovative, cost-effective and replicable source 
reduction approaches that save energy and water, reduce pollution and improve human 
health and the environment. Source reduction, also known as pollution prevention (P2) 
means preventing pollution at the source rather than managing waste after it is produced. 
In support of the Biden-Harris Administration’s priorities, these grants will emphasize 
projects that support environmental justice and prevention of greenhouse gas emissions. 

 

208

https://www.epa.gov/newsreleases/epa-announces-15-million-regional-source-reduction-assistance-grant-opportunities


1 

March 4, 2024 

TO: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

FR: Steve Wallauch 
Platinum Advisors 

RE: Legislative Update  

Happiness:  While there will be no happiness in the budget this year, former Speaker 
Anthony Rendon announced that Speaker Rivas has appointed him to be the chair of the 
new Select Committee on Happiness & Public Policy Outcomes.  The initial hearing is set 
for March 12th, and a path toward happiness will be set soon after. 

In the Green:  California’s cap & trade auction continues to set record prices with each 
auction.  The auction held in February resulted in all credits being sold at a record price 
of $41.76 each.  This auction alone resulted in generating $1.3 billion for state programs.  
These red-hot auctions will generate a needed source of revenue for various zero 
emission vehicle programs that are facing cuts due to the deficit.  These high prices will 
also push revenues upward for formula allocations, such as the Low Carbon Transit 
Operations Program (LCTOP). 

It is speculated that the demand for more credits is the result of California Air Resources 
Board’s (CARB’s) intention to update the cap & trade regulations and potentially 
accelerate the reduction of the number of credits available for sale at each auction. 
Reducing the number of credits available may be necessary to meet the state’s 2030 
greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction goals.  The rule making process on amending the cap 
& trade regulations is expected to start later this year. 

Deficit Grows:  While the scope of the deficit will not be known until the release of the 
May Revise, the Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO) has updated its fiscal outlook.  Based 
on the LAO’s fiscal outlook the deficit has grown by $15 billion for a total shortfall of $73 
billion.  The is based on the LAO’s outlook of weaker cash receipts from corporate tax 
collections in December and January, and income tax withholding falling below 
projections. 

ATTACHMENT 2 
NVTA BOARD Item 11.4 

March 20, 2024 

209



2 
 

To address this growing budget problem, the LAO points out to the legislature that nearly 
$16 billion in one-time and temporary spending could be pulled back or reduced to help 
bridge this gap.  This includes nearly $2 billion in transportation funding, which primarily 
consists of general fund dollars committed to the Transit and Intercity Rail Program 
(TIRCP). 
 
LAO’s Take on Transportation Spending:  The Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO) 
released it review of the Governor’s proposed spending on transportation.  Overall, the 
LAO recommends that the legislature adopt the Governor’s proposed changes, and 
consider additional solutions given the potential for a worsening fiscal outlook. 

The Governor’s budget proposal includes $4.3 billion in solutions from transportation 
programs.  However, of the $4.3 billion in solutions, the Governor’s plan relies heavily on 
delaying funding commitments so that about $3.3 billion is restored in future budget years.  
This includes: 

• $2.8 billion in cash flow adjustments, which revert General Fund that has already 
been awarded to projects with the intent to restore the funding in a future year 
when it would be needed to cover expenditures 

• $1 billion in program expenditures are delayed, which reduces costs in 2024-25 
with the intent of restoring the funding in 2025-26 

• $796 million in expenditures is shifted from the General Fund to the Greenhouse 
Gas Reduction Fund (GGRF) 

• $296 million in program reductions 
 
The LAO recommends that the legislature adopt all the changes proposed by the 
Governor.  Considering the growing deficit, the LAO urges the legislature to also consider 
additional solutions and lists the following as areas where cuts could be made: 
 

• Reduce Rather Than Delay $1 Billion for Formula-Based TIRCP – This could 
entail reducing rather than delaying the $1 billion the Governor proposes 
providing in 2025-26 instead of 2024-25, and additionally reducing the $1 billion 
the Governor proposes to retain in the budget year. 

 
• Redirect GGRF for Other Activity, Reduce Formula-Based TIRCP -- The 

Legislature could opt to shift less than the proposed $261 million GGRF to 
formula-based TIRCP—or none at all— reducing overall support for the program 
instead. The Legislature could then utilize the freed-up GGRF to support another 
activity— transportation or otherwise—that might face reductions given the 
General Fund condition. 

 
• Shift Funds From Transportation Accounts to Replace General Fund  -- The 

Legislature could consider shifting funding for certain programs from the General 
Fund to state transportation funds such as State Highway Account (SHA) or the 

210



3 
 

Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA). The Legislature took a 
similar action last year when it shifted $500 million of the one-time General Fund 
augmentations for transportation to SHA. 

 
• Use Future Base Funding to Replace General Fund Augmentations for 

Competitive TIRCP -- Competitive TIRCP receives an annual base amount of 
funding from GGRF and transportation improvement fee revenues, which is 
provided through a continuous appropriation. CalSTA currently is in the process 
of starting its 2024 competitive TIRCP grant cycle, with plans to award about 
$800 million from these base funds this fall to support new projects over the next 
five years. Instead of selecting new projects to support with these funds, the 
Legislature could statutorily direct CalSTA to use them to fulfill the state’s 
commitments to some of the projects already awarded funds from the one-time 
General Fund augmentations to competitive TIRCP. 
 

 
 

211



1 
 

 
March 4, 2024 

 
 

TABLE 1: BOARD ACTION ITEMS 
 
 Subject Status Recommended 

Position 

AB 2719 
(Wilson D) 
Vehicles: 
commercial 
vehicle 
inspections. 

AB 2719 creates an alternative safety 
inspection process for public transit vehicles to 
ensure their safety and maintains the transit 
agency's ability to provide reliable, on-time 
transit service. 
 
AB 2719 is sponsored by NVTA and SolTrans.  
The purpose of this bill is to create an 
alternative inspection process that will exempt 
public transit buses from being required to stop 
at any roadside inspection station. 

Assembly Print Co-Sponsor 

 
 
TABLE 2: BOARD ADOPTED POSITIONS 
 
 Subject Status Board Position 

AB 610 
(Holden D) 
Fast food 
restaurant 
industry: Fast 
Food Council: 
health, safety, 
employment, 
and minimum 
wage. 

AB 610 was gutted and amended on January 
29th, to remove the language related to the 
youth transit pass pilot program.   

As amended the bill would amend existing 
law to exempt additional restaurants from the 
definition of “fast food restaurant.” 

AB 610 will be removed from future bill 
updates. 
 

Assembly Floor 
Concurrence 

Support If 
Amended 

 
(prior version) 

AB 817 
(Pacheco D) 
Open meetings: 
teleconferencing: 
subsidiary body 
 
 
 
 

AB 817 would authorize a “subsidiary body” 
to remotely hold a public meeting if specified 
conditions are met.   
With the Assembly Local Government 
Committee under new leadership, AB 817 
was approved by the Committee in January, 
and approved by the Assembly on a vote of 
54-8.   

Senate Rules SUPPORT 

ATTACHMENT 3 
NVTA Board Item 11.4 

March 20, 2024 
 
 

212

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%202719');
https://a11.asmdc.org/
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=nHYxfzEdFtWAdWEhYUmXQURZ5t15wzQDLsp%2f%2fk9u2%2bkLYmT2VtjiywzJT1dSfc1s
https://a41.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20817');
https://a64.asmdc.org/


2 
 

 Subject Status Board Position 

AB 817 (Cont.) AB 817 was amended to include a sunset 
date of January 1, 2026, and amendments 
clarified the public participation 
requirements.  Under the bill the following 
types of subsidiary bodies may hold 
meetings remotely: 

• certain types of commissions, 
committees, or other body as defined 
in paragraph (b) of Government Code 
Section 54952, 

• a body that serves exclusively as an 
advisory body, 

• a body that is not authorized to take 
final action on any contract, legislation, 
regulation, or permit. 

AB 1837 
(Papan D) 
San Francisco 
Bay area: public 
transportation. 

AB 1837 is currently a spot bill that contains 
intent language to enact legislation that will 
encourage coordination and collaboration 
among transit agencies in the Bay Area. 
 

Assembly Print Watch 

AB 1904 
(Ward D) 
Transit buses: 
yield right-of-way 
sign. 

Existing law allows Santa Clara VTA and 
Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District to 
equip buses with a “yield right-of-way” sign to 
inform motorists when the bus re-entering a 
traffic lane. 
 
AB 1904 would expand this authorization to 
allow any transit operators to equip its bus 
with yield right-of-way signs.  Under AB 1904 
these signs could be an illuminated sign or a 
static decal. 
 

Assembly 
Transportation 

Support 

SB 537 
(Becker D) 
Open meetings: 
local agencies: 
teleconferences 
 
 
 
 

SB 537 allows multi-jurisdictional, cross-
county local agencies with appointed 
members to use teleconferencing without 
posting agendas at each teleconference 
location, identifying each teleconference 
location in the notice and agenda, making 
each teleconference location accessible to 
the public, and requiring at least a quorum of 
the eligible legislative body to participate from 

Assembly Floor 
Inactive File 

 
Two-Year Bill 

WATCH 

213

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20817');
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201837');
https://a21.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201904');
https://a78.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20537');
http://sd13.senate.ca.gov/


3 
 

 Subject Status Board Position 

SB 537 (Cont.) 
 
 
 
 

within the local agency's jurisdiction if the 
legislative body complies with specified 
conditions. 

SB 769 
(Gonzalez D) 
Local 
government: 
fiscal and 
financial training 
 
 
 
  

SB 769 would require, if a local agency 
provides any type of compensation, or expense 
reimbursement to members of its legislative 
body, to provide the members of the legislative 
body at least two hours of fiscal and financial 
training at least once every two years.  
 
 
Fiscal and financial training is defined to 
include the following: 

• Laws and principles relating to financial 
administration and short-and long-term 
fiscal management, 

• Laws and principles relating to capital 
financing and debt management, 
pensions and other postemployment 
benefits, and cash management and 
investments. 

• General fiscal and financial planning 
principles and any pertinent laws 
relevant to the local agency official’s 
public service and role in overseeing the 
local agency’s operations. 

Assembly 
Appropriations 

 
Held on 

Suspense File 

Watch 

SB 925 
(Wiener D) 
San Francisco 
Bay area: local 
revenue 
measure: 
transportation 
improvements. 

SB 925 is currently a spot bill that includes 
intent language stating that this bill would 
authorize MTC to propose a revenue measure 
to fund the operation, expansion, and 
transformation of the public transportation 
system, and other transportation 
improvements. 
 

Senate Rules Watch 

SB 926 
(Wahab D) 
San Francisco 
Bay area: public 
transportation. 
 
 
 
 

SB 926 directs CalSTA to develop a plan to 
consolidate all transit operations in the Bay 
Area. 
 
This is the reintroduction of SB 397, which was 
pulled from being heard by the Senate 
Transportation Committee earlier this month.  
Given concerns expressed about SB 397, 
amendments are expected to be made to SB 

Senate 
Transportation 

Watch 

214

javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20537');
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=ZHbdejLBSDGfm03RUTmMPYd96cE3zILCGcoyUYIx3eRSUPUVgfGkOt7sXOguDYdM
https://sd33.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20925');
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___http:/sd11.senate.ca.gov/___.YXAzOmNhbGFjdDphOm86NWE0MWFlYzIwOWE2YTY2NTg5OWVkZmFlOGVmYjY4N2I6NjozYmZiOmJkYTY2NmRlZDAwZTdlOGYwOTFhODc4NGZjODAwYjY5Nzk3NTdhYjgwZjE1YjVkMjRlNTdlM2M1NmNmMmZkMDY6cDpU
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20926');
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___http:/sd10.senate.ca.gov/___.YXAzOmNhbGFjdDphOm86NWE0MWFlYzIwOWE2YTY2NTg5OWVkZmFlOGVmYjY4N2I6NjpkNTQ2OjMxNmI5MjM4OTRjMDkxYTQ1YTJkYzFhMGY3YzBmZGZmZGEwMjIyMmRiMjcxNjY0NTBkMTJjODQ3ZWQ2MDkyNTY6cDpU


4 

Subject Status Board Position 

SB 926 (Cont.) 926 prior to be heard by the Senate 
Transportation Committee. 

SB 947 
(Seyarto R) 
Department of 
Transportation: 
state highway 
projects: 
agreements with 
public entities: 
project design 
changes. 

SB 947 would add to the project cost 
agreement between a local entity and Caltrans 
a requirement making Caltrans responsible for 
any additional costs associated with a new 
project design adopted by Caltrans after the 
project is included in the state transportation 
improvement program or the state highway 
operation and protection program.  

Senate Rules Watch 

SB 960 
(Wiener D) 
Transportation: 
planning: transit 
priority projects: 
multimodal. 

SB 960 would place in statute the requirement 
for Caltrans to include “complete street” 
improvements to all transportation projects. 

Complete Streets elements can include 
sidewalks, bike lanes, bus-only lanes, 
accessible public transit stops, crosswalks, 
median islands, accessible pedestrian signals, 
curb extensions, narrower travel lanes, among 
other improvements. 

SB 960 includes the following requirements: 
• Caltrans is required to include complete

street elements in its asset management
plan, and set 4-year and 10-year targets
and performance measures reflecting
complete streets assets.

• Establish a streamlined process for the
approval of pedestrian facilities, traffic
calming improvements, bicycle facilities,
and transit priority treatments at
locations where state-owned facilities
intersect with local facilities.

• Develop – by January 1, 2026 – a transit
priority policy with performance targets
to improve transit travel time reliability,
speeds, reduced transit and rider delay,
and improved accessibility at stops,
stations, and boarding facilities.

Senate Rules Support 

215

javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20926');
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20947');
https://sr32.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20960');
http://sd11.senate.ca.gov/

	NVTA Agenda Only 03 20 24
	16_Glossary of Acronyms Updated 01-2022
	0001_1_Staff Report
	9.1_Public Hearing- Biennial Budget FY25 FY26_Cover-KM no changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.1_Public Hearing- Biennial Budget FY25 FY26_Memo-KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	The Paratransit Coordinating Council reviewed and endorsed the Vine Go paratransit budget on March 7, 2024.


	9.1_NVTA FY25 and FY26 Working Budget Cycle Draft
	1. BUDGET - CONSOL
	BUDGET_ TFCA
	2. BUDGET- Debt Srvc
	3. BUDGET - CMA
	3a. CMA Special Projects List
	4.BUDGET - TOTAL PUBLIC TRANSIT
	4a. Transit Capital Projects
	Outlook - Vine Go
	Outlook- Vine
	Outlook -AmCan Shuttle
	Outlook - Yountville Bee
	Outlook- St. Helena Shuttle
	Outlook - Calistoga Shuttle


	0002_1_Draft Minutes
	0003_1_Staff Report
	10.2_Equivalent Fund Certification Cover Letter-km no changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	Measure T 6.67% Equivalent Fund Certification
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 24-03 certifying NVTA 6.67% Equivalent Fund spending for Fiscal Year 2022-23.
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	In order to meet Measure T 6.67% Equivalent Fund reporting requirements, NVTA staff is asking the Board to certify the qualifying NVTA funds expended on Class I Bicycle Facilities. NVTA expended $1,964,525.76 of eligible revenues for the St. Helena to...
	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.2_Equivalent Fund Certification Board Memo-km changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 24-03 certifying NVTA’s 6.67% Equivalent Fund spending for Fiscal Year 2022-23.
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.2_Attach 1 NVTA Jurisdiction Resolution 24-03 for Equivalent Fund Expenses
	RESOLUTION No. 24-03
	Passed and adopted this 20th day of March, 2024.



	0004_1_Staff Report
	10.3_RSA+ for Vine Trail_Cover - GHB AO-KM no changes 
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive Director or designee to execute and make minor modifications to Amendment No. 7 to Project Work Order No. E-13 (Attachment 1) to NVTA Agreement No. 18-23 with RSA+ for ...
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.3_RSA+ for Vine Trail_Memo - GHB AO Edits-KM no changes 
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive Director or designee to execute and make minor modifications to Amendment No. 7 to Project Work Order No. E-13 (Attachment 1) to NVTA Agreement No. 18-23 with RSA+ for ...
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.3_Attch 1_Amendment No. 7_RSA
	A7_E13_1823 RSA (B)


	0005_1_Staff Report
	10.4_VT SH to Cal Contingency Action_Cover GHB-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board:
	(1) Approve an additional $740,000 in construction budget for Construction Agreement No. 22-11 with Ghilotti Construction Company, Inc for construction of the Vine Trail St Helena to Calistoga Project for an amount not to exceed $2,056,709; and
	(2) Approve Resolution No. 22-11, Revised authorizing the Executive Director, or designee, to issue change orders for Construction Agreement No. 22-11 in an amount not to exceed $2,056,709.
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	Vine Trail – St Helena to Calistoga project management team from NVTA and Park Engineering (construction manager) have forecasted an approximate $740,000 shortfall in construction funding stemming from delays associated with Pacific Gas and Electric f...
	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.4_VT SH to Cal Budget Increase_Memo GHB-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board:
	(1) Approve an additional $740,000 in construction budget for Construction Agreement No. 22-11 with Ghilotti Construction Company, Inc for construction of the Vine Trail St Helena to Calistoga Project for an amount not to exceed $2,056,709; and
	(2) Approve Resolution No. 22-11, Revised (Attachment 1) authorizing the Executive Director, or designee, to issue change orders for Construction Agreement No. 22-11 in an amount not to exceed $2,056,709.
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.4_VT SH to Cal Contingency Action_Attch 1_Resolution 22-11, Revised

	0006_1_Staff Report
	10.5 - Amending Contract with Kleinfelder Construction Services Cover GHB-KM no changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.5 - Amending Contract with Kleinfelder Construction Services Memo GHB-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.5_Attach 1_Amendment No. 2 to 21-20-CM01 Kleinfelder

	0007_1_Staff Report
	11.1 Proposed Fare Increase_Cover ao edits-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	Proposed Vine Transit Fare Increase
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	11.1 Proposed Fare Increase Memo ao edits NEEDS UPDATE-KM changes-add all comments received as attachments and change memo accordingly
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	11.1 Proposed Fare Increase _Attch 1 Title VI Analysis Fare Change
	11.1 Proposed Fare Increase _Attch 2 NVTA Fare Policy
	11.1 Proposed Fare Increase _Attch 3 Fare Type - Rates
	8.3 Attachment 3

	11.1_Attach 4 Public Comment
	Writen comment submited via email:
	From: ROBERT ACKLEY


	0008_1_Staff Report
	11.2_Fin Stmts FY23 and FY22_Cover_ao-KM no changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	11.2_Fin Stmts FY23 and FY22_Memo_ao-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	11.2_Attach 1
	11.2_Attach 2 NVTA Financial Stmts FY23 and FY22 - Final Copy
	11.2_Attach 3 NVTA Single Audit Rpt for FYE June 30, 2023- Final Copy

	0009_1_Staff Report
	11.3_Q2 FY24 Vine Transit Update_Cover_des-KM no changes
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	SUBJECT
	Vine Transit Update
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	11.3_Q2 FY24 Vine Transit Update_Memo_des-KM no changes
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND



	0010_1_Staff Report
	11.4_Federal & State Legislative Update 01_Cover
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	SUBJECT
	Federal and State Legislative Update
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	11.4_Federal & State Legislative Update 02_Memo
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	11.4_Federal & State Legislative Update 03_Attch 1 Federal Rpt
	11.4_Federal & State Legislative Update 04_Attch 2 State Rpt
	11.4_Federal & State Legislative Update 05_Attch 3  State Matrix




